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INTRODUCTORY SECTION

This section includes miscellaneous data regarding the City of Rolling Meadows, including:

List of Principal Officialso

o Organization Chart

e Letter of Transmittal

o GFOA Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting
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P ROGRESS THRU PARTICIPATION''

Apnl 12,2012

To the Mayor of the City of Rolling Meadows
Members ofthe Cþ Council
Citizens and Businesses of the City of Rolling Meadows, Illinois

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS,
ILLINOIS for the Fiscal Year ended December 3L,2011, is hereby submitted. The submittal of this report
complies with Illinois state law which requires that the City issue a report on its financial position and activity
presented in conformance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) by an independent firm of certified public accountants.

For the year ended December 31,2011, the licensed certified public accounting firm of Lauterbach & Amen,
LLP, has issued an unqualified ("clean") opinion on the City of Rolling Meadows financial statements. The
independent auditors report can be found at the front ofthe financial section ofthis report.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation,
including all disclosures, rests with management. We believe the data, as presented, is accurate in all material
respects; that it is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position of the City of
Rolling Meadows. The results of operations as measured by the financial activþ of its various funds; and all
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain a reasonable understanding of the City's financial affairs
have been included.

This report includes all funds of the Crty þrimary government), as well as its component units, the Rolling
Meadows Public Library (discretely presented component unit). Component units are autonomous entities
for which the primary government is financially accountable.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview
and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of management's discussion and
analysis. This letter of transmittal should be read in conjunction with the management's discussion and
anaþis and the notes to the financial statements to obtain the most complete assessment of the city's cunent

immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

PROFILE OF' THE CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS

The City of Rolling Meadows is located in northwest suburban Cook County,27 mlles from downtown
Chicago, Illinois. Two major expressways serving the Northwest suburban area ¿re the Northwest Tollway
(Írterstate 90), and Illinois Route 53 (also serving forpart ofits length as Interstate 290).

3600 KTRCHOFF RO.\D . ROLLING ME.ADOWS. IL 60008 . PHONE: (8-{7) -lt)-{-8-5t)0 . (8-+7) 39+-8710



Rolling Meadows is part of the Chicago northwest suburban area that encompasses 32 communities along

Interstate 90 from O'Hare Aþort to Elgin, Illinois, refened to as the "Golden Corridor". The diversity of
business and industry provides a stable economic base, which in turn creates outstanding municipal services,

educational systems, health and human care agencies and recreational facilities.

The City of Rolling Meadows is centrally located within the "Golden Corridor" with O'Hare Airport
approximately l0 miles east of the Crty. The City's development,like that of much of the Northwest, traces

to the mid-1950s when the Illinois Toll Road and O'Hare International Aþort were under construction. The

early residential developer of the City (Kimball Hill) acquired approximately 537 acres of farmland

immediately south of the Artington Racetrack and broke gtound for first single-family homes on July 21,

1953. At the time the City incorporated on February 26, 1955, it had a population of 5,162.

The City operates under a city manager form of govemment. The city manager administers the City's dayto-
day operations. The legislative authorþ of the City is vested in a seven-member council, each elected from
their respective wards. The mayor and city clerk are elected at large. Each alderman and the mayor serve

staggered, four-year terms with term limits. The public voted by referendum to eliminate the elected city
treasurer's position in2006, and subsequently those duties were assigned to the finance director.

The City provides a full range of municipal services with 154 full-time, and26 part{ime persons working
in public safety, public v/orks, planning and zoning, community development, economic development,

finance and general administration. The City maintains approximately 61 miles of streets and about 134

miles of parkway. The Cþ operates its own water distribution system with sewage treatment provided

by the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District. The City is a member of two joint ventures; the first is

the Joint Action Wate¡ Agency (JAWA), which provides water from Lake Michigan through Chicago.

The City also maintains a few deep water wells and reserves. The second joint venture is the Solid Waste

Agency of Northern Cook County (SWANCC), which provides solid waste disposal services, The City
also owns and operates its own fleet of refuse vehicles (recycling is a contracted service).

The Rolling Meadows Lrbrary is operated under an appointed board, which is separate from the City
Council. Library Board positions are appointed by the City's Mayor and expire on a rotating basis.

Library operations are administered by the Library Board, however, the City is required by state statute to

include within its property tax levy and budget, the Library's requests. The Library does not have

authority to issue debt, and must do so through the City. Thus, the Library is a component unit of the

City.

MAJOR INITIATIVES . ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

The City, located in the northwest Chicago subwbs, actively encourages economic development to

maintain and expand its property and sales tax bases and to ultimately diversify its revenue bases. The

City's economic development activities are focused on the following efforts:

Retention, redevelopment and expansion of existing commercial and industrial buildings and

properties;
Recruiting new desirable commercial enterprises;
Partnering with local businesses to provide information and resources and to strengthen the

public-partnership between government and business.

Economic Development Committee
The City established an Economic Development Committee (EDC) in 1988 to encourage greater

cooperation with the private sector in attracting and retaining business and industry. The committee is

comprised of members of commercial and retail sectors, City staff and elected officials.
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In 1996, the EDC formulated a policy statement to help guide future economic development activity.
Pursuant to the EDC's policy statement, the City seeks opportunities to forge partnerships with
enterprises, which will enhance the City's development with diverse, high quality and high revenue
generating types of commercial, office and manufacturing projects that conform to the City's
Comprehensive Plan and development goals, objectives and policies.

Since 2006, the Economic Development Committee has heard and recommended approval for six 68
Cook County Incentive Programs which has resulted in multi-million dollar rehabilitatior/renovation of
the buildings, reoccupation of nearly 250,000 square feet of industrial space in Rolling Meadows and
more than 300 new employees.

3121 Tollview, Goodman Distribution - 22,644 sq. ft. building and 6 employees - company
headquartered in Houston, TX - warehousing and distribution of HVAC units and parts for the
industrial, commercial and residential markets.

3100 Tollview, occupied by NSORO - 31,720 sq. ft. building and 25 employees - light
assembly, warehousing and distribution of parts for cellular towers and related apparatus.

5655 Meadowbrook Dr., sortimat Technolory - 52,042 sq. ft. building and 100 employees -
Rolling Meadows site will serve as North American headquarters for sortimat which is a leading
provider of assembly systems for the medical and pharmaceutical industries and producer of
feeder solutions for engineering companies.

3640 Edison Place, LC Mold - 23,750 sq. ft. building and 45 employees - provides design,
mold, prototyping, programming for high quality mold making, warehousing and distribution of
its finished products.

3200 Squibb I)r., JC Restoration - 82,000 sq. ft. building and 70 employees - Disaster recovery
operation and industrial company that stores, cleans, refurbishes and remanufactures products that
have been damaged due to fire, water, storm, mold and more.

5650 Meadowbrook - US Waterproofing and Construction - 36,000 sq. ft, building and 80
employees.

After review by the Economic Development Committee, in December 2011, the City Council approved
an Economic Incentive Program to promote Economic Development in the Cify of Rolling Meadows
and increase sales tax. Based on the certain parameters, the program rebates part ofthe real estate transfer
tax if vacant commercial space is reoccupied. The goal is to incent current businesses to expand or fill
vacancies and attract new business to the City.

Golf Road Corridor - The City's Corporate Park North and South zones are large and highly visible.
Commonly known as the Golf Road Corridor, the area is a very, accessible mixed-use development area
that border Route 53 and I-90.

Redevelopment Relating to Tax Increment Financing Districts

TIF District No. I - Downtown Rolling Meadows (created 1988) - In2010, the City conhacted
to have a market analysis prepared for the downtown area which would identify the types of uses
and housing that could be supported by the market area. The market analysis has been a very
useful marketing tool and was instrumental in aligning the City with its next phase for
redevelopment of the downtown area.

T
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TIF District No. I is an ll-acre parcel dominated by a vacant 130,000 square foot vacant
neighborhood shopping center in the heart of the City's downtown area. The City is cunently
working with Clark Street Development of Chicago who holds the bank note on the property and
has plans for redevelopment. TIF monies have been obligated for possible environmental clean-
up and/or rehabilitation of the site, With the 2010 market analysis in-hand, the Clark Street
Development Company has reached out to potential users who have expressed interest in the site.
This TIF District expires on December 31,20L2.

TIF District No. 2 - Riverwalk Condominiums and Retail Space (created 2002) - In January
2003, the City entered into a redevelopment agreement with Salt Creek Development
Corporation. The site now houses three buildings with 124 condominiums and 14,000 square
foot of commercial / office space. A fourth building, originally planned, was not built. The City
owns the land and uses it as a green space. As market conditions improve, the land may be sold
or redeveloped in the future.

TIF District No.3 - Route 53 / Algonquin Road (created 2004) - Working with a developer at
the time, the City implemented Tax Increment Financing District No. 3 for the redevelopment of
the southwest corner of Algonquin and Route 53 into a 43-acre mixed use development. Due to
the economy, the developer abandoned the proposed project. However, a ne\ry developer has
purchased the 4O-acre existing residential development and is the process of redeveloping and
improving the site. The City is anticipating on making future infrastructure improvements in this
area to supplement the improvements that are already being made. The close proximity to
Woodfield Mall and the Renaissance Hotel and Convention Center in Schaumburg make this an
attractive development parcel.

Collaboration Initiatives

Golf Road Transit and Pedestrian Mobility Study - The Golf Road Corridor between Route 53
on the west and the corporate limits on the east is the City's major corporate and retail center. [n
response to comments from existing companies in this area as to how difficult it is for these
companies to attract bright new employees from the City of Chicago, the City of Rolling
Meadows applied for and was awarded an RTA Planning grant for $80,000 in June 2010. The
City is working closely with the businesses in this corridor as well as the RTA, PACE, IDOT and
Metra to identi$r and recti$r those conditions that are hindering people traveling to and from the
Golf Road corridor using transportation other than the automobile. In addition, the City created a
fund to build savings for the future Metra STAR line and currently has approximately $400,000
in reserve for that specific use.

Northwest Suburban Housing Collaborative - For several years, representatives from the
Villages of Arlington Heights, Mt. Prospect, Palatine, Buffalo Grove and the City of Rolling
Meadows met informally to discuss common housing related issues in the area. ln 2011, the five
municipalities entered into an lntergovernmental Agreement and formed the Northwest Suburban
Housing Collaborative. The Collaborative is addressing the issues of 1) condominium
foreclosures; 2) multi-family rental housing preservation; and 3) vacant and abandoned
properties,
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Other Economic Development Activities

Recognizing the need for to promote the City of Rolling Meadows as a place to do business, the City
updated its website to provide economic development resources, maps and videos for companies seeking
a location in the City and to offer research and information. The City uses its bi-monthly newsletter as a

means to promote new businesses opening in the City. At its City Council Meeting, the City highlights
new businesses opening and provides that information to the media. The City partners with organizations
such as the Woodfield Chicago Northwest Convention Bureau and the Rolling Meadows of Chamber of
Commerce to foster communication and marketing for businesses.

MAJOR INITIATIVES - INT'RASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS & GRANT FUNDING

New Witke Road: The state-funded $1.4 million project reconstructed the area of New Wilke Road,
between Golf and Algonquin Road. New Wilke Road is a vital part of the City's infrastructure because of its
proximity to retailers, major employers and two major highways.

Frontage Road Bridge Rehabilitation: The final phase of $3.6 million in federally funded projects

renovated the Frontage Roads along Route 53 and focused on two bridges that span a section of Salt Creek.

2011 Street Program: The City spent more than $600,000 for its annual City street, sidewalk and curb

replacement program to repair and improve its City's infrastructure.

Algonquin Road Street Lighting: Improvements to lighting along the Algonquin Road conidor began in
201I which are federally reimbursable expenses. This project is projected to be completedin10l2.

Narrow Banding Grant: The City was awarded $11,640 from the Department of Homeland Security to
purchase narrow banding radios for public safety.

FEMA Snow Expenses Reimbursement: The Cþ was awarded $41,947, by the Federal Emergency
Management Agency, as a partial reimbursement for the February 20ll blizzard storm event.

FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant: The Crty was awarded $88,564, by the Federal Emergency
Management Agency, to purchase cardiac monitors/defibrillators.

LOCAL ECONOMY

The local economy is still in a slow recovery. Housing values have lowered and the housing market is
somewhat impacted with pre-foreclosure and foreclosure issues. The City has taken proactive steps to
minimize the impact of property maintenance issues from vacant properties. In 2011, the City
implemented a late filing fee for real estate property tax transfers if the foreclosed property does not
purchase City real estate transfer stamps in a period of thirty-one days. This filing assists the City with
locating who the owner of record is on file and curbs property maintenance issues. The City also

maintains a foreclosed and vacant property listing.

The Golf Road Conidor is a core area in the City for sales tax. City-wide, in 2011, there was a slight
increase of 4.3% over the previous year in sales tax by $204,553. In 2011, the City celebrated a re-

opening of Caribou Coffee at its new location on Golf Road. Two popular restaurant chains have opened

their doors - Noodles & Company and Five Guys. These are the latest examples of respected companies
that are drawn to the City because of its business-friendly environment and high-profile business corridor.

In its downtown area, as mentioned, the City is moving ahead with guarded optimism for the

redevelopment of the Kirchoff / Meadow area. In 2011, Chase Bank moved its Rolling Meadows location
on Kirchoff Road to a \arge, out lot building on that same stretch of road in the downtown area. Retail
and restaurant expansion is the focus city-wide in20l2 and beyond.
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ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND BUDGETARY CONTROL

Management of the City of Rolling Meadows is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
control structwe. The internal control structure is designed to ensure that the assets of the City are protected
from loss, theft, fraud, misappropriation or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled
to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles. This structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives
are met. The concept ofreasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost ofa control should not exceed the
benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management.

In addition, the City of Rolling Meadows maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary
controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved
by the City's governing body. Activities of the general fund, certain special revenue funds, capital project
fimds, debt service f,tnds, entetprise funds, and internal service frurds are included in the annual appropriated
budget. Project-length financial plans are adopted for the capital projects fi¡nds. The level of budgetary
control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is established
at the fund level. The City also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one technique of
accomplishing budgetary control,

RDLEVANT FINAI\CIAL POLICIES THIS YEAR

In order to insure that the City continues to meet its immediate and long term service goals, several financial
policies and procedures have been implemented by management. Highlighted are some of the more pertinent
policies that the City followed in FY 201l:

Seeking to reduce expenditures, the City offered a voluntary separation incentive (VSI) program
in FY 20ll to fulltime staff with at least eight years of employment. Sixteen employees
accepted the VSI in exchange for a one-time payment of $20,000. The VSI progïam provides the
opportunity to hire new employees at lower pay scales and revisit staffing plans.

Issued a Comprehensive A¡nual Financial Report within 180 days of the end of each fiscal year
that complies with generally accepted accounting principles.

Posted on the City's website employees' salary and benefit data, as a continued transparency
initiative.

Staff and the City Council discussed long-range financial planmng in 20ll during its budget
discussions. One of the goals discussed was reviewing the City's outstanding debt. In 20l2,the City
will be refunding general obligation bonds to maximize its interest savings over the long-term,

Prepared and reviewed monthly revenue, expenditure and cash balance reporting for all funds with
particular focus on the General Fund to the City Council. These financial reports ensure that the City
Council is made aware of any variances from the appropriated budget. (The budget document
continues to be revised and made easier to understand.)

Met informally with two aldermen on a semi-monthly basis to review monthly financial items.

Developed a written credit card i purchasing card policy and procedure manual for employees.

Adhered to a capitaltzation policy which establishes the capitalization th¡esholds and estimated
useful lives of capital assets.
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Prepared a five-year capital plan with a three-year financial forecast which outlines management's
intentions regarding fixed asset purchases and infrastructure improvements.

Followed a purchasing policy to ensure that goods and services are obtained in a timely manner at
the lowest possible cost.

Adhered to an investment policy which invests public funds in a manner which protects principal,
maximizes return for a given level of risk and meets the daily cash flow needs of the Cþ.

In June, the City complied with the state-mandated annual treasurer reporting requirements. The
report is published in a local newspaper and posted on the City's website at www.cityrm.org under
the Finance Department page.

PENSION TRUST FUNDS AND POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Three pension plans are established by state statute, which cover Cþ employees. The benefits and funding
of each plan are determined by state statute, and each plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits
for participants.

The Firefighters' and Police Pension Funds are funded through an annual properly tax levy, employee
contributions and investment eamings. In previous years an independent actuary would advise the City on
the amount of the property tax levy necessary to meet the funding requirements of the pension, with an
amortization period for the unfunded liability ending 1n2033. However, starting in 2010 the City based its
pension funds properly tax levy amounts on the actuarial required conhibution recommendation of the
Illinois Department of Lrsurance. (If one is provided to the Cþ in a timely manner.) This was agreed upon
in the fall of 2009, by an ad hoc committee consisting of representatives from the City and the pension fimds.

In December 2010, the Illinois General Assembly approved pension reform legislation that pushed the 30-
year closed amortization period to 2040 with a funding target of 90o/o. The City of Rolling Meadows'
maintained the prudent approach to continue funding at the 2033 mark with a funding target of 100%.

Firefighters contribute 9.455% of their annual base salary, and police officers contribute 991% of their
annual base salary. Sworn firefighters and police offices hired after July 1986 contribute to Medicare (1.45%
of taxable income).

The lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) pension plan covers civilian employees working at least
1,000 hours within a l2-month consecutive time period. Funding for this pension plan is made through
contributions from the employer (actuarially determined annually by the IMRF) and employees of the Cþ
(established at 4.5%o of total compensation). Employees covered under this pension plan also contribute to
Social Security (4.2% of salary capped annually) and Medicare (lA5% of total compensation).

The notes to the financial statement provide more information pertaining to employee pensions.

The City also provides post-retirement health care benefits for retirees and their dependents. The City
finances these benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. Retirees pay 100% of their health care premiums.
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RISKMANAGEMENT

The City of Rolling Meadows participates in two public entity risk pools to protect against casuaþ and
health-risk losses. The Intergovemmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative (IPBC) insures employee health,
accident and life claims and the Intergovemmental Risk Management Agency (RMA) insures general

liability, first-party property losses, third-party liability claims, workers' compensation claims and public
offrcial liability claims.

AWARDS

The Govemment Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Rolling Meadows for its
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010. This was the twenty-
fifth consecutive year that the govemment has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, a govemmental unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR). This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current comprehensive
annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements, and we are

submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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INDEPENDBNT AUDITORS' REPORT

This section includes the opinion of the City of Rolling Meadows' independent auditing firm.



Lg[gLu.n aêf:l: _LL_P Ê i{
27W457 WARRENVILLE RD. . WARRE ILLINOIS 60sss

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

PHONE 630.393.1483 . FAX 630.393.2s.I6
www. lauterbachamen.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

April12,2012

The Honorable Mayor
Members of the City Council
City of Rolling Meadows, Illinois

We have audited the accompanying f,rnancial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Rolling
Meadows, Illinois as of and for the year ended December 3I,2011, which collectively comprise the
City's basic financial statements as listed in the accompanying table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the City of Rolling Meadows, Illinois' management. Our responsibility
is to express opinions on these hnancial statements based on our audit, We did not audit the financial
statements of the Rolling Meadows Public Library (discretely presented component unit), which
represents 100% of the assets, net assets and revenues of the district presented component units of the
City. Those frnancial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished
to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Rolling Meadows Public
Library, is based on the report of the other auditors.

'We 
conductecl our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the basic financial statements are free of material misstatement" An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also

includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 'We 

believe that our audit and the report of other
auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Rolling Meadows, Illinois as of December 31, 2011,
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and other required supplementary information be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is

required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
f,rnancial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We and the other auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States

of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basie

financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.

We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures

do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

I



City of Rolling Meadows, Illinois
April12,2012
Page2

Our audit was conducted for the purposes of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Rolling Meadows, Illinois' f,rnancial statements as a whole. The combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules and other information listed as schedules and
other supplementary information in the accompanying table of contents, are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules and other information listed as schedules and other
supplementary information in the accompanying table of contents are the responsibility of management
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare

the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of
other auditors, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements
as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us

and the other auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an

opinion or provide any assurance on them.

f ¡r^1,*krnr*tû&'tt
LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP
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City of Rolling Meadows, Illinois 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

December 31, 2011 

 

The City of Rolling Meadows’ Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to provide 

readers a narrative overview and analysis of the City’s financial statements for the year ending December 

31, 2011.  Readers are encouraged to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional 

information furnished in the Transmittal Letter (beginning on page iii) and the City’s financial statements 

(beginning on page 3). 

 

Financial Highlights 

 

The following are a few highlights to be discussed in greater detail in this Management’s Discussion and 

Analysis and within the 2011 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report: 

 

 Net Asset Position and Performance in Total:  The City’s total net assets at December 31, 

2011 were $118,414,505, an increase of $2,676,389 or 2.3% from FY 2010.  As of the close of 

the current fiscal year, the City of Rolling Meadows’ governmental funds reported combined 

ending fund balances of $3,480,732, a decrease of $906,079 from the previous fiscal year.   

 

 Governmental Activity Summary:  Net assets for governmental activities ended at 

$107,023,146, an increase of $1,466,371 (more to be discussed in the MD&A). 

 

 Business-Type Activity Summary:  Net assets for business-type activities ended at 

$11,391,359, an increase of $1,210,018 (more to be discussed in the MD&A). 

 

 General Fund Summary:  The City’s General Fund reported an increase of $2,090,525 in fund 

balance for the year.  The ending fund balance at December 31, 2011 for the General Fund was a 

positive $1,852,801. 

 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Rolling Meadows’ 

basic financial statements.  The City’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: (1) 

government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial 

statements.  The government-wide statements are divided between governmental activities and business-

type activities, with the public library as a discretely presented component unit.  The perspective of the 

fund financial statements presents financial information for individual funds established by the City for 

specific purposes.  They are categorized into three distinct groups: governmental, proprietary and 

fiduciary.  This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial 

statements themselves. 
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The following table (Table I) summarizes the major features of the City’s financial statements.  This is a 

useful tool and should be read in conjunction with this analysis and the CAFR. 

 

TABLE I      

   Fund Financial Statements 

Description 

Government-Wide 

Statements Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds 

Scope Entire City 
government (except 
Fiduciary Funds) 
and the City's 
component unit. 

Activities of the City 
that are not proprietary 
or fiduciary  such as 
public safety 

Activities of the City 
that operate similar to 
private business such 
as the Utilities Fund 
and the Refuse Fund 

Activities in which 
the City is trustee 
or agents of 
another's 
resources such as 
pension plans 

Required financial 
Statements 

1. Statement of net 
assets  

1. Balance sheet 1. Statement of net 
assets 

1. Statement of 
fiduciary net 
assets 

2. Statement of 
activities 

2. Statement of 
revenues, 
expenditures and 
changes in fund 
balance 

2. Statement of 
revenues, expenses, 
and changes in net 
assets 

2. Statement of 
changes in 
fiduciary net 
assets. 

    3. Statement of cash 
flows 

  

Accounting Basis Accrual Modified accrual Accrual Accrual 

Measurement Focus Economic resource Current Financial 
resources 

Economic resource Economic 
resource 

Type of asset & liability 
information 

All assets and 
liabilities; both 
financial and capital 
short and long-term 

Assets expected to be 
used and liabilities that 
come due during the 
year or shortly 
thereafter; no capital 
assets 

All assets and 
liabilities; both 
financial and capital 
short and long-term 

All assets and 
liabilities,  short 
and long-term. 
Does not contain 
capital assets. 

Type or inflow & outflow 
information 

All revenues and 
expenses during the 
year regardless of 
when the cash is 
received or paid 

Revenues for which 
cash is received during 
the year or shortly 
thereafter; 
expenditures for goods 
and services that have 
been received and 
payment is due during 
the year or shortly 
thereafter. 

All revenues and 
expenses during the 
year regardless of 
when the cash is 
received or paid 

All revenues and 
expenses during 
the year 
regardless of 
when the cash is 
received or paid. 

 

Governmental Funds include: 

 

Major Funds: General Fund, Motor Fuel Tax Fund and Debt Service Fund; and Non-Major Funds: 911 

Emergency Fund, Foreign Fire Tax Fund, Asset Seizure Fund, Local Road Fund, Transit Development 

Fund, TIF #1 Kirchoff/Meadow Fund, TIF #2 Kirchoff/Owl Fund, TIF #3 Woodfield, and Plum Grove 

Road Fund. 

 

Proprietary Funds include: 

 

Enterprise Funds: Utilities Fund and Refuse Fund; and Internal Service Funds: Municipal Garage 

Fund, Vehicle Replacement Fund, Buildings and Land Fund, Liability Insurance Fund, and Health 

Insurance Fund. 

 

Fiduciary Funds include: 

 

Pension Trust Funds: Police Pension Fund and Firefighters’ Pension Fund; and Agency Fund: 

Compliance Deposit Fund. 
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Government-Wide Financial Statements 

 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 

City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.  The Statement of Net Assets presents 

information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net 

assets.  Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the 

financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. 

 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed 

during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event 

occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses reported in this 

statement may relate to cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused 

vacation leave). 

 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally 

supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that 

are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-

type activities).  The governmental activities of the City include general government (legislative, 

administrative, finance), public safety (fire, police, 911 services), public works, highways and streets, 

health and welfare, and economic development (community development).  The business-type activities 

of the City include utilities (water, sewer, stormwater management) and refuse. 

 

The government-wide financial statements include the City of Rolling Meadows, and its discretely 

presented component unit, the City of Rolling Meadows Library, for which the City is financially 

accountable.  Financial information for this component unit is reported separately from the financial 

information presented for the primary government itself. 

 

The government-wide financial statements may be found on pages 3 through 6 of this CAFR. 

 

Fund Financial Statements 

 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 

segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The City of Rolling Meadows, like other state and local 

governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 

requirements.  All of the funds of the City of Rolling Meadows can be divided into three categories: 

governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. 

 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 

activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the government-wide financial 

statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of 

spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.  

Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. 

 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 

statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 

information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  By doing 

so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing 

decisions.  Both the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Governmental Fund Statement of 

Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this 

comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
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The City of Rolling Meadows maintains fourteen individual governmental funds.  Information is 

presented separately in the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and in the Governmental Fund Statement 

of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for the General Fund, Motor Fuel Tax Fund 

and the Debt Service Fund, of which these three are considered to be major funds.  Data from the other 

eleven governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.  Individual fund data for 

each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements and may be 

found elsewhere in this report. 

 

The City of Rolling Meadows adopts an annual budget for its General Fund.  A budgetary comparison 

schedule has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.  The basic 

governmental fund financial statements may be found on pages 7 through 10 of this CAFR. 

 

Proprietary Funds 

The City of Rolling Meadows maintains two different types of proprietary funds:  enterprise and internal 

service funds.  Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type 

activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City maintains two enterprise funds to 

account for its Utilities and Refuse Funds. 

 

Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among 

the City’s various functions.  The City maintains five internal service funds:  the vehicle replacement and 

garage funds account for its fleet of vehicles, the building and land fund to account for building 

maintenance and improvements, the health insurance fund for health insurance premiums (including 

retirees), and the liability insurance fund for general liability insurance as well as workers’ 

compensation.  Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type 

functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial 

statements. 

 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, 

only in more detail.  The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the 

Utilities and Refuse and Funds.  The internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated 

presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. 

 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements may be found on pages 11 through 13 of this report. 

 

Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.  

Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements, because the resources of 

those funds are not available to support the City.  The three fiduciary funds include both pension funds 

for sworn police officers and firefighters, as well as surety bonds for building contractors.  The 

accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. 

 

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements may be found on pages 14 and 15 of this CAFR. 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 

the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to the financial statements may be found 

on pages 16 through 65 of this CAFR. 

 



Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information concerning the City's progress in funding its obligation to provide
pension benefits to its employees, as well as budgetary comparison schedules for the General and Motor
Fuel Tax Funds. Required supplementary information may be found on pages 66 through 7l of this
CAFR. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds
and internal service funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information
on pensions. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules may be found on pages T2lhrough
116 of this CAFR.

Government-wide F inancial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's hnancial
position. In the case of the City of Rolling Meadows, total net assets at December 31, 2011 were
$1 18,414,505. The following table (Table II) displays total net assets for the Cþ for the past four years.

Table II. of Meadows Net Assets

TABLE III. City of Rolling Meadows
Statement of Net Assets

As of December 31, 2010 and 20ll
(in Millions)

Govemmental Activities Business-fipe Activities Total Primary Govemment

Net Assets 12t31t2008 12t31t2009 12t31t20't0 12t31t2011
Governmental Activities 104.990 105,289 $105,557 $107,023
Business-Tvpe Activities $7,870 $8,806 $10,181 $11,391
Total Citv Net Assets $1r2.830 $114.095 $115.738 $l18,414

20r0 20tl 20r0 20tt 2010 20lt

Current and other
assets

Capital assets

Tota¡ assets

Long-term liabilities
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Invested in capital
assets, net of
debt

Restr¡cted
Unrestricted

(deficit)

187
129.1

18.9
129.2

3.5
11.1

$ $ s $ $ $4.3
ll.0

22.2
140.2

23.3
140.2

s 147.8 $ 148.2 S 14.6 $ rs3 S 162.4 $ rfi.s

26.3
15.9

25.6
rs.6

$ s s $3.4
1.0

3,2
0.7

29.7
16.9

28.7
16.3

$

s 42.2 $ 4r.2 $ 4.4 $ 3.9 S 46.6 $ 4s.r

S 108.4
1.7

(4.s)

tll.1
2.8

$ $ 8.1 $ 8.4 $ 116 s
t.7

$ 120.2

(4.6)(7.s) 2t 2..9 (2.4)

Total net
assets $ r0s.6 $ 107.0 $ r0.2 $ rr.4 $ 115.7 $ 118.4

MD&A 5



MD&A 6 

By far the largest portion of the City of Rolling Meadows’ net assets shown in the summary Table III, 

$120,220,463 reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery and equipment); 

less any related debt used to finance those assets.  The City uses these capital assets to provide services 

to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  Although the City of Rolling 

Meadows’ investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the 

resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets 

themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

 

A portion of the City of Rolling Meadows’ net assets (approximately $2.8 million) represents resources 

that are subject to external restrictions as to how they may be used.  These restrictions include $524,945 

for public safety, $1,428,665 for the balance in the Motor Fuel Tax Fund and $813,726 restricted 

balances in the Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Funds. 

 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Rolling Meadows is able to report positive net assets for 

the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities.  The 

same situation held true for the prior fiscal year.  Additional information on the Statement of Net Assets 

may be found on page 3 and 4 of this CAFR. 

 

Change in Net Assets 

 

The fiscal year 2011 activities of the City of Rolling Meadows caused total net assets to increase by 

$2,676,389 (both governmental and business-type activities had an increase in net assets of $1,466,371 

and $1,210,018, respectively).  The net assets as of the end of fiscal year 2011 are $118,414,505.  Key 

elements are as follows: 
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City of Rolling Meadows 

Changes in Net Assets 

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2010 and 2011 

(in Millions) 

         

 Governmental Activities  Business-type Activities  Total Primary Government 

 2010 2011  2010 2011  2010 2011 

         

Revenue         

Program revenues:         

Charges for service  $        4.9           $          4.6   $          10.4  $         10.2    $        15.3  $        14.8  

Operating & capital grants            0.9              1.2                0.0               0.0                 0.9              1.2  

General revenue:                    -                   -                     

Property taxes          10.5            11.8                  -                   -               10.5           11.8 

Other taxes          12.5            12.7                  -                   -               12.5             12.7  

Other revenues            0.5              0.7              <.1                       -               0.6          0.7 

         

Total revenue          29.3             31.1                10.5            10.2             39.8           41.4 

        

Expenses         

Governmental activities:         

General Government  $          3.9   $          4.2   $             -    $             -     $          3.9      $       4.2  

Public Safety            18.0            19.5                   -                   -               18.0            19.5  

Highway & Streets              0.7              1.1                  -                   -                 0.7              1.1  

Public Works              5.7              3.9                   -                   -                 5.7              3.9  

Health & Welfare              0.0              0.0                  -                   -                 0.0              0.0  

Economic Development              0.0              0.0                  -                   -                 0.0              0.0  

Interest              0.8              0.8                  -                   -                 0.8              0.8  

         

Business-type:        

Water                 -                   -               0.0 0.0              0.0              0.0  

Sewer                 -                   -               0.0 0.0              0.0           0.0 

Refuse                 -                   -               2.5 2.3              2.5              2.3  

Stormwater                 -                   -               0.0 0.0              0.0              0.0 

Utilities -                  -             6.4 6.7              6.4              6.7 

         

         

Total expenses            29.1             29.7            9.0 9.0           38.1         38.7 

Revenues over (under) expenses              0.2             1.5            1.5 1.2             1.6              2.7 

         

Transfers              0.1               -          ( 0.1) 0.0                  -                -   

         

Change in net assets  $          0.3  $           1.5   $       1.4    $          1.2   $       1.6  $         2.7 
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Governmental Activities 

 

Revenues: 

 

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 revenues from governmental activities total $31,125,509.  

The following table reflects the percentage breakdown for each of the categories of governmental 

activities revenue. 

 

Other Taxes
41.0%

Property Taxes
38.0%

Charges for Service
14.8%

Other 
Revenues

2.4%

Operating & 
Capital Grants

3.8%

2011 Governmental Activities Revenue 

Other Taxes

Property Taxes

Charges for Service

Other Revenues

Operating & Capital Grants

 
 

Taxes such as Sales Tax (State and Home Rule), Telecommunications Taxes, Electric Utility Tax, Hotel 

Tax, Food & Beverage Tax, Real Estate Tax, Income Tax and Other Taxes comprise 41.0% of total 

governmental activity revenue or $12,761,652.  Property Taxes follow at 38.0% or $11,826,132, Charges 

for Services at 14.8% or $4,604,406, Operating and Capital Grants at 3.8% or $1,183,980 and Other 

Revenues at 2.4% or $749,339. 

 

Overall, FY 2011 Budgeted Revenues were developed on a very low growth rate or zero-growth.  With 

that conservative outlook, actual numbers came in better than budget for many revenue line items.  State 

Sales Tax was budgeted at $2,811,040 and came in at $2,871,640 - $60,600 more than budget.  Home 

Rule Sales Tax was budgeted at $1,948,067 and came in at $2,058,935 - $110,868 more than budget.  

Telecommunications Tax was budgeted at $1,799,315 and came in at $1,936,227 - $136,912 more than 

budget.  Hotel Tax was budgeted at $291,347 and came in at $333,374 - $42,027 more than budget.  

Income Tax was budgeted at $1,835,840 and came in at $1,915,788 - $79,948 more than budget.   

 

In January 2011, the City Council passed, by resolution, a request to transfer excess surplus funds from 

the Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative (IPBC) and the Intergovernmental Risk 

Management Agency (IRMA) to the City (City excess funds held in reserve). The $500,000 surplus in 

funds from IPBC was allocated by crediting the General Fund with $100,000 and $400,000 into the 

Health Insurance Fund. The $150,000 in surplus funds from IRMA was allocated by crediting the 

General Fund with $100,000 and the Liability Insurance Fund with $50,000. As mentioned in the 

Transmittal Letter, with the sixteen Voluntary Separation Incentive (VSI) Program requirements, the City 

was proactive in ensuring that costs associated with the VSI were covered, rather than leaving the excess 

surplus at IPBC or IRMA. 
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There were some line items that came in less than budget:  Electric Utility Tax came in $21,483 under 

the $1,233,605 budgeted and real estate transfer came in at $16,312 less than the $170,000 budgeted.  

These revenue streams can be explained by the fact that the local economy is impacted by the housing 

market.   

 

Another note for FY 2011 – the rental income line item shows $430,638 for the budget and $316,835 as 

an actual number.  This is due to the fact that the City set aside $130,000 to comply with a contractual 

obligation in the event a billboard company forfeits their billboard in the next three years.  This more 

than likely will not happen, but the City prudently is setting aside these funds as a liability if that were to 

occur. 

 

Expenses: 

 

For the fiscal year that ended December 31, 2011, expenses for governmental activities totaled 

$29,659,138. The following table reflects the percentage breakdown for each of the categories of 

governmental activities expenses. 

 

General 
Government

14.3%

Public Safety
65.9%

Highway & 
Streets

3.8%
Public Works

13.3%

Economic 
Development

0.1%

Interest on Long-
Term Debt

2.5%

2011 Governmental Activities Expenses 

General Government

Public Safety

Highway & Streets

Public Works

Economic Development

Interest on Long-Term Debt

 
Typical to a municipality such as the size of the City of Rolling Meadows, public safety – police and fire 

operations – comprise 65.9% or $19,535,204 of the City’s governmental activities expenses.  This is 

followed by General Government at 14.3% or $4,244,555, Public Works 13.3% or $3,948,420, Highway 

and Streets at 3.8% or $1,136,370, Interest on Long-Term Debt at 2.5% or $752,459 and Economic 

Development at 0.1% or $42,130. 
 

Total expenses for governmental activities increased by 2.0% or $578,523 from FY 2010 to FY 2011.  

This is primarily due to contractual obligations and infrastructure improvements as detailed in the 

Transmittal Letter, beginning on page iii of this CAFR.   
 

Business-Type Activities 
 

The major revenue components of the “charges for services” classification for business-type activities are 

fees from the City’s Utilities Fund (water, sewer, refuse and stormwater) and Refuse Fund.  Total charges 

for services for these activities were $10,241,643, which represents a decrease of $171,367.  Business-

type activities increased the City of Rolling Meadows’ net assets by $1,210,018 as compared with FY 

2010.   
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds 
 

As noted earlier, the City of Rolling Meadows uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 

compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 
 

Governmental Funds - The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-

term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing 

resources available at the end of the year in comparison with the City’s upcoming financing 

requirements.  At December 31, 2011 the governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of 

$3,480,732.  

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

 

  Original    Final    

  Budget   Budget  Actual 

    

Revenues  $             24,887,640   $             24,890,390   $             26,033,714  

Expenditures                 24,647,907                 24,546,312                  24,254,971  

 

Excess of Revenues    

Over Expenditures                    239,733                     344,078                     1,778,743 

 

Other Financing Sources or    

(Uses)                     356,668                   356,668                      311,782 

Net Change in     

Fund Balance    $              596,401    $              700,746    $               2,090,525 

    

 
Ending General Fund  

Balance                          $              1,852,801___ 

 

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund and the largest source of funding for day-to-day 

activities of all the primary City services.  Shown in the chart “General Fund Budgetary Highlights,” in 

the chart above, are the original and final budgets, as well as the actual amounts received in 2011.  The 

FY 2011 Budget was developed with expected revenues to exceed expenditures.  In prior budgets, the 

budgeted expenditures were greater than revenues, thereby creating a structural deficit as a starting point 

for the year.  This structural issue continues to be addressed in the FY 2012 Budget and in longer-range 

planning and resource allocation the City is reviewing in 2012. 

 

At December 31, 2010, the City’s General Fund actual surplus of $486,814 increased General Fund, fund 

balance from a negative $724,541 at the beginning of the year, to a negative $237,724.  This reduction in 

negative fund balance is directly attributable to a conscious effort by management and the City Council 

to address the negative fund balance position of the General Fund, by containing costs and carefully 

monitoring revenues.   

 

At December 31, 2011, the City’s General Fund actual surplus of the General Fund, fund balance is 

$2,090,525 from a negative $237,724 at the beginning of the year, to a positive $1,852,801.  The City of 

Rolling Meadows’ General Fund’s revenues came in better than budget by $1,143,324.  The General 

Fund’s expenditures were under budget by $291,341.  City Management and the City Council monitored 

each monthly revenues and expenditures and reviewed year-end projections.  City Management 

conservatively budgeted and forecasted the FY 2011 Budget and ending fund balance position.  City 

Departments all took part in managing their budgets to ensure that expenditures were held in check.  The 

ending actual result is a better than forecast position for the General Fund. Additional information may 

be found on page 70 of this report. 
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At December 31, 2011, the Motor Fuel Tax Fund reported a decrease of $270,826 to fund balance due to 

budgeted capital outlay expenditures that were undertaken during the year. Remaining fund balance of 

$1,428,665 at December 31, 2011 is restricted for future qualifying highways and streets expenditures. 

 

Proprietary Funds - The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the 

government-wide financial statements, but include long-term outflows and capital assets.  Unrestricted 

net assets of the Utilities and Refuse Funds at the end of the year amounted to a total of $2,942,316 —

increased by $856,923 from 2010. 

 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

 

Capital Assets - The City of Rolling Meadows’ investment in capital assets for its governmental and 

business-type activities as of December 31, 2011 amounts to $140,169,763 (net of accumulated 

depreciation).  This investment in capital assets includes land, land improvements, construction in 

progress, buildings, machinery, equipment, roads, bridges and vehicles.   

 

The governmental activities capital assets net of depreciation increased by $152,063 or 0.1%.  

Governmental activities’ asset activity increased by $3,560,879 (new asset additions) and decreased by 

$966,319 (asset retirements) and accumulated depreciation for governmental activities was $2,442,497.  

For business-type activities, the capital assets net of depreciation decreased by $164,735 or 1.5%.  The 

slight decrease is due primarily to depreciation on existing assets.  Business-type activities’ asset activity 

increased by $575,661 (new asset additions) and decreased by $91,933 (asset retirements) and 

accumulated depreciation for governmental activities was $648,463.   
 

City of Rolling Meadows 

Capital Assets at Year End 

Net of Depreciation 

(in Millions) 

                   

                   

  Governmental Activities  Business-type Activities  Total Primary Government 

  2010  2011  2010  2011  2010  2011 

                   

Land  $ 99.2  $ 99.2  $ -  $ -  $ 99.2  $ 99.2 

Land improvements   .9   .8   -   -   .9   .8 

Construction in 

   progress 

   

.8 

   

3.0 

   

.2 

   

.4 

   

1.1 

   

.9 

Building   6.9   6.4   1.7   1.6   8.6   8.0 

Machinery and 

  equipment 

   

1.1 

   

          

2..9 

   

.5 

   

           .5 

   

1.5 

   

3.4 

Infrastructure   18.2   17.5                -             -    18.2   17.5 

Vehicles   1.2             1.1   -              -   1.2   1.1 

Waterworks   -            -   3.3   3.3   3.3   3.3 

Sewage   -            -   5.2   5.1   5.2   5.1 

                   

     Total  $ 129.1  $ 129.2  $        11.1  $ 11.0  $ 140.1  $ 140.1 

 

Additional information on the City of Rolling Meadows’ capital assets may be found on pages 35 

through 37 of this CAFR. 
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DEBT OUTSTANDING 

 

Long-term Debt - At the end of the fiscal year 2011, the City of Rolling Meadows had total bonded debt 

outstanding of $19,640,000.  Of this amount, 100% comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of 

the government.   
City of Rolling Meadows 

Outstanding General Obligation Debt (000’s) 

                   

                   

  Governmental Activities  Business-type Activities  Total Primary Government 

  2010  2011  2010  2011  2010  2011 

                   

General obligation 

  bonds 

  

$ 

 

19.0 

  

$ 

 

17.1 

  

$ 

 

2.8 

  

$ 

 

2.5 

  

$ 

 

21.8 

  

$ 

 

19.6 

 

The City of Rolling Meadows made principal payments on outstanding debt in the current year of 

$2,115,000, in accordance with the terms of the various bond issues.  No new short or long-term debt was 

issued during 2011.  The City repaid a 2010 Short-Term Tax Anticipation Note with First Trust Bank in 

the amount of $1,500,000.  This note was paid in full on April 15, 2011.    

 

The City of Rolling Meadows current bond rating is an A1 from Moody’s.  Standard & Poor’s bond 

rating is an A+.  The City’s Management and the City Council will be reviewing its debt structure and 

will take advantage of historically low interest rates to refund or refinance eligible general obligation 

debt. 

 

The City of Rolling Meadows as a home rule authority is not limited to the amount of general obligation 

debt it may issue, except that any debt issue may not exceed a forty-year payment period.  The total per 

capita general obligation debt for the community is $814.97. 

 

Additional information on the City of Rolling Meadows’ long-term debt may be found in Note 3 on 

pages 39 through 43 of this CAFR. 

 

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget 

 

While the City has seen declines in its revenue base, the City Council and Staff have responded by 

reducing expenses, and working towards implementing economic development incentives and measures 

to attract and maintain business.  In light of declining revenues as a result of the nationwide recession 

and increasing costs, the City has had to make difficult decisions over the last few years.  Positions have 

been eliminated, layoffs have occurred, positions left vacant after retirements, non-union employees 

salaries have been frozen and expenditures for capital and infrastructure have been reduced or delayed.  

In addition, capital asset lives have been extended for vehicles and equipment.   

 

Fiscal Year 2011 ended positively as the City’s General Fund ended with a surplus and its ending fund 

balance is $1,852,801.  The General Fund’s financial health is improving and is slowly stabilizing.  

However, work continues on longer-range financial and capital improvement planning.  For the FY 2012 

Budget, some fees were increased such as vehicle stickers, utilities’ rates and refuse rates, and the City 

increased its tax levy by 11.7%.  Also, the electric utility tax sunset of December 2012 will be extended.  

The City continues to address the critical issue of pension funding. 
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In 2012, the City will be refunding three general obligation bonds, as a cost-saving measure over the 

years to come.  Also, in 2012, the City will be working on its capital planning, financial forecast and 

budget assumptions sooner than in past years to allow for ample time to review and plan for the future.  

As the City begins its budget process soon, the City Council and Staff will continue to strive to look for 

cost-efficient ways to deliver services, review fund balance structure and cash flow requirements to 

update capital and build future reserves. 

 

Requests for Information 

 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors with a general 

overview of the City’s finances and the City’s accountability for the money it receives.  Questions 

concerning this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance 

Department, City of Rolling Meadows, 3600 Kirchoff Road, Rolling Meadows, Illinois, 60008. 

 



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Basic Financial Statements include integrated sets of financial statements as required by the
GASB. The sets of statements include:

Government-Wide Financial Statementsa

a Fund Financial Statements

In addition, the notes to the financial statements are included to provide information that is
essential to a user's understanding of the basic financial statements.



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Statement of Net Assets
I)ecember 3lr20ll

See tr'ollowing Page



crrY oF ROLLTNG MEADOWS, TLLTNOTS

Statement of Net Assets

I)ecember 3l,20ll

Component

Unit
Governmental

Activities

Business-

Type
Activities Total

Public
Library

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Receivables - Net of Allowances

Prepaids/Inventories

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets

Nondepreciable

Depreciable

Accumulated Depreciation

Other Assets

Investment in Joint Venture

Unamortized Bond Issuance Costs

Total Noncurrent Assets

s 2,264,581 2,333,624 4,598,205 2,010,899

15,058,974 1,423,807 76,482,781 3,422,211

1,579,732 92,132 r.671.864 9.673

18.903,287 3,849,563 22.752.850 5.442.783

102,238,661 387,251 102,625,972 608,893

67,276,044 21,860,085 89,736,129 8,052,101

(40,302,3t7) (rt,289,961) (sr.s92,278\ (4,702,873\

129,212,388 10,957,375 140.169.763 3.9s8.121

448,542 448,542

100,973 10,786 111.759

100.973 459,328 560.301

t29,313,361 11,416,703 140.730.064 3.958.12t

149,216,649 t5,266,266 163,482,914 9,400,904

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
aJ

Total Assets



Component

Unit
Governmental

Activities

Business-

Type
Activities Total

Public
Library

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Accrued Payroll
Deposits Payable

Interest Payable

Unearned/Deferred Revenue

Current Portion of Long-Term Liabilities
Compensated Absences Payable

Capital Leases Payable

General Obligation Bonds Payable - Net
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Deposits Payable

Net Pension Obligation Payable

Compensated Absences Payable

Capital Leases Payable

General Obligation Bonds Payable - Net
Net Other Post-Employment Benefit Payable

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets - Net of Related Debt

Restricted - Public Safety

Restricted - Highways and Streets

Restricted - Economic Development
Unrestricted

990,449 323,575 1,214,024

130,978

26,426

77,951,966

130,978

26,426

12,024,758

675,258
52,634

2.214.8t2

l3 1,810

64,835

75,28r

72,792

39,495635,763

52,634

1.926.774 288,038

15,614,990 723,900 16.33 8.890 271,926

303,1 l0
4,687,772

3,973,691
232,079

15,229,487

1,152,979

342,927

587,786

2,220,294

646,037

4,687,172

4,561,477

232,079
17,449,775
r.152,979

46,394

60,384

2s.578.5t2 3,151,007 28.729.519 106.778

41,r93,502 3,814,907 45,068,409 378,704

111,777,420

524,945

1,428,665

813,726
(7,515,610)

8,449,043 120,220,463

524,945
1,428,665

813,726
(4.573.294\

3,958,121

5,064,0792,942,316

107.023.146 I r.391.359 I l8-414.505

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Total Net Assets 9.022.200



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2011

Program Revenues

Expenses

Charges
for

Services

Operating
Grants/

Contributions

Capital
Grants/

Contributions

Governmental Activities
General Government
Public Safety
Highways and Streets

Public Works
Health and Welfare
Economic Development
Interest on Long-Term Debt

Business-Type Activities
Utilities
Refuse Collection

Total Primary Government

Component Unit - Public Library

29.659.r38 4.604.406

$ 4,23 5,0 I 8

19,535,204
1,136,370
3,948,420

9,537
42,130

752,459

2,292,373
1,935,468

376,565
115,719

1,068,261

tts.719 1.068.261

6,740,808
2.291.402

7,690,989
2.550.6s4

9,032,210 10.24r.643

3 8.691. 14.846.049 11s'.l19 o6R ).61

3.s94.6 44.97t 25 178

General Revenues

Taxes
Properly
State Sales and Home Rule
S implifi ed Telecommunications
Electric Utility
Hotel
Food and Beverage
Real Estate Transfer
Other Taxes

Intergovernmental - Unrestricted
Income Taxes
Local Use Taxes
Replacement Taxes

Interest
Miscellaneous

Total General Revenues

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral palt of this statement.



Net Expense/Revenue

Primary Government
Component

Unit
Governmental

Activities
Business-Type

Activities Totals
Public
Librarv

(1,942,645\
(17,484,017)

308,456
(3,948,420)

(9,537)
(42,130)

(752.459\

(1,942,645)
(17,484,017)

308,456
(3,948,420)

(9,537)
(42,130)

(7 52.4s9\
Q3.870.752') (23.870.7s2\

950,1 8 1

259,2s2
950,1 8 I
259.252

t.209.433 1.209.433

(23.870.752\ 1.209.433 02.66 1.319)

ß.524.536)

71,826,132
4,930,575
1,936,227
l,2g5,gl8

333,374
1,212,122

153,688
451,t17

1r,826,132
4,930,575
1,936,227
1,295,918

333,374
1,212,122

153,688
451,777

3,551,137

1,436
r.747

1,915,788
351,103
181,680

8,471
740.868

1,9 I 5,788
351,103
I 8 1,680

9,056
740.868

585

25.337.123 585 2s.33',7.708 3.554.320

1,466,371

t05.556.775

1,210,018

10.181.341

2,676,389

l 1s.738.1 l6

29,784

8.992.416

r r -391-359 ll R4 45 05 I O?.),200107 021 146

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF'ROLLING MEADO\ryS, ILINOIS

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

December 3lr20ll

General

Motor
Fuel
Tax

Debt
Se¡vice Nonmaior Totals

ASSETS

Cash and Investments

Receivables - Net of Allowances

Property Taxes

Other Taxes

Accounts
Due from Other Funds

Prepaids

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Deposits Payable

Due to Other Funds

Unearned/Deferred Revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances

Nonspendable
Restricted

Assigned

Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and

Fund Balances

$ 6l 1,186 303,730 914,916

9,725,138
2,889,351

215,490

1,37 L,937 746,487
27,087
27,953

1,429,226
43;704

11,843,562

2,967,127

243,443

2,260,483

60.858

50,689

831,257

t54

12.847.133 I .493.132 1.371 937 2.s78.18'l 1 8 290.389

7

310,797
130,978

671,008

9,881,549

64,467 54,453 429,717

130,978

2,296,996
1 1.951,966

t96,762 1,429,226

713,3011,3 57.116

32 64,467 1,553,878 2.196980 14,809 .657

l'7,154 - 43,704

- 1,338,671

- 394,257

181,941) (1,395,425)

60,858

2,767,336
394,257
258,281

1,428,665

1,935,647 (

1 r 1,428,665 081,941) 381,207 3 732

t2.847.r3 3 1.493.t32 1.37 .937 2.578.187 18.290.389

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement'
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crTY oF ROLLING MEADOWS, [LrNOrS

Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balance to

Net Assets - Governmental Activities

December 31, 2011

Total Governmental Fund Balances

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets

are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial

resources and therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Internal Service Funds are used by the City to charge the costs of vehicle and

equipment management and employee compensated absences to individual funds

The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in

the governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current

period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Unamortized Bond Issuance Costs

Net Pension Obligation Payable

Compensated Absences Payable

General Obligation Bonds Payable - Net
Net Other Post-Employment Benefit Payable

Accrued Interest Payable

Net Assets of Governmental Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

I

$ 3,480,732

120,073,363

10,780,044

98,568
(4,687,172)
(4,521,729)

(17,021,255)
(1,152,979)

426)

107.023.146



crTY oF ROLLTNG MEADOWS, [LrNOrS

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

General

Motor
Fuel

Tax
Debt

Service Nonmajor Totals

Revenues

Taxes

Intergovernmental

Licenses and Permits

Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Current
General Government
Public Safety

Highways and Streets

Public Works
Health/V/elfare and Culture
Economic Development

Capital Outlay
Debt Service

Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Disposal of Capital Assets

Transfers In

Transfers Out

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

311,782 610.243 (920.353\ t.672

2,090,525 (270,826) (915,631) (1,810,147) (906,079)

$ 18,841,006
2,564,290

960,952
2,070,328

963,836
7,133

626,169

1,363,301 1,934,906

351,326

376,565

232,725

474

112,926

22,139,273
3,632,551

1,337,517

2,070,328
1,196,561

7,758
740,868

716,935

l5l
1,773

26,033,714 718,859 1,3 63.301 3.008.922 31.124.796

3,316,082
I 8,5 I 1,698

2,417,384
9,537

270

290,785

698,900

41,417

758,008

845,585

41,860

1,363,721

717,170
130.955

3,357,499
19,269,706

1,136,370

2,417,394
9,537

42,130
2,062,621

2,972,!70
76s.t30

2,255,000
634.t75

24,254,971 989,685 2,889,17 5 3,898,716 32,032,547

t,778,743 (270,826\ (1,s2s.87Ð (889.794\ (90',1.751)

1,672

337,400
(27,290)

610,243 465,260
(1,385,613)

1,672

1,412,903
(1,412,903)

724 699 491 733 690 l9l 547 ll

1.852.801 1.428.665 0 81 94r ?81.207 3.480.732)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

to the Statement of Activities - Governmental Activities

Year Ended December 31,2011

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities

are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the

Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated

useful lives and reported as depreciation expense'

Capital Outlays
Depreciation Expense

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to

governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal on long-term

debt consumes the current financial resources of the governmental funds.

Additions to Net Pension Obligation Payable

Additions to Compensated Absences Payable

Additions to Net Other Post-Employment Benefit Payable

Retirement of Debt
Amorlizati on of Premium
Amortization of Bond Issue Costs

Changes to accrued interest on long-term debt in the Statement of Activities

do not require the use ofcurrent financial resources and, therefore, are not

reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.

Internal service funds are used by the City to charge the costs of vehicle and equipment

management and employee compensated absences to individual funds.

The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is

reported with governmental activities.

Changes in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement'

10

$ (90ó,079)

2,239,260
(1,707,675)

(380,233)

(506,460)

(280,552)
2,972,770

24,265
( 15,090)

3,496

23.269

r.466.371



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

See tr'ollowing Page



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Funds

I)ecember 31, 2011

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise
Governmental

Activities

Utilities
Refuse

Collection Totals
Internal
Service

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and Investments

Receivables - Net of Allowances - Accounts

Inventories
Prepaids

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets

Nondepreciable
Depreciable

Accumulated Depreciation

Other Assets

Investment in Joint Venture

Unamortized Bond Issuance Costs

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Unearned/Deferred Revenue

Compensated Absences Payable

Capital Leases Payable

General Obligation Bonds Payable

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Deposits Payable

Compensated Absences Payable

Capital Leases Payable

General Obligation Bonds Payable

Total Noncurrent Liabi lities
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets - Net of Related Debt

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

3,175.441 674.t22 3.849.563

$ 2,091,665

1,03 6,010

45,741
2,025

241,959

387,797

2,333,624

r,423,807
45,741

46,397

1,349,665

4,842

1,518,87444,366

2.873.381

387,251

21,267,472
,r0.992.297)

598,613
(297,664)

387,25r
21,860,085

fl 1.289.961)

1,083,270

20,757,987

02,702,232\

2.157 2.405

457,171 2,157 459.328 2,405

11,113,597 303.106 tt.416,703 9.141.430

14.289.038 977.228 t5.266.266 12,014,811

32,176

10,656,426 300.949 10.957,375 9.t39.025

448,542

8,629

448,542

10,786

291,399

72,792
27,903

323,575

72,792

39,495

424,219

17,592 4,736

52,634

65.000258,358 29.680 288,038

644.452 79,448 723.900 546,589

342,927

464,394

342,927

587,786

303,1 10

82,989

232,079

70.000

t23,392

2.056,464 163.830 2.220.294

2,863,785 287.222 3,151,007 688,1 78

3.s08.237 366,670 3.874.907 1,234,767

8,341,604
2,439,t97

107,439

503.1 l9
8,449,043
2,942,3r6

8,719,312

2.060.732

r 0.780.801 610.558 I I -39r -3s9 10.780.044

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADO\üS, ILINOIS

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets - Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise
Governmental

Activities

Utilities
Refuse

Collection Totals
Internal
Service

Operating Revenues

Charges for Services
Miscellaneous
Interfund Services

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses

Administration
Public Safefy

Public'Works
Operations

Depreciation and AmortizaTion
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Disposal of Capital Assets
Other Income
Interest Income

lnterest Expense

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

1,586,407

5,962,837
7,690,989 2,550,654 10,241,643 7,549,244

871,634 768,939 1,640,573 6,304,265

150,997

214,563

s 7,526,668
164,32r

2,397,820
152,834

9,924,488
317,155

575,000

4,594,114
592,476

1,457 ,070
57.578 905,661

6,633,224 2,283,587 8,916,911 7,575,486

575,000

6,051,184

650,054

057 765 267

585

007.584)

067 I 32

585
(1 15,399)

34,192

39,254

7t3
(24.648)(7.81s)

(106,999) (7,815) (114,814) 49,511

950,766 259,252 1,210,019 23,269

9,830,035 351,306 10,191,341 10,756,775

10.780,80r 610.558 l1.391.359 10.780.044

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise

utilities
Refuse

Collection

Governmental
Activities
Internal
ServiceTotals

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers and Users
Interfund Services Provided
Payments to Suppliers
Payments to Employees

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers Out

Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Disposal of Capital Assets
Purchase of Capital Assets
Principal Paid on Debt
Interest Paid on Debt

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
lnterest Received

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash

Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income

Income to Net Cash Provided by
(Used in) Operating Activities:

Depreciation and Amortization
Other Income
(Increase) Decrease in Current Assets

$ 7,818,609 2,509,688 10,328,297

(4,823,814)
(t,256,984)

(r,759,784)
(47t,5r0)

(6,583,598)
(r,728,494)

8,883,945
(5,493,193)
(1,295,571)

1,737,8ll 278,394 2,016,205 2,095,181

(483,727)
(489,210)
( 107,584)

(28,620)
(7,815)

(483,727)
(5 17,830)
(l 15,399)

34,192
(524,98r)
(230,792)
(24,648)

(1,080,521) (36,435) (1,t16,956\ (746,229)

585 585 713

657,875

1,433,790

241,959 899,834

1,433,790

1,349,665

2,091,66s 241,959 2,333,624 1,349,665

1 ,057 ,7 65 267 ,067 1,324,832 (26,242)

592,476 57,578 650,054

127,620

(40,050)
(40,966)
(5,285)

86,654
(45,335)

905,66r
39,254

1,295,447

(l 18,939)Increase (Decrease) in Current Liabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1.73''Ì.811 278,394 2.016.205 2,095,181

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ROLLING ME.{DOWS, ILINOIS

Statement of Net Assets - Fiduciary Funds
December 3lr20ll

Pension
Trust Agency

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

lnvestments

U.S. Government and Agency Obligations
Corporate Bonds

Mutual Funds

Common Stock

Insurance Company Contracts

Receivables

Accrued Interest

Due from Other Governments

Due from Other Funds

Prepaids

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable

Deposits Payable

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Held in Trust for Pension Benefits

$ 6,181,719

12,243,953

8,600,309
16,518,793

2,553,876
1g 1,g3g

108,357

36,513

2,42r

231,158

82,500

46,427,780 313,659

59422

22,594

82,500
231 158

313,659

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

T4



CITY OF ROLLTNG MEADOWS, ILTNOIS

Statement of Changes in Net Assets - Fiduciary Funds
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Additions
Contributions - Employer
Contributions - Plan Members

Miscellaneous
Total Contributions

Investment Earnings

Interest Earned

Net Change in Fair Value

Less Investment Expenses

Net Investment Income

Total Additions

Deductions

Administration
Benefits and Refunds

TotalDeductions

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

Pension

Trust

s 4,459,152
886,945

2,149

5,348,246

1,497 ,040
(1,091,262)

405,778

(127 ,719)
278,059

5,626,305

100,273

4,429,661

4,529,934

1,096,371

45,308,815

46.405.186

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 3l,20ll

NOTE 1 _ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Rolling Meadows, Illinois, is a municipal corporation and operates under the City Manager

form of government. The City's major operations include police and fire protection, highways and

streets maintenance and reconstruction, planning and zoning services, public improvements, economic

development, water, se\Mer, refuse collection, stormwater management, and general administrative

services.

The government-wide financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible

for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and

Interpretations). Governments are also required to follow the pronouncements of the Financial

Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued through November 30, 1989 (when applicable) that do not

conflict with or contradict GASB Pronouncements. Although the City has the option to apply FASB

pronouncements issued after that date to its business-type activities and enterprise funds, the City has

chosen not to do so. The more significant of the City's accounting policies established in GAAP and

used by the City are described below.

REPORTING ENTITY

The City's financial reporting entity comprises the following:

Primary Government: City of Rolling Meadows

Discretely Presented Component Unit: City of Rolling Meadows Public Library

In determining the financial reporting entity, the City complies with the provisions of GASB Statement

No. 39, "Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units - an Amendment of GASB

Statement No. 14," and includes all component units that have a significant operational or financial

relationship with the City.
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADO}YS, LLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2011

NOTE 1 _ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES _ CONtiNUEd

REPORTING ENTITY - Continued

Police Pension Employees Retirement System

the Potice Pension Employees Retirement System

se employees and is governed by a five-member
's Mayor, one elected pension beneficiary and two

ard. The participants are required to contribute a

percentage of salary as established by state statute and the city is obligated to fund all remaining

ppERS costs based upon actuarial viuations. The State of Illinois is authorized to establish benefit

levels and the City is authorized to approve the actuarial assumptions used in the determination of

contribution levels. Although it is legaliy separate from the City, the PPERS is reported as if it were

part of the primary gou..nri.nt because itr rõt. purpose is to provide retirement benefits for the City's

police ..pioy..r. The PPERS is reported as a pension trust fund.

Firefighters' Pension Employees Retirement System

ghters' Pension Employees Retirement System

employees and is governed by a five-member

City's Mayor, two elected from active participants

bers of the Fund. The participants are required to

contribute a percentage of salary as established by state statute and the City is obligated to fund all

remaining FpERS coJs based upon actuarial valu rtions. The State of Illinois is authorized to establish

benefit levels and the City is authorized to approve the actuarial assumptions used in the determination

of contribution levels. Alihough it is legallyìèparate from the City, the FPERS is reported as if it were

part of the primary gou.*..ãt becausã its sole purpose is to provide retirement benefits for the city's

r*o* firefighters. fne f'pBRS is reported as a pent ion trust fund'

Discretely Presented Component Unit

Discretely presented component units are separate legal entities that meet the component unit criteria

described u-boue but do not meet the criteria for bler ding.

City of Rolling Meadows Public Library

The City of Rolling Meadows Public Library op

The Public Library's Board is appointed by the

bonded debt without the City's approval. The

Separate audited financial statements for the Publi'

offices at 3110 Martin Lane, Rolling Meadows, Illinois 60008.
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 3lr20ll

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES _ CONtiNUEd

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Government-Wide Statements

The City's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the City as a whole) and

fund financial statements (reporting the City's major funds). Both the government-wide and fund

financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business type. The City's
police and fire protection, highways and streets maintenance and reconstruction, planning and zoning

services, public improvements, economic development, and general administrative services are

classified as govemmental activities. The City's water, se\Mer, refuse collection, and stormwater

management services are classified as business-type activities.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, both the governmental and business-type activities

columns are: (a) presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b) reported on a full accrual,

economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term

debt and obligations. The City's net assets are reported in three parts: invested in capital assets, net of
related debt; restricted net assets; and unrestricted net assets. The City first utilizes restricted resources

to finance qualifying activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the City's

functlons and business-type activities (general government, public safety, highways and streets, etc.)

The functions are supported by general government revenues (property, sales and use taxes, certain

intergovernmental revenues, frnes, permits and charges, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross

expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues, which include 1) charges to customers

or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benef,rt from foods, services, or privileges provided by a

given function or sègment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational

or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.

The net costs (by function or business-type activity) are normally covered by general revenue (property

tax, sales tax, intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc)'

The City does not allocate indirect costs. An administrative service fee is charged by the General Fund

to the olher operating funds that is eliminated like a reimbursement (reducing the revenue and expense

in the Generai Fund) to recover the direct costs of General Fund services provided (finance, personnel,

purchasing, legaI, techno lo gy management, etc. ).

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in the

City's net assets resulting from the current year's activities.
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crrY oF ROLLTNG MEADOWS, ILINOTS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 3lr20ll

NOTE 1 _ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES _ CONtiNUEd

BASIS OF PRESENTATION - Continued

Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the City are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements'

Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its

assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into

three major categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. The emphasis in fund financial

statemenis is on the majorfunds in either the governmental or business-type activities categories.

Nonmajor funds by category are summarized into a single column. GASB Statement No. 34 sets forth

minimum criteria (p.r..ntuge of the assets, tiabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund

category or the gou.*-.trtãl and enterprise combined) for the determination of major funds. The City

elect-iveiy added funds, as major funds, which either have debt outstanding or a specific or community

focus. T'he nonmajor funds àre combined in a column in the fund financial statements. A fund is

considered major iiit is the primary operating fund of the City or meets the following criteria:

Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that

individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least l0 percent of the

corresponding total for all funds of that category or type; and

Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the

individual governmental fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the

corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

The various funds are reported by generic classiflrcation within the financial statements. The following

fund types are used by the CitY:

Governmental Funds

The focus of the governmental funds' measurement (in the fund statements) is upon determination of
financial positionãnd changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources)

rather than upon net income. The following is a description of the governmental funds of the City:

General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial resources

except those required to be accõunted for in another fund. The General Fund is a major fund'

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally

,.ìtrirtrd to expenditures for specified purposes. Thr City maintains one major special revenue fund, the

Motor Fuel Tax Fund, which is used to account for allotments of motor fuel taxes from the State of

Illinois made on a per capita basis. The City uses this fund to maintain and construct transportation-

related community needs, such as streets, bridges, and traffic signals. The City also maintains four

nonmajor speciali.rr.nr. funds, the 911 Emergency Telephone Fund, the Foreign Fire Tax Fund, the

Enhanced DUI Enforcement Fund and the Asset Seizure Fund.
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

BASIS OF PRESENTATION - Continued

Fund Financial Statements - Continued

Governmental Funds - Continued

Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of funds for the periodic payment of
principal and interest on general long-term debt. The Debt Service Fund is treated as a major fund and

is used to account for the payment of interest and principal on the City's general long-term debt

obligations for the governmental activities.

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by business-type/proprietary funds).
The City maintains seven nonmajor capital projects funds, the Local Road Fund, the Transit Oriented
Area Development Fund, the TIF #l Kirchoff/Meadow Fund, the TIF #2 KirchofflOwl Fund, the TIF
#3 V/oodfreld, the Plum Grove Road Fund and the Fire Station Fund.The Fire Station closed in 20Il
per FY2011 adopted budget.

Proprietary Funds

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes in net

assets, financial position, and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are

those similar to businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the proprietary funds

of the City:

Enterprise Funds are required to account for operations for which a fee is charged to extemal users for
goods or services and the activity (a) is financed with debt that is solely secured by a pledge of the net

revenues, (b) has third party requirements that the cost of providing services, including capital costs, be

recovered with fees and charges or (c) establishes fees and charges based on a pricing policy designed

to recover similar costs. The City maintains two major enterprise funds, the Utilities Fund and the

Refuse Collection Fund. The Utilities Fund is used to account for all resources collected and used to
provide water and sanitary services to the City as well as to account for the resources collected to
finance storm water runoff and creek bank improvements. The Refuse Collection Fund is used to
account for all the resources collected and used to provide waste collection and disposal services.
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CITY OF ROLLTNG MEADO\ilS, ILINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES _ ContinuEd

BASIS OF PRESENTATION - Continued

Fund Financial Statements - Continued

Proprietary Funds - Continued

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by an

activity to other departments, funds or component units of the City on a cost-reimbursement basis. The

City maintains five internal services funds, the Municipal Garage Fund, the Vehicle Replacement Fund,

the Buildings and Land Fund, the Liability Insurance Fund, and the Health Insurance Fund. The

Municipal Garage Fund is used to account for the resources collected from other City departments used

to provide maintenance to City vehicles and major equipment/machinery. The Vehicle Replacement

Fund is used to account for the resources collected from other City departments used in replacing City
vehicles and major equipment. The Buildings and Land Fund is used to account for the resources

collected from other City departments used for the purchase of land or buildings, or the remodeling,

renovation, and expansion of current buildings. The Liability Insurance Fund is used to account for the

resources collected from other City departments used to manage funding of the

propertylcasualty/workers compensation claims. The Health Insurance Fund is used to account for
resources collected from other City departments to fund the City's portion of health insurance

premiums as well as those of retired employees.

The City's internal service funds are presented in the proprietary funds hnancial statements. Because

the principal users of the intemal services are the City's governmental activities, the financial

statements of the internal service funds are consolidated into the governmental column when presented

in the government-wide financial statements. To the extent possible, the cost of these services is

reported in the appropriate functional activity (general government, public safety, highways and streets,

etc.).

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and therefore are

not available to support City programs. The reporting focus is on net assets and changes in net assets

and is reported using accounting principles similar to proprietary funds.

Pension Trust Funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity for pension benefit

payments. The Police Pension Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources to pay retirement and

other related benehts for sworn members of the City's police force. The Firefighters' Pension Fund

accounts for the accumulation of resources to pay retirement and other related benefits for sworn

members of the City's Fire Department.

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a purely custodial capacity. The City's

Compliance Deposits Fund is used to account for money paid to the City pursuant to zoning and

building codes.
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crTY oF ROLLTNG MEADOWS, ILTNOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 20ll

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES _ CONtiNUEd

BASIS OF PRESENTATION - Continued

Fund Financial Statements - Continued

Fiduciary Funds - Continued

The City's fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type (pension

trust aná agency). din.. by definition these assets are being hetd for the benefit of a third party (other

local governments, private parties, pension participants, etc.) and cannot be used to address activities or

obliga-tions of the City, these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide statements.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "which" transactions are recorded within the various

financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" transactions are recorded regardless of the

measurement focus aPPlied.

Measurement Focus

On the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and the State , both governmental

and business-like activities are presented using the economic re ent focus as defined

below. In the fund financial statements, the icurrent financial rement focus or the

..economic resoufces" measurement focus is used as appropriate.

All governmental funds utilize a "current financial resources"

finaniial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balanc

present sources and uses of available spendable financjal_resoufces

use fund balance as their measure of availabte spendable financial resources at the end of the period.

All proprietary and pension trust funds utilize an "economic rement focus' The

urro'*ting objectives of this measufement focus are the determin income, changes in

net assets (oi cost recovery), financial position, and cash flow liabilities (whether

current or noncuÍent) assoóíated with thìir activities are reported. Proprietary and pension trust fund

equity is classified as net assets.

Agency funds are not involved in the measurement of results of operations; therefore, measurement

focus is not applicable to them.
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crrY oF ROLLTNG MEADOWS, ILTNOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONtiNUEd

MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - CONtiNUEd

Basis of Accounting

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities, both governmental and

business-like activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of

accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is

incurred oi .rorro*ic asset.tsed. Reuenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from

exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognizedwhen the exchange takes place'

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modifred accrual basis of
accounting. Under this modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
.,measurable and available." Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the

amount. Available means collectible within the current period or within sixty days after year-end. The

City recognizes property taxes when they become both measurable and available in accordance with

GASB Cùification^Seciion p70. A sixty-day availability period is used for revenue recognition for all

other govemmental fund revenues. Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded when the

relateffund liability is incurred, except for general obligation bond principal and interest which are

recognized when due.

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept under the modified accrual basis, those revenues

tur.ãitiUt.1o accrual aie property taxes, sales and use taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, interest revenue,

and ciarges for services. AIL other revenues are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are

not measurable until received in cash.

All proprietary, pension trust and agency funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting. Under the

accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the

liability is incurred or economic asset used.

proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating

,.uôn r., ánd expenses gãnerally result from provir ing services and producing and delivering goods in

connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of

the City's enterprise funds ánd of the City's internal service funds are charges to customers for sales

and services. The City also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover

the cost of connecting new cuJtomers to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and

intemal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation

on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this def,rnition are reported as nonoperating

revenues and expenses.
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADO\YS, LLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 3l,20ll

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONtiNUEd

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY - Continued

Cash and Investments

For the purpose of the Statement of Net Assets, cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on

hand, demand deposits, and cash with fiscal agent. For the purpose of the proprietary funds "Statement

of Cash Flows", cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, cash

with fiscal agent, and all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates

fair value. Securities traded on national exchanges are valued at the last reported sales price.

Investments that do not have any established market, if any, are reported at estimated fair value'

Receivables

In the government-wide financial statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and

not yef received. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and

the periodic aging of accounts receivable. Major receivables balances for governmental activities

include property taxes, sales and use taxes, franchise taxes, and grants. Business-type activities report

utility charges as their major receivables.

Interfund Receivables, Payables and Activity

Interfund activity is reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are

reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon

consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues

and expenditures/expenses. Internal service fund services provided and used are not eliminated in the

pror.rr of consolidation. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate

benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are

treated ai transfers. Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are netted as part of the

reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements.

Prepaids/Inventories

prepaids/inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in/first-out (FIFO)

-.ihod. The costs of governmental fund-type prepaids/inventories are recorded as expenditures when

consumed rather than when purchased. Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future

accounting periods and are recorded as prepaids in both the government-wide and fund financial

statements.
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crTY oF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILTNOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 3l,20ll

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CoNtiNuEd

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY - Continued

Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $25,000 or more are reported at historical

.or1 or estimJted historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of the date

received. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of
an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement

focus. General capital assets are long-lived assets of the City as a whole. When purchased, such assets

are recorded as expenditures in the govemmental funds and capitalized. Infrastructure such as streets,

traffic signals and signs are capitalized, The valuation basis for general capital assets are historical cost,

or where historical cost is not available, estimated historical cost based on replacement costs.

Capital assets in the proprietary funds are capitalized in the fund in which they are utilized' The

valuation bases for prõprietary fund capital assets are the same as those used for the general capital

assets. Donated capital ãssets are capitali zed at estimated fair market value on the date donated.

Depreciation on all assets is computed and recorded using the straight-line method of depreciation over

the following estimated useful lives:

Land Improvements

Buildings

Vehicles and Equipment

Water and Sewerage Infrastructure

Other Infrastructure

7 -31.5 Years

7 - 45 Years

15 - 60 Years

5 - 20 Years

5 - 15 Years

Compensated Absences

The City accrues accumulated unpaid vacation and associated employee-related costs when earned (or

estimated to be earned) by the employee. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 16, no liability is

recorded for nonvesting accumulation rights to receive sick pay benefîts. However, a liability is
recognized for that portion of accumulated sick leave that is estimated to be taken as "terminal leave"

prior to retirement pursuant to the City's personnel rules and union contracts.

All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial

statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if they have

mafured, for example, aS a result of employee resignations and retirements.
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crTY oF ROLLING MEADOWS, [LrNOrS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2011

NOTE 1 _ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY - Continued

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets, Bond
premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds

using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or
discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the

related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as

well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as

other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources

while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other hnancing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not

withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Unearned/Deferred Revenue

Govemmental funds report unearned/deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that

are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental f,rnds also

defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned.

Fund Equity

In the government-wide financial statements, equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three

components:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt-Consists of capital assets

including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and

reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or
other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or

improvement of those assets.

Restricted net assets-Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the

use either bV (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors,

or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) law through

constitutional provisions or enabling legislations.

Unrestricted net assets-All other net assets that do not meet the definition
of "restricted" or "invested in capital assets, net of related debt".
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NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. Annual
appropriated budgets are adopted for all funds, except the Foreign Fire Tax, the Asset Seizure, and the

pension trust funds. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

All departments of the City submit requests for appropriation to the City Manager so that a budget may
be prepared. The budget is prepared by fund, function and activity, and includes information on the

prior years, current year estimates, and requested appropriations for the next fiscal year.

The proposed budget is presented to the governing body for review. The governing body holds public
hearings and may add to, subtract from, or change appropriations. A final budget must be prepared and

adopted prior to December 31.

The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund;

however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures/expenses of any fund must be approved by the

governing body.

During the year, supplemental appropriations were necessary. The amounts reflected in the financial
statements represent the original and final amended budget.
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NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY _ CONtiNUCd

EXCESS OF ACTUAL EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES OVER BTJDGET IN INDIVIDUAL
FUNDS

The foltowing funds had an excess of actual expenditures/expenses, exclusive of depreciation, over

budget as of the date of this report:

Fund/Fund Number Excess

Available fund balances and transfers from other funds funded the overexpenditures.

TIF #3 Woodfield (50)

Health lnsurance (45)
$

DEFICIT FUND EQUITY

The foltowing funds had deficit fund equity as of the date of this report:

Fund/Fund Number

Debt Service Ø7)
911 Emergency Telephone (04)

Local Road (61)

TIF #2 Kirchoff/Owl (37)

Plum Grove Road (82)

Muncipal Garage (14)

1,393

287,266

Deficit

$ l8l,94l
219,958

399,371

682,428

49,964

47,717

NOTE 3 _ DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds except the pension

trust funds. Each fund type's portion of this pool is displayed on the financial statements as "cash and

investments", In addition, investments are separatelyheld by several of the City's funds. The deposits

and investments of the pension trust funds are held separately from those of other funds,
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

The Illinois Funds is an investment pool managed by the Illinois Public Treasurer's Office which

allows governments within the State to pool their funds for investment purposes. Although not

registered with the SEC, Illinois Funds operates in a manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Investment

Company Act of 1940. Investments in Illinois Funds are valued at the share price, the price for which

the investment could be sold.

The Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund (IMET) is a non-for-profit investment trust formed pursuant

to the Illinois Municipal Code. IMET is managed by a Board of Trustees elected from the participating

members. IMET is not registered with the SEC as an Investment Company. Investments in IMET are

valued at the share price, the price for which the investment could be sold.

Permitted Deposits and Investments - Statutes authorize the City to make deposits/invest in commercial

banks, savings and loan institutions, obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies, obligations of
States and their political subdivisions, credit union shares, repurchase agreements, commercial paper

rated within the three highest classifications by at least two standard rating services, Illinois Funds and

the Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund. The deposits and investments of the Pension Funds are held

separately from those of other City funds. Statutes authorize the Pension Funds to make deposits/invest

in interest bearing direct obligations of the United States of America; obligations that are fully
guaranteed or insured as to the payment of principal and interest by the United States of America;

bonds, notes, debentures, or similar obligations of agencies of the United States of America; savings

accounts or certificates of deposit issued by banks or savings and loan associations chartered by the

United States of America or by the State of Illinois, to the extent that the deposits are insured by the

agencies or instrumentalities of the federal government; State of Illinois Bonds; pooled accounts

managed by the Illinois Public Treasurer, or by banks, their subsidiaries or holding companies, in

accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois; bonds or tax anticipation warrants of any county,

township, or municipal corporation of the State of Illinois direct obligations of the State of Israel;

money market mutual funds managed by investment companies that are registered under the federal

Investment Company Act of 1940 and the Illinois Securities Law of 1953 and are diversified, open-

ended management investment companies, provided the portfolio is limited to specified restrictions;

general accounts of life insurance companies and separate accounts of life insurance companies

provided the investment in separate accounts does not exceed ten percent of the pension fund's net

ãssets. Pension funds of at least 5 million that have appointed an investment advisor may, through that

investment advisor, invest up to thirty-five percent of the plan's net assets in common and preferred

stocks that meet specific restrictions.

City - Interest Rate Risk, Credit Risk, Custodial Credit Risk and Concentration Risk

Deposits. At year-end, the carrying amount of the City's deposits for governmental, business-type and

agency activities totaled 53,463,684 and the bank balances totaled $3,609,606. Additionally, the City

has $32,728 invested in the Illinois Funds and $1,332,951 invested in the IMET Fund.
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

City - Interest Rate Risk, Credit Risk, Custodial Credit Risk and Concentration Risk - Continued

Interest Rate Risk.Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its interests rate risk
by structuring its investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing
operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on the open market prior to maturity, and by
investing operating funds primarily in shorter term securities, money market mutual funds, or similar
investment pools. The City's investments in the Illinois Funds and the IMET Fund have an average
maturity of less than one year.

Credit Risfr. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. Besides investing in security instruments authorized under State Statute, the City's
investment policy further states investments are limited to U.S. government obligations; U.S.
government agency obligations which have a liquid market value with a readily determinable market
value; certificates of deposit and other evidences of deposit at financial institutions, bankers'
acceptances and commercial paper, rated in the highest tier by a nationally recognized rating agency;
investment-grade obligations of state and local goveÍìments and public authorities; repurchase
agreements whose underlying purchased securities consist of money market mutual funds regulated by
the Securities and Exchange Commission and whose portfolios consist only of dollar-denominated
securities; local government investment pools; any other investments allowed by Illinois Complied
Statutes. At year-end, the City's investment in the Illinois Funds was rated AAAm by Standard &
Poor's. IMET's l-3 year government bond fund receives Standard & Poor's AAAf rating for credit
quality and Standard & Poor's Sl rating for volatility, or interest rate risk.

Custodial Credit Risk. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
City's deposits may not be returned to it. Per the City's investment policy, the amount of collateral
provided shall not be less than 110 percent of the fair market value of the net amount of public funds
secured. Pledged collateral will be held in safekeeping by an independent third party depository
designated by the City and evidenced by a safekeeping agreement. In accordance with its investment
policy, all City deposits with financial institutions are fully insured and collateralized.

For an investment, this is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City will not be

able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party.The City's investments in the Illinois Funds and the IMET Fund are not subject to
custodial credit risk.
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

City - Interest Rate Risk, Credit Risk, Custodial Credit Risk and Concentration Risk - Continued

Concentration Risk. This is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the City's investment in a
single issuer. The City's investment policy states that the City shall diversify its investments to avoid
incurring unreasonable risks regarding specific security types and/or individual institutions.
Furthermore, no financial institution shall hold more than fifty percent (50%) of the City's investment
portfolio, exclusive of U.S. Treasury securities held in safekeeping. Commercial paper shall not exceed

twenty-five percent (25%) of the City's investment portfolio. At December 31,2011, all of the City's
investments are in compliance with the guidelines outlined above in the City's investment policy. At
year-end, the City's investment in the IMET Fund is over 5 percent of the total cash and investment
portfolio.

Police Pension Fund - Interest Rate Risk, Credit Risk, Custodial Credit Risk and Concentration
Risk

Deposits. At year-end, the carrying amount of the Pension Fund's deposits totaled $3,308,880 and the

bank balances totaled 53,311,236.

Investments. The Pension Fund assumes any callable securities will not be called. The Fund has the

following investment fair values and maturities:

Investment Type
Fair

Value

Investment Maturities (in Years)
Less Than More Than

I 1to5 6tol0 l0

U. S. Treasury Notes
U.S. Government Backed Securities
Tennessee Valley Authorities
Governmental National Mortgage
Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Federal Home Loan Bank
Federal National Mortgage
Money Market Mutual Funds

$ 2,537,762
4,334,527

314,925
131,603
276,142

1,101,085

1,864,190
709,337

292,462
139,684

1,331
109,337

849,032
1,369,871

66,838
34,356

120,666
135,5r4

1,396,268
2,463,791

134,021
480,445
34,951

361,781
314,925

64,765
107,765

499,974
r,692,394

11,269,571 1,142,814 2,
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

Police Pension Fund - Interest Rate Risk, Credit Risk, Custodial Credit Risk and Concentration
Risk - Continued

Interest Rate Risk. In accordance with the Fund's investment policy, the Fund limits its exposure to
interest rate risk by structuring the portfolio to provide liquidity while at the same time matching
investment maturities to projected fund liabilities. The Fund's investment policy provides no additional
limitations related to interest rate risk.

Credit rRisfr. The Fund helps limit its exposure to credit risk by primarily investing in securities issued
by the United States Government andlor its agencies that are implicitly guaranteed by the United States

Government. The Fund's investment policy establishes criteria for allowable investments; those criteria
follow the requirements of the Illinois Pension Code. The investments in the securities of the U.S.
government agencies were all rated triple A by Standard & Poor's or by Moody's Investors Services or
were small issues that were unrated. The following is a schedule of unrated investments by investment
type:

Investment Tvpe Total Value AAA Rate
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp $276,142
FederalNationalMortgageAssociation $1,864,190

$191,602
$306,005

Unrated
$84,540
$ 1,558,185

Custodial Credit R¿sË. For deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure the Fund's deposits
may not be returned to it. At December, 31,2011,53,067,236 of the bank balance was uninsured and
uncollateralized. The Fund's investment policy does not require pledging of collateral for all bank
balances in excess of federal depository, since flow-through FDIC is available for the Fund's deposits
with financial institutions. For investments, the Fund limits its exposure to custodial credit risk by
utilizing an independent third party institution, selected by the Fund, to act as custodian for its securities
and collateral.

Concentrøtion Risk. At December 31, 2011, the Fund has over 5o/o of plan net assets invested in Fifth
Third money market fund $709,336, as well as various agency securities as indicated in the above table.
Agency investments represent a large portion of the portfolio; however, the investments are diversified
by maturity date and as mentioned earlier, are backed by the issuing organization. Although unlike
treasuries, agency securities do not have the "full faith and credit" backing of the U.S. Government,
they are considered to have a moral obligation of implicit backing and are supported by Treasury lines
of credit and increasingly stringent federal regulation. The Fund's investment policy specifies "the
Board of Trustees has consciously diversified the aggregate fund to ensure adverse or unexpected
results will not have an excessively detrimental impact on the entire portfolio." The Fund's investment
policy has state diversification is necessary to meet the Fund's goal of safety of principal and
reasonable return. The Pension Board has diversified its equity mutual fund holdings as follows:

Vanguard Institutional - 55,7 42,652
Harbor International - $2,232,684

Blair Williams - $575,879
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

Firefìghters' Pension Fund - Interest Rate Risk, Credit Risk, Custodial Credit Risk and

Concentration Risk

Deposits. At year-end, the carrying amount of the Fund's deposits totaled $2,872,790 and the bank

balances totaled $2,876,658.

Investments. The Fund has the following investment fair values and maturities:

Investment Maturities in Years

Fair
Value

MoreThan

Investment I 1to5 6to10 10

U. S. Treasury Notes

U. S. Treasury Bonds

Governmental National Mortgage

Federal Home Loan Mortgage

Federal Home Loan Bank

Federal National Mortgage

Federal Farm Credit Bureau

Tennessee Valley Strip

Mutual Funds

Corporate Bonds

Insurance Contracts

Illinois Metropolitan lnvestment Fund

537,999 269,094 486,560

864,765

447 15,838

265,956

209,900 698,002 679,476

780,068

140,936

532,324

536,881

r,204,976 2,278,727 782,079

181,839

49

s 1,293,653

864,765

16,285

265,956

1,587,378

1,316,949

140,936

532,324

7,258,241

4,265,782

181,839

49

7,258,241

17,724,157 7,978,128 l, 684,417 4,266,126 3,795,486

Interest Rate Risk.Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair

value of an investment. The Fund's investment policy does not address interest rate risk.
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

Firefighters' Pension Fund - Interest Rate Risk, Credit Risk, Custodial Credit Risk and

Concentration Risk - Continued

Credit Rlsfr. The Fund's investment policy helps limit exposure to credit risk by primarily investing in
securities issued by the United States Government and/or its agencies that are implicitly guaranteed by

the United States Government. The investments in securities of the U.S. agencies were all rated triple
A by Standard &. Poor's and by Moody's Investors Services. IMET's l-3 year government bond fund

receives Standard & Poor's AAAf rating for credit quality and Standard & Poor's 51 rating for
volatility, or interest rate, risk.

Custodial Credit Rlsfr. The Fund's investment policy does not limit custodial credit risk for deposits. At
December 31, 2011, the entire amount of the bank balance of the deposits was covered by federal

depository or equivalent insurance. The Fund's investment policy does not limit custodial credit risk for

investments. At December 3I, 2011, the U.S. Govemment Securities are categorized as insured,

registered, or held by the Fund or its agent in the Fund's name.

Foreign Currency Rls/r. The Fund's investment policy does not address exposure to foreign currency

risk.

Concentration Risk. The Fund does not have a formal written policy with regards to concentration

credit risk for investments. At December 31,2011, the Firefighters' Pension Fund has over 5o/o of net

plan assets available for retirement benefits (other than U.S. Government guaranteed obligations)

invested in Ishares TR Russell 3000 of $3,716,566.

PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes for 20ll attachas an enforceable lien on January I,2011, on property values assessed as

of the same date. Taxes are levied by December of the subsequent fiscal year (by passage of a Tax Levy

Ordinance). Tax bills are prepared by Cook County and are payable in two installments, on or about

March I and September 1 during the following year. The County collects such taxes and remits them

periodically. Based upon collection histories, the City has provided an allowance for uncollectible

property taxes equivalent to 5Yo and3|zo of the current year's levy for Debt Service Funds and all other

funds, respectively.
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

CAPITAL ASSETS

Governmental Activities

Governmental capital asset activity for the year was as follows:

Beginning
Balances

Nondepreciable Capital Assets

Land

Construction in Progress

s 99,236,456

1,60 g6 2,190,557

Increases Decreases

Ending

Balances

99,236,456

796,638 3,002.205

100,844,742 2.190,557 796,638 102.238,661

Depreciable Capital Assets

Land Improvements

Buildings

Infrastructure

Machinery and Equipment

Vehicles

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Land Improvements

Buildings

Infrastructure

Machinery and Equipment

Vehicles

1,367,862

12,929,367

42,820,796

3,491,160

873,247

260,478

236,597

1,367,862

12,929,367

43,694,043

3,751,638

5 218 169.681 5.53 3,134

66,075,403 1,370,322 169,681 67,276,044

495,119

6,035,874

24,643,820

2,427,401

4,257,606

46,748

457,745

1,586,28r

167,lll
354,293 169,681

541,867

6,493,619

26,230,101

2,594,512

4,442,218

Net Depreciable Capital Assets

Net Capital Assets

959,820 2,612,178 169,681 40,302,317

28,2 15,583 (1,24r,856) 26.973,727

129 94 701 8 129 t2 88

37,

Depreciation expense was charged to govemmental activities as follows:

Public Works S 1,707,675

Internal Service 904.503

2,612,r78

Depreciation of capital assets held by the City's internal service funds are charged to various functions

based on their usage ofthe assets.
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

CAPITAL ASSETS - Continued

Business-Type Activities

Business-type capital asset activity for the year was as follows:

Beginning
Balances

Nondepreciable Capital Assets

Construction in Progress s 209,993 269,191

Increases Decreases

Ending

Balances

91,933 387,251

Depreciable Capital Assets

Land Improvements

Building Improvements

Machinery and Equipment

Waterworks System

Sewerage System

Garage

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Land Improvements

Building Improvements

Machinery and Equipment

Waterworks System

Sewerage System

Garage

21,553,615 306,470

233,640

3,674,232

1,978,564

6,636,804

9,990,556

39,819

16,602

289,868

250,242

3,674,232

1,978,564

6,636,804

9,280,424

39,819

21,860,085

121,7'78

2,029,951

1,462,044

3,193,790

3,794,116
39,819

I 5,139

75,065

76,555

132,954

348,750

136,917

2,105,016

1,538,599

3,326,744

4,142,866

39,819

10,641,498 648,463

Net Depreciable Capital Assets 10,9t2,117 (3 41,993)

rt.289,961

10,5 70,r24

t22,lt0 (72,802) 9t,933 10.957.375

591,203

57,260

Net Capital Assets 11,

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type activities as follows:

Utilities
Refuse Collection

$

36
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

CAPITAL ASSETS - Continued

Component Unit - Public Library

Component Unit - Public Library capital asset activity for the year was as follows

Beginning

Balances Increases Decreases

Ending

Balances

Nondepreciable Capital Assets

Land

Depreciable Capital Assets

Buildings and Improvements

Furniture and Equipment
Books and Other Library Materials
Audio Visual Materials

Less Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and Improvements

Furniture and Equipment
Books and Other Library Materials
Audio Visual Materials

sl8 738 67 732

8,061,987 322,873 332,759 8,052,101

$ 608,893 608,893

4,325,887

593,483

2,623,879
6,424

248,717

9,422

273,960
49,377

4,325,997

590,485

2,598,636

537,093

2,14r,480
399,415

1,696,783

346,464

93,138

32,193
255,572

70,587

9,422

273,960

49,377

2,234,619

422,186
1,678,395

367,674

4,584,142 451,490 332,759 4,702,873

Net Depreciable Capital Assets 3,477,845 (128,617) 3,349,228

Net Capital Assets 4,086,738 (128,6t7) 3,958,121

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

Interfund Transfers

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to
the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from
the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and (3)
use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in
other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS - CONtiNUEd

Interfund Transfers - Continued

Interfund transfers for the year consisted of the following:

Transfer In Transfer Out Amount

Nonmajor Governmental General

General Nonmajor Governmental

Debt Service Nonmajor Governmental

Nonmajor Governmental Nonmajor Governmental

Interfund Balances

The composition of interfund balances as of the date of this report, is as follows

Receivable Fund Payable Fund

$ 27,290

337,400

610,243

43',7.970

1.4t2,903

Amount

Motor Fuel Tax

Motor Fuel Tax

General

Debt Service

Nonmajor Governmental

General

General

$ 634,495

196,762

1,429,226

18,409

I 8.104

Nonmajor Governmental

Police Pension

Firefighters' Pension

Interfund balances are advances in anticipation of receipts.
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

LONG-TERM DEBT

Note Payable

The City enters into loans payable to provide funds for operations. A note payable has been issued for
general government activities and is currently outstanding are as follows:

Issue

Fund Debt

Retired By
Beginning
Balances

Ending

Issuances Reti¡ements Balances

Note Payable of 2010 - Due in one

installment of $1,500,000, plus

interest at 1.30% due on April 30,

20tt.

Debt Service

Capital Projects

utilities $ 1,500,000 1,500,000

General Obligation Bonds

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major

capital facitities. General obligation bonds have been issued for govemmental and business-type

activities. General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the

City. General obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows:

Fund Debt Beginning Ending

Issue Retired By Balances Issuances Retirements Balances

General Obligation Bonds of
2002A ($4,885,000), due in annual

installments of $310,000 to
$485,000 plus interest at 4.40o/o to

4.90% tkough December 1,2018.

Debt

Service

(Property Tax) $ 3,325,000 355,000 2,970,000

General Obligation Bonds of 20028
($2,600,000), due in annual

installments of $120,000 to
$205,000 plus interest at 3.65% to

4.75% through December 1,2020. Utilities

39
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NOTE 3 _ DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

General Obligation Bonds - Continued

Issue

Fund Debt

Retired By

Beginning
Balances Issuances Retirements

Ending

Balances

General Obligation Bonds of 2003

(S4,030,000), due in annual

installments of $315,000 to
5430,000 plus interest at 2.90o/o to

3.70% through January 1, 2018.

General Obligation Bonds of 2004
($8,070,000), due in annual

installments of $225,000 to
$785,000 plus interest at 3.25o/o to

4A0% through January 1,2024.

General Obligation Bonds of 2005

($7,425,000), due in annual

installments of $590,000 to
$800,000 plus interesf at 3.75%o to

4.00% through December 1,2017.

General Obligation Bonds of 2007

($410,000), due in annual

installments of $35,000 to $70,000
plus interest at 3.95Yo to 4.l5Yo

through December l, 2013.

TIF #2

Kirchoff/Owl

Debt

Service

(Sales Tax)

Debt

Service

(Property Tax)

Vehicle
Replacement

s 2,725,000

6,695,000

5,035,000

200,000

889,032

222,130

350,000 2,375,000

295,000 6,400,000

645,000 4,390,000

65,000 135,000

114,210 774,822

28,620 193,510

127 ,170 861 ,668

General Obligation Bonds of Utilities

2007A ($2,835,000), due in annual

installments of $225,000 to Refuse Collection

$330,000 plus interest at 3.512%o

through December 1,2017 . Local Roads 988,838
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 3lr20ll

NOTE 3 _ DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

Capital Leases

The City has entered into four separate lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of a fire
truck, a self-contained breathing apparatus, a front-end loader, and a floor scrubber. Capital assets of
$121,805 have been added to machinery and equipment and $421,895 to vehicles in the Vehicle
Replacement fund, 59,247 to machinery and equipment in the Garage fund as a result of these four
capital leases. These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and; therefore,

have been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the inception date.

The capital leases have been recorded as liabilities of the Municipal Garage and Vehicle Replacement

Funds.

The future minimum lease payments and the net present value of these minimum lease payments are as

follows:

Year Ending

December 3l
Lease

Payment

20t2
2013

20t4
2015

2016

2017

Interest Portion

Principal Balance

$ 66,846

53,689

53,292

53,292

53,293

51,022

33t,434
(46,72t)

284,713
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADO\ryS, ILINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 3l,20ll

NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

Long-Term Liability Activity

Changes in long-term liabilities during the fiscal year were as follows:

Type ofDebt
Beginning
Balances

Ending
Balances

Amounts
Due within
One YearAdditions Deductions

Governmental Activities
Net Pension Obligation

Compensated Absences

Note Payable

General Obligation Bonds

Plus: Unamortized Premium

Capital Leases

Net Other Post-Employment

Benefit Obligation

Business-Type Activities
Compensated Absences

Note Payable

General Obligation Bonds

Component Unit - Public Library
Compensated Absences

Net Pension Obligation
Net Other Post-Employment

Benefit Obligation

4I 799 3 734 27

$ 4,306,939
4,166,947

1,260,000

18,968,838

48,852

390,505

380,233

885,014 442,507

1,260,000

1,837,170

24,265

105,792

4,687,172

4,609,454

17,131,668

24,597

284,713

635,763

1,926,774

52,634

427 28 52 1 15 979
890 57330 0l

638,410

240,000

2,786,162

I 17t

627,281 39,495

2,508,332 288,202
3,424,572 ll,l29 300,088 3,135,673 327,697

11,129 22,258

240,000
277,830

150,562

46,394

49,180 11,204

75,287 75,281

46,394

60,384

75,281

49 180 20 160 75 ll 75 819

Payments on the net pension obligation and net other post-employment benefits obligation are made by
the General Fund. For the governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by
the General Fund and general obligation bonds are being liquidated by the Debt Service, the TIF #2
KirchofVOwl, and Local Roads Funds. Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental
funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities for them are included as part of the above totals for
governmental activities. At year end, $87,725 of internal service funds' compensated absences,

5284,713 of capital leases and $135,000 of general obligation bonds are included in the above amounts.
Additionally, for business-type activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by the Utilities
and Refuse Collection Funds and general obligation bonds are being liquidated by the Utilities and
Refuse Collection Funds.
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
I)ecember 3lr20ll

NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest, are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business- Activities

Fiscal Year

Ending
December 3l

General Obligation
Bonds

Capital
Leases

General Obligation
Bonds

Principal Interest PrinciPal lnterest PrinciPal Interest

2012

20t3
2014

20r5
20r6
2017

201 8

2019

2020
202r
2022

2023

694,303

619,768

541,676

46t,778
377,362

287,510

191,858

146,492

122,360

95,900

66,660

34,540

52,634
43,117

44,706

46,713

48,81 1

48,732

14,212

10,572

8,586

6,579
4,482

2,290

288,202

303,439

313,730

324,021
339,312

354,628
185,000

195,000

205,000

103,723

92,7l0
80,948

68,629

55,749

42,152
27,696

19,000

9,738

s 1,926,774

2,011,561

2,041,270

2,130,979

2,235,688

2,350,396
1,025,000

585,000

630,000

680,000

730,000

785,000

Total t7 131 7t3 46 721 2 32

Legal Debt Margin

Article VII, Section 6(k) of the 1970 Illinois Constitution governs the computation of legal debt margin'

referendum...shall not be included in the foregoing

To date the Illinois General Assembly has set no limits for home rule municipalities' The City is a home

rule municipalitY.
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crrY oF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 3l,20ll

NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

NET ASSETS/FUND BALANCE

Net Assets Classifîcations

Investment is capital assets - net of related debt, was comprised of the following as of December 31,

20tt

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets - Net of Accumulated Depreciation s 129,212,388

Less Capital Related Debt:

General Obligation Bonds of 20021^

General Obligation Bonds of 2003

General Obligation Bonds of 2004

General Obligation Bonds of 2005

General Obligation Bonds of 2007 - Internal Service

General Obligation Bonds of 2007A
Capital Leases

Unamortized Premium on Debt Issuance

Investment in Capital Assets - Net of Related Debt

Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets - Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Less Capital Related Debt:

General Obligation Bonds of 20028
General Obligation Bonds of 2007A

Investment in Capital Assets - Net of Related Debt

(2,970,000)

(2,375,000)
(6,400,000)

(4,390,000)

( l3 5,000)

(861,668)

(284,713)
(24,587)

(1,540,000)

(968,332)

(t7,440,968)

111,771,420

10,957,375

(2,508,332)

9,449,043
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 3lr20ll

NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - Continued

NET ASSETS/FUND BALANCE - Continued

Fund Balance Classifications

The following is a schedule of fund balance classifications for the govemmental funds as of the date of
this report:

General

Motor
Fuel

Tax
Debt

Service Nonmaior Total

Fund Balances

Nonspendable $ 17,154 43 704 60,858

Restricted

Public Safety

Highways and Streets

Tax Increment Financing

Assigned

Capital Projects Funds

Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

1,428,665

524,945 524,945

1,428,665

973,726813 726

1,428.665 1,338,671 2.767,336

394,257 394,257

1,835,647 (181,941) (1,395, 42Ð 258,281

1,852,801 1,428,665 (181,941) 381,207 3,480,732

The City implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and

Governmental Fund Type Defi.nitions for the fiscal year ended December 3I,2011. In the govemmental

funds financial statements, the City first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities,

then committed, assigned and unassigned fund balance.

Assigned Fund Balance. The City reports assigned fund balance in the Transit Oriented Area

Development nonmajor fund. The City's Board/management has assigned these for future Metra STAR

Line station improvements based on approved management expenditures as determined through the

annual budget process.
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, LLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,20ll

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets;

erïors and omissions; natural disasters; and injuries to the City's employees. These risks, along with

medical claims for employees and retirees, are provided for through the City's participation in the

Intergovernmental Risk Muttugement Agency (IRMA) and the Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit

Cooperative (IpBC). The City ãccounts for these activities in the Liability Insurance - Internal Service

Funå and the Health Insurance - Internal Service Fund. There have been no significant reductions in

coverage from the prior year and settled claims have not exceeded coverage for any of the past three

years.

Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA)

The City participates in the Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA). IRMA is an

organizatioì of municipalities and special districts in Northeastern Illinois which have formed an

asJociation under the Illinois Intergovemmental Cooperations Statute to pool its risk management

needs. The agency administers a mix of self-insurance and commercial insurance coverages;

property/caruulty and workers' compensation cl itigâtion management services;

un.,,,'ptoy-ent ðlaim administration; extensive ri control consulting and training

ptogtu.t; and a risk information system and financ for its members'

The City's payments to IRMA are displayed on the financial statements as expenses in the Liability

Insuranðe Fund. Each member assumei the first $2,500 of each occurïence, and IRMA has a mix of

self-insurance and commercial insurance at various amounts about that level. Each member appoints

one delegate, along with an alternate delegate, to represent the member on the Board of Directors. The

City doei not exercise any control over the activities of the Agency beyond its representation on the

Board of Directors.

Initial contributions are determined each year based on the individual member's eligible revenue as

defined in the by-laws of IRMA and experience modification factors based on past member loss

experience. Members have a contractual obligation to fund any deficit of IRMA attributable to a

mËmbership year during which they were a member. Supplemental contributions may be required to

fund these deficits.
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 3l,20ll

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Conrinued

RISK MANAGEMENT - Continued

Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative (IPBC)

Risks for medical and death beneflrts for employees and retirees are provided for through the City,s
participation in the lntergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative (IPBC). IPBC acts as an
administrative agency to receive, process and pay such claims as may come within the benefit program
of each member. IPBC maintains specific reinsurance coverage for claims in excess of $50,000 per
individual employee participant. The City pays premiums to IPBC based upon cuffent employee
participation and its prior experience factor with the pool. Current year overages or underages for
participation in the pool are adjusted into subsequent years experience factor for premiums.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Litigation

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently
determinable, in the opinion of the City's attorney, the resolution of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Citv.

Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies, principally the federal govemment. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already
collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which
may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the City expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Northwest Suburban Municipal Joint Action Water Agency (JAWA)

The City's water purchase contract with the Northwest Suburban Municipal Joint Action Water Agency
(JAWA) provides that each member is liable for its proportionate share of any costs arising from
defaults in payment obligations by other members.

Solid Waste Agency of Northern Cook County (SWANCC)

The City's contract with the Solid Waste Agency of Northern Cook County (SWANCC) provides that
each member is liable for its proportionate share of any costs arising from defaults in payment
obligations by other members.
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 3lr20ll

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

COMMITMENTS

Northwest Suburban Municipal Joint Action Water Agency (JAWA)

The City has committed to purchase water from the Northwest Suburban Municipal Joint Action Water
Agency. This agreement expires in 2022, with minimum amounts of gallons required for purchase
every five years. The City is obligated to pay, at the minimum, amounts totaling $19,060,451 through
fiscal year 2016 as listed below:

Fiscal Year
Ending

December 3l Amount

19,060,451

These amounts have been computed using the minimum amount, or 785 million gallons per year, to be

purchased per the agreement between the City and JAWA, multiplied by an average cost per gallon of
5292 charged by JAWA in the fiscal year ended 2011, with an estimated increase in the per gallon cost
each of the following years.

Solid Waste Agency of Northern Cook County (S\ilANCC)

The City has committed to make pa¡iments to the Solid Waste Agency of Northern Cook County
(SV/ANCC). The City expects to pay the following minimum amounts:

2012
2013

2014

20r5
2016

Fiscal Year

Ending

December 31

s 2,859,209

3,288,090

3,781,304
4,348,499

4,793,349

Amount

2012

20t3
20r4
2015

$ 580,000

609,000

639,450

671,423
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2011

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

JOINT VENTURES

Northwest Suburban Municipal Joint Action Water Agency (JAWA)

The City is a member of the Northwest Suburban Municipal Joint Action'Water Agency (JAWA) which
consists of seven municipalities. JAWA is a municipal corporation and public body politic and

corporate established pursuant to the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act of the State of lllinois. JAWA
is empowered to plan, construct, improve, gxtend, acquire, finance, operate and maintain a water supply
system to serve its members and other potential water purchasers.

The seven members of JAWA and their percentage shares as of December 31, 20ll are as follows:

Percent

Share

Village of Elk Grove Village

Village of Hanover Park

Village of Hoffman Estates

Village of Mount Prospect

City of Rolling Meadows

Village of Schaumburg

Village of Streamwood

16.40 %

10.70

16.50

I 1.40

8.20

26.70

10. l0

100.00 %

These percentage shares are based upon formulae contained in the water supply agreement and are

subject to change in future years based upon consumption by the municipalities.

The members form a contiguous geographic service area which is located 15 to 30 miles northwest of
downtown Chicago. Under the Agency Agreement, additional members may join JAWA upon the

approval of each member.

JAWA is governed by a Board of Directors which consists of one elected official from each member

municipality. Each Director has an equal vote. The offtcers of JAWA are appointed by the Board of
Directors. The Board of Directors determines the general policy of JAWA, makes all appropriations,

approves contracts for sale orpurchase of water, provides forthe issuance of debt, adopts bylaws, rules

and regulations, and exercises such powers and performs such duties as may be prescribed in the

Agency Agreement or the bylaws.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
December 3l,20ll

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

JOINT VENTURES - Continued

Northwest Suburban Municipal Joint Action Water Agency (JAWA) - Continued

Summary of financial positions as of April 30,2011:

Current Assets $ 11,834,195 Current Liabilities $

Long-Term Liabilities

4,196,659

75,617,884Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets

Other Assets

48,524,786

23,792,90r Total Liabilities 79,814,543

Total Assets 84,15 1,882 Net Assets 4,337,339

Summary of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets for the year ended April 30, 20ll:

Operating Revenues $ 30,654,804

Operating Expenses 27,557,831

Operating Income 3,096,973

Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses) (2,812,897)

Change in Net Assets 284,076

Net Assets - Beginning 4,053,263

Net Assets - Ending 4,337,339

Complete frnancial statements can be obtained from the Northwest Suburban Municipal Joint Action
Water Agency, 903 Brantwood Avenue, Elk Grove Village, Illinois 60007.

Revenues of the system consist of: (a) all receipts derived from V/ater Supply Agreements or any other

contract for the supply of water; (b) all income derived from the investment of monies; and (c) all income,

fees, water service charges, and all rates, rents and receipts derived by JAWA from the ownership and

operation of the system and the sale of water. JAWA covenants to establish fees and charges sufficient to
provide revenues to meet all its requirements.
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 3l,20ll

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

JOINT VENTURES - Continued

Northwest Suburban Municipal Joint Action Water Agency (JAWA) - Continued

JAWA has entered into Water Supply Agreements with the seven-member municipalities for a term of 40

years, extending to December 31, 2022. The Agreements are irrevocable and may not be terminated or

amended except as provided in the General Resolution. Each member is obligated, on a "take or pay"

basis, to purchase or in any event to pay for a minimum annual quantity of water'

JAWA has entered into an agreement with the Cþ of Chicago under which the City has agreed to sell

quantities of lake water suffrcient to supply the projected water needs of JAV/A through the year 2020'

The obligation of the City to make all payments as required by this agreement is unconditional and

inevocable, without regard to performance or nonperformance by JAWA of its obligations under this

Agreement.

The payments required to be made by the City under this Agreement shall be required to be made solely

from revenues to be derived by the City from the operation of the Water System. Members are not

prohibited by the Agreement, however, from using other available funds to make payments under the

Agreement. This Agreement shall not constitute an indebtedness of the City within the meaning of any

statutory or constitutional limitation.

The obligation of the City to make payments required by this Agreement from revenues of the Vy'ater

System shall be payable from the operation and maintenance account of the'Water Fund.

In accordance with the joint venture agreement, the City remitted $2,378,053 to JAWA for the year ended

December 31,2011. All payments were paid from the Utilities Fund. The City's share of net assets of
JAV/A was $0 at December 31,2011.

Solid Waste Agency of Northern Cook County (SWANCC)

The City is a member of the Solid Waste Agency of Northern Cook County (SV/ANCC), which

consists of twenty-three municipalities. SWANCC is a municipal joint action agency, established

pursuant to the Constitution of the State of Illinois and the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act of the

State of lllinois, as amended (the Act). SWANCC is empowered under the Act to plan, construct,

finance, operate, and maintain a solid waste disposal system to serve its members. SWANCC is

reported as a nonequity proprietary joint venture.
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 3l,20ll

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

JOINT VENTURES - Continued

Solid Waste Agency of Northern Cook County (SWANCC) - Continued

The twenty-three members of SWANCC and their percentage shares as of April 30, 2011 are as

follows:

Percent

Share

Village of Arlington Heights

Village of Barrington
Village of Buffalo Grove

Village of Elk Grove Village
City of Evanston

Village of Glencoe

Village of Glenview
Village of Hoffman Estates

Village of Inverness

Village of Kenilworth
Village of Lincolnwood
Village of Morton Grove

Village of Mount ProsPect

Village of Niles
Village of Palatine

City of Park Ridge

City of Prospect Heights

City of Rolling Meadows
Village of Skokie

Village of South Barrington

Village of Wheeling

Village of Wilmette
Villlage of Winnetka

9.97 %
1.54

6.42
4.99

6.96

1.32

4.7s

4.36

1,09

0.84

1,70

2.82

7.78

3.14
1 1.04

5.70
t.78
4.03

7.46
0,69
4.51

3.97

3.14

100.00 %

These percentage shares are subject to change in future years based on the population of the

municiialities. the members form a contiguous geographic service area, which is located northwest of

downtown Chicago.

SWANCC is governed by a Board of Directors, which consists of one appointed Mayor or President

from each member municipality. Each Director has an equal vote. The offtcers of SWANCC are

appointed by the Board of Directors'
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Notes to the Financial Statements
December 3lr20ll

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

JOINT VENTURES - Continued

Solid Waste Agency of Northern Cook County (S\ilANCC) - Continued

The Board of Directors determines the general policy of SWANCC, makes all appropriations, approves
contracts, adopts resolutions providing for the issuance of bonds or notes by SWANCC, adopts by-
laws, rules and regulations, and exercises such powers and performs such duties as may be prescribed
in the Agency Agreement or the by-laws.

Summary of financial positions as of April 30,2011:

Current Assets $ 6,843,409 Current Liabilities s 5,164,235

Long-Term Liabilities 4,799,944Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets

Other Assets

11,228,739

66,091 Total Liabilities g,g53,o7g

Total Assets 18,138,239 Net Assets 8,1 85, 1 60

Summary of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets for the year ended April 30, 201I

Operating Revenues S 329,737

Operating Expenses 242,615

Change in Net Assets 87,122

Net Assets - Beginning 8,098,038

Net Assets - Ending 8,1 85,1 60

Complete financial statements for SWANCC can be obtained from the Agency's administrative office
at 1616 East Golf Road, Des Plaines, Illinois 60016.

SWANCC's bonds are revenue obligations. They are limited obligations of SWANCC, with a claim for
payment solely from and secured by a pledge of the revenues of the system, and amounts in various

funds and accounts established by SWANCC resolutions. SWANCC has no power to levy taxes,

Revenues of the system consist of: (a) all receipts derived from Solid Waste Disposal Contracts or any

other contracts for the disposal of waste; (b) all income derived from the investment of monies; and (c)

all income, fees, service charges, and all grants, rents, and receipts derived by SWANCC from the

ownership and operation of the system.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

JOINT VENTURES - Continued

Sotid \ilaste Agency of Northern Cook County (S\ilANCC) - Continued

SWANCC covenants to establish fees and charges sufficient to provide revenues to meet all its
requirements.

SWANCC has entered into Solid Waste Disposal Contracts with the member municipalities. The

Contracts are irrevocable, and may not be terminated or amended, except as provided in the Contract.

Each member is obligated, on a "take or pay" basis, to purchase or in any event to pay for a minimum

annual cost of the system.

The obtigation of the City to make all payments as required by this Contract is unconditional and

irrevocable, without regard to performance or nonperformance by SWANCC of its obligations under

this Contract.

The payments required to be made by the City under this Contract are required to be made solely from

,.u.rr.r", to be derived by the City from the operation of the Refuse Collection System. The City is not

prohibited by the Contract from using any other funds to make the payments required by the Contract.

The Contract shall not constitute an indebtedness of the City within the meaning of any statutory or

constitutional limitation.

In accordance with the joint venture agreement, the City remitted $443,042 to SWANCC for the year

ended December 3I,2011, which is recorded in the City's Refuse Collection Fund.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM _ DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

The City contributes to three defined benefit pension plans, the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

(IMRF), a defined benefit agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system; the Police

Pension Plan which is a single-employer pension plan; and, the Firefighters' Pension Plan, which is also

a single-employer pension plan. Publicly available financial reports that include financial statements

and rãquired supplementary information (RSD for the Police and Firefighters' Pension Plans may be

obtained by writing to the City at 3600 Kirchoff Road, Rolling Meadows, Illinois 60008. IMRF issues a

publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary

information for the plan as a whole, but not by individual employer. That report may be obtained on-

line at www.imlf.org.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

EMPLOYEE RE,TIREMENT SYSTEM _ DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS _ Continued

Plan Descriptions, Provisions and Funding Policies

Illinois Municipal Retirement System

All employees (other than those covered by the Police and Firef,rghters' Pension plans) hired in
positions that meet or exceed the prescribed annual hourly standard must be enrolled in IMRF as

participating members. Participating members hired before January 1,2011 who retire at or after age 60
with 8 years of service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an
amount equal to l-213 percent of their final rate (average of the highest 48 consecutive months'earnings
during the last 10 years) ofearnings, for each year ofcredited service up to 15 years, and2 percent for
each year thereafter. For participating members hired on or after January 1,2011 who retire at or after
age 67 with 10 years of service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life in
an amount equal to l-213 percent of their f,rnal rate (average of the highest 96 consecutive months'
eamings during the last 10 years) of earnings, for each year of credited service, with a maximum salary
cap of $106,800 at January I,2011. The maximum salary cap increases each year thereafter. The

monthly pension of a member hired on or after January 1,2011, shall be increased annually, following
the later of the hrst anniversary date of retirement or the month following the attainment of age 62,by
the lesser of 3o/o or /, of the consumer price index. Employees with at least 10 years of credited service

may retire at or after age 62 and receive a reduced benefit. IMRF also provides death and disability
benefits. These benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state statute. Employees
participating in the plan are required to contribute 4.50 percent of their annual covered salary to IMRF.
The employees' contribution rate is established by state statute. The City is required to contribute the

remaining amount necessary to fund the IMRF plan as specified by statute. The employer contribution
rate for calendar year 20Il was 14.17 percent and the annual required contribution rate for calendar
year2011 was 15.65 percent.

Police Pension Plan

The Police Pension Plan is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers all sworn police
personnel. Although this is a single-employer pension plan, the defined benefits and employee and

employer contribution levels are governed by Illinois State Statutes and may be amended only by the

Illinois legislature. The City accounts for the plan as a pension trust fund.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - CONtiNUEd

Plan Descriptions, Provisions, and Funding Policies - Continued

Police Pension Plan - Continued

At fiscal year end the Police Pension Plan membership consisted of:

Retirees and Beneficiaries Currently Receiving

Benefits and Terminated Employees Entitled

to Benefits but not yet Receiving Them

Current Employees

Vested
Nonvested

JJ

38

l3

84

The following is a summary of the Police Pension Plan as provided for in Illinois State Statutes.

The potice pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Covered

employees hired befor. Junrury I,2011, attaining the age of 50 or more with 20 or more years of

rt.ãitubl. service are entitled to receive an annual retirement benef,rt of t/z of the salary attached to the

rank held on the last day of service, or for one year prior to the last day, whichever is greater. The

pension shall be increased by 2.5% of such salary for each additional year of service over 20 years up to

ã0 y.u.r, to a maximumof 75o/o of such salary. Covered employees hired on or after January I,20lI,
attaining the age of 55 with at least 10 years creditable service are entitled to receive an annual

retirement benefit of 25% of final average salary for each year of service, with a maximum salary cap

of $106,g00 as of January I,20ll. The maximum salary cap increases each year thereafter. The

monthly benefit of a policè officer hired before January l, 201l, who retired with 20 or more years of

service after January t, tOll shall be increased annually, following the first anniversary date of
retirement and be puid.tpon reaching the age of at least 55 years, by 3% of the original pension and3%o

compounded annually thereafter. The monthly pension of a police officer hired on or after January l,
Z1li,shall be increased annually, following the later of the first anniversary date of retirement or the

*ont'h following the attainment of age 60, but the lesser of 3Yo or Y, of the consumer price index.

Employees with at least 10 years but less than 20 years of creditable service mayretire at or after age

60 and receive a reduced benefit'

Covered employees are required to contribute 991% of their base salary to the Police Pension Plan. If an

employee léavãs covered employment with less than 20 years of service, accumulated employee

contributions may be refundeã without accumulated interest. The City is required to contribute the

remaining amounts necessary to finance the plan, including administrative costs, as actuarially determined

by an.*ãilrd actuary. By the year 2040 the City's contributions must accumulate to the point where the

past service cost for the Police Pension Plan is 90% funded.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM _ DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAIIS _ CONtiNUEd

Plan Descriptions, Provisions, and Funding Policies - Continued

Firefighters' Pension Plan

The Firefighters' Pension Plan is a single-employer defined pension plan that covers all sworn fire

personnel. Although this is a single-employer pension plan, the def,rned benefits and employee and

èmployer contribution levels are governed by Illinois State Statutes and may be amended only by the

Illinois legislature. The City accounts for the plan as a pension trust fund.

At fiscal year end the Firefighters' Pension Plan membership consisted of:

Retirees and Benefi ciaries Currently Receiving

Benefits and Terminated Employees Entitled

to Benefits but not yet Receiving Them

Current Employees

Vested
Nonvested

40

19

25

84

The following is a summary of the Firefighters' Pension Plan as provided for in Illinois State Statutes.

The Firefighters' Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits.

Covered employees hired before January l, 2011, attaining the age of 50 or more with 20 or more years

of creditablè service are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit of Yz of the monthly salary

attached to the rank held at the date of retirement. The pension shall be increasedby Ill2 of 2.5o/o of
such monthly salary for each additional month over 20 years of service through 30 years of service, to a

maximum of 75% of such salary. Covered employees hired on or after January 1,2011, attaining the

age of 55 with at least 10 years of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit

oi Z5W of final avetage salary for each year of service, with a maximum salary cap of $ I 06,800 as of
January 1,2011. The maximum salary cap increases each year thereafter. The monthly pension of a

firefighter hired before January I,2011, who retired with 20 or more years of service after January l,
1977 shall be increased annually, following the first anniversary date of retirement and be paid upon

reaching the age of at least 55 years, by 3% of the original pension and 3o/o compounded annually

thereaftér. The monthly pension of a firefighter hired on or after January 1, 201l, shall be increased

annually, following the later of the first anniversary date of retirement or the month following the

attainment of age 60, by the lesser of 3% or 1/z of the consumer price index. Employees with at least 10

years but less than 20 years of creditable service may retire at or after age 60 and receive a reduced

benefit.

57



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM _ DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - Continued

Plan Descriptions, Provisions, and Funding Policies - Continued

Firefighters' Pension Plan - Continued

Covered employees, if any, are required to contribute 9.455o/o of their base salary to the Firefighters'
Pension Plan. If an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 years of service, accumulated
employee contributions may be refunded without accumulated interest. The City is required to contribute
the remaining amounts necessary to finance the plan, including administrative costs, as actuarially
determined by an enrolled actuary. By the year 2040 the City's contributions must accumulate to the point
where the past service cost for the Firefighters' Pension Plan is 90% funded.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, Employee and employer
contributions are recognized as revenues when due, pursuant to formal commitments, as well as statutory
or contractual requirements. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the terms of the plan.

Method Used to Value Investments

Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates
fair value. Securities traded on national exchanges are valued at the last reported sales price. Investments
that do not have any established market, if any, are reported at estimated fair value.

Significant Investments

At December 31,201I, the Police Pension Fund has over 5o/o of net plan assets available for retirement
(other than U.S. Government guaranteed obligations) invested in the Fifth Third Monty Market Fund of
$709,336 and the Firefighters' Pension Fund has over 5o/o of net plan assets available for retirement
benefits (other than U.S. Government guaranteed obligations) invested in Ishares TR Russell 3000 of
s3,716,566.

Related Party Transactions

There are no securities of the employer or any other related parties included in plan assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
December 3t,20ll

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLA}IS _ CONtiNUEd

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation

The City's annual required contribution for the current year and related information for each plan is as

follows

Illinois
Municipal
Retirement

Police
Pension

Firefighters'
Pension

Contribution Rates

Employer
Employee

Actuarial Valuation Date

Actuarial Cost Method

Amortization Method

Remaining Amortization Period

Asset Valuation Method

Actuarial Assumptions
Investment Rate of Retum

Projected Salary lncreases

Inflation Rate Included

Cost-of-Living Adj ustments

14.17%
4.50%

t2l3|11

Entry Age
Normal

Level % of
Projected Payroll

Open Basis

30 Years

5-Year
Smoothed Market

750%
Compounded

Annually

.4 to lÙYo

4,00%

3.00%

38.89%
9.91%

t2l3Ur0

Entry Age
Normal

Level % of
Projected Payroll

Closed Basis

23 Years

3-Year
Smoothed Market

7.00%
Compounded

Annually

5.50%

3.00%

3.00%

48.90%
9.455%

t2l3Ut0

Entry Age

Normal

Level % of
Projected Payroll

Closed Basis

27 Years

3-Year
Smoothed Market

7.00%
Compounded

Annually

5s0%

3.00%

3.00%
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Notes to the Financial Statements
December 3lr20ll

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAI{S - CONtiNUEd

Annual Pension cost and Net Pension obligation - continued

The pension liability for each plan is as follows:

Illinois
Municipal
Retirement

Police

Pension

Firefighters'

Pension Total

Annual Required Contributions

Interest on Net Pension Obligation

Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution

$ 1,189,917 2,090,287 2,128,673 5,408,877

7,735 136,901 185,058 329,694

5.529) 86,884 96,847 t78,202(

Annual Pension Cost 7,192,123 2,314,072 2,410,578 5,916,773

Actual Contribution 1,077,388 2,245,217 2,213,935 5,536,540

Increase to the NPO 114,735 68,855 196,643 380,233

NPO - Beginning of Year 103.129 1,772,086 2,431,724 4,306,939

NPO - End of Year 217,864 1 67 4,687 172

The above calculations for the Police and Firefighters' Pension Funds were based on the City's private

actuarial studies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
December 3L,20ll

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLA¡{S _ CONtiNUEd

Trend Information

Employer annual pension cost (ApC), actual contributions and the net pension obligation (NPo) are as

fo[ãwi. The NpOis the cumulative difference between the APC and the contributions actually made.

Year

Illinois
Municipal
Retirement

Police

Pension

Firefighters'

Pension

Annual Pension Cost

(APC)

Actual Contributions

Percentage of APC

Contributed

Net Pension Obligation

$ 1,085,521

1,177,099

r,192,123

1,085,521

1,013,970

1,077,3 88

100.00%

90.77%

90.38%

103,129

217,864

$ 1,468,836

1,610,081

2,314,072

7,022,074

2,045,289

2,245,217

69.58%

127.03%

97.02%

2,207,294

1,772,086

1,840,941

$ 1,720,215

1,727,803

2,410,578

1,014,127

2,073,970

2,213,935

58.95%

120.04%

91.84%

2,777,89r
2,431,724

2,628,367

2009

2010

2011

2009

20r0
2011

2009

2010

20ll

2009
2010

2011
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS _ ContinuEd

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The City's funded status for the current year and related information for each plan is as follows:

Illinois
Municipal

Retirement*

Police
Pension

Firefighters'
Pension

Actuarial Valuation Date

Percent Funded

Actuarial Accrued Liability
for Benefits

Actuarial Value of Assets

(Over) Under Funded Actuarial
Accrued Liability (UAAL)

Covered Payroll (Annual Payroll

of Active Employees Covered

by the Plan)

Ratio of UAAL to Covered

Payroll

t2l3Utt t2l3Ut0 12l3vt0

61.87% 48.17% 41.62%

$31,602,092 551,404,624 $48,584,953

s19,552,396 $24,759,482 $20,219,977

$12,049,696 526,645,142 528,364,976

$ 7,603,546 $ 4,841,699 $ 3,899,331

1s8.4',7% 550.33% 727.43%

*Includes Library discretely presented component unit

The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information (RSI) following
the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial

value of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for
benefits.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Descriptions, Provisions, and Funding Policies

In addition to providing the pension benefits described, the City provides post-employment health care

and life insurance benefits (OPEB) for retired employees through a single employer defined benefit

plan. The benefits, benefit levels, employee contributions and employer contributions are governed by
the City and can be amended by the City through its personnel manual and union contracts. The plan is

not accounted for as a trust fund, as an irrevocable trust has not been established to account for the plan.

The plan does not issue a separate report. The activity of the plan is reported in the City's Health

Insurance Fund.

The City provides post-employment health care benefits to its retirees. To be eligible for beneftts, an

employee must qualify for retirement under one of the City's retirement plans. Elected officials are

eligible for benefits if they qualify for retirement through the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund.

All health care benefits are provided through the City's health insurance plan. The benefrt levels are the

same as those afforded to active employees. Benefits include general inpatient and outpatient medical

services; mental, nervous, and substance abuse care; vision care; dental care; and prescriptions. Upon a

retiree reaching 65 years of age, Medicare becomes the primary insurer and the City's plan becomes

secondary.

All retirees contribute I00% of the actuarially determined premium to the plan. For the fiscal year

ending December 31,2011, retirees contributed 9521,902. Active employees do not contribute to the

plan until retirement.

At December 31,2011, membership consisted of:

Retirees and Beneficiaries Currently Receiving

Benefits and Terminated Employees Entitled
to Benefits but not yet Receiving Them

Active Employees 154

218

64
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Notes to the Financial Statements
December 3l,20ll

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - Continued

Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation

The net OPEB obligation (NOPEBO) as of December 31,2011, was calculated as follows:

Governmental
Activities

Annual Required Contribution
Interest on the NPO

Adjustment to the ARC

Annual OPEB Cost

Actual Contribution

492,469
34,897

(29,081)

498,285

217,733

$

Increase in the NPO 280,552

NOPEBO - Beginning of Year 872,427

NOPEBO - End of Year 1,152,979

Trend Information

The District's annual OPEB cost, actual contributions, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed

and the net OPEB obligation are as follows:

Fiscal

Year

Annual

OPEB

Cost

Actual
Contributions

Percentage

ofOPEB
Cost Contributed

Net

OPEB

Oblieation

2009 s 498,722 $ 204,918

20t0 474,656 193,81 1

217,733

4t.09%

40.83%

$ 591,582

872,427

20tl 498,285

64

43.70% r,152,979



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILTNOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2011

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - Continued

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the plan as of December 31,2010, the date of the latest actuarial valuation, was as

follows:

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL)

Actuarial Value of Plan Assets

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL)

Funded Ratio (Actuarial Value of Plan Assets/AAL)

Covered Payroll (Active Plan Members)

UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

$ 722,5 84I

5,722,184

13,843,167

41.34%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and

assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include

assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost contributions of the employer

are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new

estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required

supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend

information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time

relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as

understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan

members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are

designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value ofassets,

consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the December 31, 2010 actuarial valuation the entry age actuarial cost method was used. The

actuarial assumptions included a 4,00Yo discount rate, a 3.00% price inflation assumption, a 4.00%

wage inflation assumption as well as a healthcare cost trend rate of 4.50o/o to 8.86% depending on fiscal
year. The actuarial value of assets was not determined as the City has not advance funded its obligation.

The plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected

payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at December 3 1, 2011, was 30 years.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Required supplementary information includes f,rnancial information and disclosures that are
required by the GASB but are not considered a part of the basic financial statements. Such
information includes:

o Schedule of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions

. Budgetary Comparison Schedules

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information

o Budgetary Information - Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles.



CITY OF ROLLTNG MEADOWS, ILINOTS

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions
December 3l,20ll

Funding Progress

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Dec. 3l

(l)
Actuarial

Value

of Plan

Assets

(2)

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)

- Entry Age

(3)

Funded

Ratio

(4)

Unfunded
(Overfunded)

Actuarial
Accrued

Liabilify
(2) - (1)

(s)
Annual
Covered

Payroll

(6)

Unfunded
(Overfunded)

Actuarial
Accrued

Liability as a

Percentage

ofCovered
Payroll
(4) + (5)(l) + (2\

2006
2007

2008

2009

2010

20tl

$ 23,961,821 $

25,459,071

19,674,004

20,296,058
20,661,952
19,552,396

28,492,247

30,746,627

30,071,268
32,067,786
31,298,990
31,602,092

Employer

Contributions

84.t0% s
82.80%
65.42%

63.29%

66.01%
61.87%

4,530,426 $

5,287,556
10,397,264

17,771,728

10,637,03 8

12,049,696

9,748,334
9,369,892
9,906,874
9,270,036
7,872,440

7,603,546

51.79%

56.44%

104.95%

12699%
t35.t2%
r58.47%

Percent

Contributed

Employer Contributions

Fiscal

Year

Annual
Required

Contribution

2006
2007

2008

2009

2010

20tl

$ 1,000,809

1,076,486

1,130,374

1,085,521

1,013,970

1,077,388

$ 1,000,809

1,076,486

r,130,374
1,085,521

1,117,099

1,189,917

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

90.77%

90.54%

Data Source: Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund
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crrY oF RoLLTNG MEADOWS, LLINOTS

Police Pension Fund

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions
December 31, 2011

Funding Progress

Actuarial

Valuation
Date

Dec. 31

(1)

Actuarial
Value
of Plan

Assets

(2)

Actuarial
Accrued

Liability
(AAL)

(3)

Funded

Ratio
(l) + (2)

(4)

Unfunded
(Overfunded)

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability

(s)
Annual

Covered

Payroll

(6)

Unfunded
(Overfunded)

Actuarial
Accrued

Liability as a

Percentage

ofCovered
Payroll
(4) + (5)- Entry Age (2) - 1)

2005

2006
2007

2008

2009

2010

$ 19,050,226

21,094,351

22,276,012

19,473,997

22,055,478
24,759,482

$ 31,390,882

34,048,263

37,r27,790
39,306,318

48,808,345

51,404,624

Employer
Contributions

60.69% $

619s%
60.00%
49.54%

45.19%

48.r7%

12,340,656

72,953,912

14,851,778

19,832,327

26,752,867

26,645,142

$ 3,988,850

4,274,342

4,477,359
4,701,227

4,660,498
4,841,699

309.38%
303.06%
33t.71%
42t.85%
574.03%

550.33%

Percent

Contributed

Employer Contributions

Fiscal

Year

Annual

Required

Contribution

2006
2007

2008

2009
2010

2011

s 494,978

488,124

846,468
1,022,014

2,045,289
2,245,217

$ 718,490

985,476

1,060,907

1,468,836

1,509,629

2,090,287

68.89%

49.53%

79.79%

69.s8%
135.48%

107.4t%

Data Source: Actuarial Valuation Reports

The above calculations for the Annual Required Contribution \ryere performed by the City's private actuary.

67



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Firefighters' Pension Fund

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions
December 31, 2011

Funding Progress

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Dec. 3l

(1)

Actuarial
Value
of Plan

Assets

(2)

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)

- Entry Age

(3)

Funded

Ratio
(1) + (2)

(4)

Unfunded
(Overfunded)

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(2) - (1)

(s)
Annual
Covered

Payroll

(6)

Unfunded
(Overfunded)

Actuarial
Accrued

Liability as a

Percentage

ofCovered
Payroll
(4) + (5)

2005

2006
2007

2008

2009

2010

$ 17,571,192

18,638,346

19,846,639

15,802,062

18,235,794

20,219,977

$ 29,890,514

33,305,824
36,096,221

37,791,992
46,137,827

48,584,953

Employer
Contributions

s8.79% $

55.96%
5498%
4t.81%
39.52%

4r.62%

12,319,322 $

14,667,478

16,249,582

21,989,930
27,902,033
28,364,976

3,332,551

3,316,233

3,741,436
3,928,508
3,535,416
3,899,33r

369.67%

442.29%

434.31%

559.75%

789.21%
727.43%

Percent

Contributed

Employer Contributions

Fiscal
Year

Annual
Required

Contribution

2006
2007

2008

2009

2010

20tt

$$ 500,086

493,662

850,986

l,ol4,l27
2,073,970
2,213,935

644,000
1,017,801

1,172,057

1,720,215

1,658,207

2,128,673

77.65%
48.50%

72.61%
58.95%

125.07%

104.01%

Data Source: Actuarial Valuation Reports

The above calculations for the Annual Required Contribution were performed by the City's private actuary.
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Other Post-Employment Benefits Plan

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions
December 3l,20ll

Funding Progress

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Dec. 3l

(1)

Actuarial
Value
of Plan

Assets

(2)

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)

- Entry Age

(3)

Funded

Ratio
(1) + (2)

(4)

Unfunded
(Overfunded)

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(2) - (1)

(s)
Annual

Covered

Payroll

(6)

Unfunded
(Overfunded)

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability

asa
Percentage

ofCovered
Payroll
(4) + (s)

2006

2007

2008

2009

20t0
20r l

$ N/A
N/A

$ N/A
N/A

5,495,553

5,832,237

5,722,184
N/A

Employer
Contributions

$ N/A
N/A

5,495,553

5,832,237

5,722,184
N/A

Annual
Required

Contribution

$ N/A
N/A

I 5,178,035

15,785,156

13,843,167

N/A

N/A
N/A

36.21%
36.95%
4134%
N/A

Percent

Contributed

N/A
N/A

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

N/AN/A

Employer Contributions

Fiscal

Year

2006
2007

2008

2009
2010
20rt

$ N/A
N/A
173,645

204,918
193,811

217,733

$ N/A
N/A

471,423

498,722

470,711

492,469

N/A
N/A

36.83%
41.09%
4t.r7%
4421%

The City Implemented GASB Statement No. 45 for the fiscal year ended December 31,z}09.Information for

prior years is not available. The City is required to have an actuarial valuation performed triennially.

Data Source: Actuarial Valuation Reports
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

.i

Budget
Original Final Actual

Revenues

Taxes

Intergovernmental
Licenses and Permits

Charges for Services

Fines and Forfeitures
Interest

Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Expenditures

General Government

Public Safety

Public V/orks
Health/Welfare and Culture
Economic Development

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Disposal of Capital Assets

Transfers In
Transfers Out

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning

$ 18,383,505

2,309,409
761,517

2,063,701

823,895
2,500

543,113

18,383,505

2,312,159
761,517

2,063,701

823,895
2,500

543,tt3

18,841,006

2,564,290

960,952
2,070,328

963,836

7,133

626.169

24,887,640 24,890.390 26.033.7t4

3,679,673

18,443,342

2,504,172

r8,230
2,550

3,679,613

18,341,219

2,504,700
78,230

2.550

3,316,082
18,51 1,698

2,417,384
9,537

270

24,647,907 24.546.312 24.254.97t

239.733 344.078 1,778,743

s00

383,458

Q7.290)

500

383,458

1,672

337,400
(27,290\(27.290)

356,668 356,668 311.782

596401 _,700J462,090,525
(23 7.724)

Fund Balance - Ending

70

I,852.801



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Motor Fuel Tax - Special Revenue tr'und

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Budget
Orieinal Final Actual

Revenues

Intergovernmental

lnterest
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Highways and Streets

Contracted Services
Supplies

Snow and Ice Control
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

989,685

(777 500\ A77 500) (270,826)

1,699,491

r.428.66s

$ 636,500 636,500 716,935

151

773
636.s00 636,s00 718,859

310,000

174,000

930,000

310,000 157,521

174,000

930,000
133,264

698,900
1.414.000 1,414.000

7l



a

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Other supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not required by the
GASB, nor a part of the basic financial statements, but are presented for purposes of additional
analysis.

Such statements and schedules include:

Budgetary Comparison Schedules - Major Governmental Funds

Combining Statements - Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Budgetary Comparison Schedules - Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Budgetary Comparison Schedules - Enterprise Funds

Combining Statements - Internal Service Funds

Budgetary Comparison Schedules - Internal Service Funds

Combining Statements - Pension Trust Funds

Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Fund

a

a

a

a

a

a

a



MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS



GENERAL FUND

The General Fund accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for
in another fund.

MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Motor Fuel Tax Fund

The Motor Fuel Tax Fund is used to account for allotments of motor fuel taxes from the State of
Illinois made on a per capita basis. The City uses these funds to maintain and construct
transportation-related community needs, such as streets, bridges, and traff,rc signals.

DEBT SERVICE FUND

Debt Service Funds are created to account for the accumulation of funds for the periodic
payment of principal and interest on general long-term debt.



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

General tr''und

Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 3lr20ll

Budget
Original Final Actual

Taxes

Properly Taxes

Prior Years' Taxes

Current Levy
Police Pension
Fire Pension

Municipal Sales Tax
Home Rule Sales Tax
Simplified Telecommunications Tax
Electric Utility Tax
Hotel Tax
Food and Beverage Tax
Real Estate Transfer Tax
Cable Franchise Fees

Total Taxes

Intergovernmental

State Income Tax
Local Use Tax
Replacement Tax
Other Grants

Total Intergovernmental

Licenses and Permits
Business Licenses
Liquor Licenses

Other Licenses

Building Permits

Rental Unit Permits
Other Permits

Total Licenses and Permits

Charges for Services
Police Special Details
School Liaison Charges

Ambulance Fees

2,309,409 2,312,159 2,564,290

$ 61,000
4,435,080
2,039,222

2,010,832
2,811,040
1,948,067

1,799,315

I,327,036
291,347

1,233,605

170,000

256,961

61,000
4,435,090
2,039,222

2,010,832
2,811,040
1,948,067

1,799,315
1,327,036

291,347

1,233,605
170,000

256,961

108,951

4,449,872

2,094,560
2,064,287

2,871,640

2,058,935

I,936,227
l,2g5,glg

333,374
1,212,122

153,689

262,532
18,383,505 18,38 3,505 I 8,84 1,006

1,835,840

299,084
154,485

20,000

1,835,840

299,084
r54,485
22,750

1,915,788

351,103

181,680

ll5,7l9

265,000

160,000

9,857
250,000

58,660
18,000

265,000

160,000

9,857
250,000

58,660

18,000

265,325

186,886

15,482

372,296

64,190

56,773

761,517 761,5r7 960,952

100,000

17l,9l9
525,000

100,000

r7l,9l9
525,000

94,411

183,868

460,628

72



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOTS

General tr'und

Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual - Continued
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Budget
Original Final Actual

Charges for Services - Continued
Overhead Charges

Garage

TIF #I
TIF #2

Refuse

Utilities
Library

Other Inspection Fees

Other Charges for Services
Total Charges for Services

Fines and Forfeitures
Circuit Court Fines

Traffic Fines

Compliance Fines
DUI Fines
Red Light Enforcement Fines
Adjudication
Other Fines

Total Fines and Forfeitures

lnterest

Miscellaneous

Rental Income

Other

Total Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

$ 102,793

39,074
39,074

269,932
575,000

36,813

71,080
134,016

102,'793

39,074
39,074

268,932
575,000

36,813

71,080
134,016

102,793

39,074

39,074
269,932
575,000

36,813

89,427

180,308

2.063.701 2.063,701 2,070,328

150,000

105,000

55,000

10,000

450,000

30,000

23,895

150,000

105,000

55,000
10,000

450,000

30,000
23,895

102,316

2l8,69l
25,196

11,972

486,320

75,431
43,910

823.895 823,895 963,836

2.s00 2,500 7,133

430,638

112.475
430,638

112,475

316,835

309,334
543,113 543,113 626,169

24,987,640 24,890,390 26.033.714

IJ



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, LLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Detailed Expenditures - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Budset
Original Final Actual

General Government
Administrative

Mayor
Salaries and Wages
Benefits
Contracted Services
Supplies

Total Mayor

9,950
2,771
5,310

400

9,950
2,177
5,3 l0

400

9,950
1,231

1,819

73

$

17.83 I 17.831 13.073

City Council
Salaries and Wages
Benefits
Contracted Services
Supplies

Total City Council

City Manager
Salaries and Wages
Benefits
Contracted Services
Supplies

Total City Manager

Human Resources

Salaries and Wages
Benefits
Contracted Services
Supplies

Total Human Resources

City Clerk
Salaries and Wages
Benefits
Contracted Services
Supplies

Total City Clerk

Public Relations
Contracted Services
Supplies

Total Public Relations

106,936
23,750
30,866
2,500

104,5 10

23,r88
25,662

I,479

28,001

5,732
52,516

28,001

5,732
52,516

27,445
4,147

52,521
336125 125I

87,374 87.374 84.449

230,580
49,062

59,829
3,000

230,580
49,062
59,829
3,000

294,048
69,445
43,958

ll0
342.471 342.471 407.56t

227,332
49,881

67,812
8.500

221,332
49,881

67,812
8.500

tll,4l9
25,604
44,754

767

347.525 347.525 t82.544

106,936
23,750
30,866

2,500

164.052 164.052 1 54.839

30,300
r.500

30,300
1.500

28,357
48

74

3 1.800 31.800 28.405



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Detailed Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Continued
Year Ended l)ecember 3l,20ll

Budget
Original Final Actual

General Government - Continued
Administrative - Continued

Video Production
Salaries and Wages

Benefits
Contracted Services

Supplies

Total Video Production

$ 12,ooo

6,ooo
3,200

12,000

6,000

3.200

9,930
2s2

950

1.240

21,200 21,200 12,372

Adjudication
Contracted Services

Supplies

Total Adjudication

Community Events

Contracted Services

Supplies

Total Community Events

Finance and Administration
Salaries and Wages

Benefits
Contracted Services

Supplies

Total Finance and Administration

Administrative Services
Legal Contracted Services
Engineering Contracted Services

Special Details
Salaries and Wages

Benefits
Other Contracted Services

Other Supplies

Total Administrative Services

49,800

750
49,800

750

20,152
25

50,550 50,550 20,177

5,450
44,250

5,450
44,250 38,080

49,700 49.700 38.080

257,596
56,866

127,879

1,000

257,596
56,866

127,879

1,000

173,333

39,278
109,884

980

443,34t 443.341 323.47s

257,Q00

30,000

100,000

257,000
30,000

100,000

t33,122
7.650

197,575
28,795

l3 8,563

132

97,996
10.461

t33,122
7,650

75

527,772 527,772 473,522



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Detailed Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Continued
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Budeet
Original Final Actual

General Government - Continued
Administrative - Continued

Information Technolo gy

Salaries and Wages

Benefits
Contracted Services

Supplies

Total Information Technology

Total Administrative

Community Development
Administration

Salaries and Wages

Benefits
Contracted Services

Supplies and Materials
Total Administration

Building Inspections

Salaries and Wages

Benefits
Contracted Services

Supplies and Materials
Total Building Inspections

ZoningBoard of Appeals
Contracted Services

Plan Commission
Contracted Services

Tobacco Information/Prevention
Contracted Services

$ 178,974

42,186
96,','Ì71

22,250

178,974

42,186
96,771

22,250

178,894

45,567

92,335

15.967

340.1 8 1 340.1 8 1 332,763

2.423.797 2,423 .797 2.071,260

308,030

I 00,876

r07,709
4,800

308,030

101,596

106,989

4.800

305,742

100,1 8 1

96,339

1,687

521,415 521,415 493.949

453,806

t06,321
168,009

3,708

453,806

106,32r
168,009

3.708

450,723

108,532

189,071

1,568

731,844 731,844 749.894

747 747 t54

1,260 1,260 825

550 550

Total Community Development

76

1,255,816 1,2 55.816 1,244,822



crrY oF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOTS

General Fund

Schedule of Detailed Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Continued
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Budset
Orieinal Final Actual

General Government - Continued
Total General Government

Public Safety
Police Department

Administration
Salaries and Wages

Benefits
Contracted Services

Supplies and Materials
Total Administration

Patrol
Salaries and Wages

Benefits
Contracted Services

Supplies and Materials
Total Patrol

Investigation
Salaries and Wages

Benefits
Contracted Services

Supplies and Materials
Total Investigation

$ 3,679,613 3,679.613 3,316,082

480,245

2,lgg,5g5
759,699

l7,563

486,489

2,198,776

759,699
r7.563

540,428

2,283,083

740,442
18,685

3,456,102 527 3,582,638

4,237,423

181,937

921,510
54,345

4,164,237

178,440

921,570
54.34s

4,237,535

196,849

882,827

5 1,140

5,395,2r5 5,3 18,532 5,368,351

769,289
30,953

1 78,1 08

6.600

769,289
30,953

178,108

6.600

805,337

33,036
170,549

s.438

984,950 984.950 1.014.360

Records Processing

Salaries and Wages

Benefits
Contracted Services

Supplies and Materials
Total Records Processing

187,287

44,253

76,014
1,008

170,677

28,998
76,014

1.008

195,525
44,701
46,396

552

308,562 276.697 287,r74

10,t44,829Total Police Department

77

10, 042.706 r0.252,523



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, LLINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Detailed Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Continued

Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Budset
Original Final Actual

Public Safety - Continued
Fire Department

Administration
Salaries and Wages

Benefits
Contracted Services

Supplies and Materials
Total Administration

$ 305,749

2,149,145

580,356

7,325

305,749

2,149,145
580,356

7,325

284,930

2,228,666

582,006

4,290

3.042,57s 3.042.575 3.099.892

Fire Operations

Salaries and Wages

Benefits
Contracted Services

Supplies and Materials
Total Fire Operations

Special Rescue Teams

Salaries and Wages

Contracted Services

Supplies and Materials
Total Special Rescue Teams

Prevention Program

Salaries and Wages

Benefits
Contracted Services

Supplies and Materials
Total Prevention Program

Training Program

Salaries and Wages

Benefits
Contracted Services

Supplies and Materials
Total Training Program

4,026,026

t21,006
761,354

83,309

4,026,026
121,006

761,354
83.309

4,128,090
105,252

744,967

62.450

4,991,695 4,991,69s 5.040,759

37,640
27,025

8,275

37,640
27,025

8,275

42,270

12,057

9,863

72,940 72.940 63.1 90

70,788

12,791

5,400

4,400

70,788

12,79r
5,400

4.400

26,899

5,000

4,031

3.939

93,379 93,379 39,869

32,308
7,494

28,192
4,930

32,308
7,494

28,792
4,930

4,010

484

72,924 72.924 4,494

Total Fire Department

78

8,273,513 8.273.513 8.248.204



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Detailed Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Continued
Year Ended l)ecember 3l,.20ll

Budget
Original Final Actual

Public Safety - Continued
Board of Police and Fire Commission

Salaries and Wages

Contracted Services

Total Board of Police and

Fire Commission

Total Public Safety

Public Works
Administration

Salaries and Wages

Benefits
Contracted Services

Supplies and Materials
Total Administration

Buildings and Grounds

Salaries and Wages

Benefits
Contracted Services

Supplies and Materials
Total Buildings and Grounds

Forestry Program

Salaries and Wages

Benefits
Contracted Services

Supplies and Materials
Total Forestry Program

Street Operations

Salaries and Wages

Benefits
Contracted Services

Supplies and Materials
Total Street Operations

s 3,000

22,000
3,000

22,000 10.97t

25,000 25,000 10.971

18,443,342 t8.341,2t9 18.51 1.698

444,987

106,214

287,678
I1,600

444,987

106,214

288,206

11,600

456,196

l13,20l
277,662

9,585

850,479 8s 1.007 856.644

351,744
87,407
96,172
2,500

35t,744
87,401
96,172
2.500

352,692
90,325
95,579
2.283

537.8r7 s37.8t7 540,879

85,093

22,540
64,922

3,215

85,093

22,540
64,922

3,275

83,326

13,241

54,266

2.843

175.830 175.830 ts3.676

644,939
133,085

157,197

4,825

644,939
133,085

157,197

4,825

583,979
t37,973
l39,7tl

4,522

940,046 940,046 866. l 8s

Total Public Works

79

2,504,r72 2,504,700 2.4t7.384



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

General Fund

Schedule of Detailed Expenditures - Budget and Actual - Continued

Year Ended December 31,2011

Budset

Original Final Actual

Health/Welfare and Culture
Museum

Contracted Services

ESDA
Supplies and Materials

Safety Committee
Supplies and Materials

Employee Wellness Program

Contracted Services

Urban Affairs
Supplies

Economic Development
Community Development

Contracted Services

Supplies and Materials

Total Health/Welfare and Culture

$s 730 5 730

2.000

J 812

852,000

1,3 00 1,300 910

6,700 6.700 4,475

2,500 2,500 255

18,230 18.230 9.537

700

1,850

700

1,850

270

Total Economic Development

Total Expenditures

2,550 2,550 270

24.647.907 24,546.312 24.254.971

80



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Debt Service tr'und

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Budget
Original Final Actual

Revenues

Taxes

Property Taxes

Expenditures

Debt Service

Principal Retirement
lnterest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources

Debt Issuance

Transfers In

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

$ 1,360.088 I,360,088 1,363,301

2,255,000
634 t75

2,ggg,l75

2,255,000
634

2,255,000
634 175t75

2,889,175 2,899,175

(r.529 1r.s29.087) (r.s2s.874\

960,000

610,243

960,000

610,243 610.243
1.570.243 1.570.243 610,243

4rJs6 4tJs6 (915,631)

733,690

(181,941)

8l



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet

December 3l,20ll

Special
Revenue

Capital
ects Totals

ASSETS

Cash and Investments

Receivables - Net of Allowances
Property Taxes

Other Taxes

Accounts
Due from Other Funds

Prepaids

Total Assets

s 233,719

557,051

70,011

189,436

27,097

2,208
1,137,972

1.225

25,745

291,254
42,479

303,730

746,487
27,087

27,953

r,429,226
43,704

1.ts0.248 1.427 939 2.s78.187

LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALA¡{CES

Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Due to Other Funds

Unearned/Deferred Revenues

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances

Nonspendable

Restricted

Assigned

Unassigned
Total Fund Balances

2,507

291,254

551,500

51,946

1,137,972

161,801

54,453

1,429,226

7t3.301
84s,261 1,3 5r.719 2.196980

42,479

524,945

1,225

813,726

394,257
( 1.132"988)

43,704

1,338,671

394,257
(1.39s.42s\(262.437)

304,987 76,220 381.207

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 1.150.248 1.427.939 2,578.187

82



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Special

Revenue
Capital
Proiects Totals

Revenues

Taxes

lntergovernmental
Licenses and Permits
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest

Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Expenditures

General Government
Public Safe

Highways and Streets

Economic Development
Capital Outlay
Debt Service

Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In
Transfers Out

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning

$ 699,226

232,725

404

2

1,235,690

351,326

376,565

70

112.924

1,934,906

351,326
376,565
232,725

474

1t2.926
932,357 ) 076,565 3,008,922

758,008
41,417

845,585

41,960

1,363,721

717,t70
130.955

41,417

758,008

845,595

41,960

r,363,721

717 ,170
130.955

7s8,008 3,140.708 3,898,716

174,349 (1,064,143) (889,794)

27,290 437,970 465,260
(87 0) (t,298,213) 85,613)(
(60.1 I 0) (860.243\ o20.3s3\

114,239

t90,748 2.000 2,19r,354

(1,924,396) (1,810,147)

JFund Balances - Ending

83

76

,606

38r



NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other

than fiduciary funds or capital project funds) that are legally restricted to expenditure for
specified purposes.

911 Emergency Telephone Fund

The 911 Emergency Telephone Fund is used to account for the operation of the emergency

telephone communication system. Financing is provided by local and state surcharges and

property taxes.

Foreign Fire Tax Fund

The Foreign Fire Tax Fund is used to account for the receipt and disbursement of funds collected

as foreign fire tax.

Enhanced DUI Enforcement Fund

The Enhanced DUI Enforcement Fund is used to account for the receipts and disbursements

incurred as a result of the City's DUI enforcement program. This fund was closed to the General

Fund as of December 31, 20lL

Asset Seizure Fund

The Asset Seizure Fund is used to account for the receipts and disbursements incurred as a result

of the City's asset seizure program pursuant to Federal and State drug seizure laws.



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, LLINOIS

Nonmajor Governmental - Special Revenue Funds

Combining Balance Sheet

December 3l'2011

9ll
Emergency

Telephone

Enhanced

Foreign DUI
Fire Tax Enforcement

Asset

Seizure Totals

ASSETS

Cash and Investments

Receivables - Net of Allowances

Property Taxes

Accounts
Due from Other Funds

Prepaids

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND
F'UND BALA¡{CES

Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Due to Other Funds

Unearned/Deferred Revenues

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances

Nonspendable
Restricted

Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

$ 43,074 190,645 233,719

291,254

557,051

25,745

29r,254
42.479

557,051

25,745

42,479

7s 43 074 481 I 8

2,507

291,254

ss I,500

2,479
291,254

551,500

28

84s,233 28 845.261

42,479
43,046 481,899

42,479

524,945

Q62.437\(262,4 37\
(2 19,958) 43,046 481.899 304.987

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances s43 074 481 I

84



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, LLINOIS

Nonmajor Governmental - Special Revenue Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

911

Emergency

Telephone
Foreign
Fire Tax

Enhanced

DUI
Enforcement

Asset

Seizure Totals

Revenues

Taxes
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Public Safety

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In
Transfers Out

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

s 670,975 29,251 699,226

232,725

404

2

2,637

670,977 29,252 2,637 230,491 932,357

624.073 26,321 t07.614 7s8,008

46,904 l,g3l 2,637 t22,977 174,349

27,290 27,290
(87,400)(87.400)

27,290 (87.400) (60.110)

46,904 1,931 29,927 35,477 ll4,23g

Q66.862\ 41,1ls (29.927) 446.422 190,748

(219.9s8\ 43.046 481 99 304.987

230,088

403
2
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crTY oF ROLLING MEADOWS, LLINOIS

911 Emergency Telephone - Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Budget
Orieinal Final Actual

Revenues

Taxes

Property Taxes

Other Taxes
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Public Safety

Contracted Services

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

$ 509,000

180,000
509,000
180,000

510,581

t60,394
2

689,000

647,065

689,000

647,065

670,977

624,073

41,935 41.935 46,904

(266,862)

(219.9s8)
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADO\ryS, ILINOIS

Enhanced DUI Enforcement - Special Revenue tr'und

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in tr'und Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 3l,20tl

Budget
Original Final Actual

Revenues

Fines and Forfeitures

Expenditures

Public Safety

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources

Transfers In

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

$ 2,637

2,637

27,290 27,290 27,290

27.290 27 290 29,927

(29,927)
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NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds are created to account for all resources used for the acquisition of capital
facilities by a governmental unit except those financed by proprietary funds.

Local Road Fund

The Local Road Fund is used to account for street improvements, including resurfacing, curb and
gutter, sidewalks and bike paths.

Transit Oriented Area Development Fund

The Transit Oriented Area Development Fund is used to account for savings for the future Metra
STAR Line station in the City.

TIF #1 Kirchoff/lVleadow Fund

The TIF #l Kirchoff/Meadow Fund is used to account for the accumulation of monies for the

payment of the 19968 General Obligation Bond Series. These bonds were issues to partially
refund the t9928 General Obligation Bond Series. Financing is being provided by an annual

property tax levy.

TIF #2 Kirchoff/Owl Fund

The TIF #2 KirchofflOwl Fund is used to account for the purchase of property and construction
of a mixed-use development along Kirchoff Road. The plan includes condominium homes,

senior housing, and office/retail space.

TIF #3 \iloodfield

The V/oodfield Area Development Fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures

associated with the development of activities in the V/oodfield Garden area.

Plum Grove Road Fund

The Plum Grove Road Fund is used to account for the City's share of the State project of
widening and improvement of Plum Grove Road south of Euclid and north of Old Plum Grove
Road.

Fire Station Fund

The Fire Station Fund is used to account for accumulating funds to build a new fire station on

Algonquin Road.



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Nonmajor Governmental - Capital Projects Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
December 3l,20ll

See Following Page



CITY OF'ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Nonmajor Governmental - Capital Projects X'unds

Combining Balance Sheet
December 3lr20ll

Cash and Investments

Receivables - Net of Allowances
Property Taxes

Other Taxes

Accounts

Due from Other Funds

Prepaids

Total Assets

ASSETS

LIABILITIES A¡[I)
FUND BALANCES

Local
Road

Transit
Oriented

Area
Development

$

151,405

27,087

2,209
394,257

t,225

18r,925 394,257

51,946

367,549
161 80r
581.296

1,225

394,257
(400,s96)

ß99.37t',) 394,257

Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Due to Other Funds

Unearned/Deferred Revenue s

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances

Nonspendable

Restricted
Assigned

Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

88

181,925 394,257



TTF #I
Kirchoff/
Meadow

TIF #2

Kirchoff/
Owl

TIF #3

Woodfield

Plum
Grove
Road

Fire
Station Totals

47,847 22,164

39,031

5743 7l

70,01I

189,436

27,087

2,209
1,137,972

I 225

791,562 38,031 22,164 1.427,939

720,459 49,964
5t,946

1,137,972

161,801

791,562 1)) 64

49 64

(49,964)

5l 719

1,225

813,726

394,257
( I,132,988)(682,428)

791,562 (682,428) 22,164 (49,964) 76,220

791.562 38.031 22.164

89

1,427,939



CITY OF'ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Nonmajor Governmental - Capital Projects Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Revenues

Taxes

Intergovernmental

Licenses and Permits

Interest

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures

General Government

Highways and Streets

Economic Development
Capital Outlay
Debt Service

Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In
Transfers Out

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning

$

Local
Road

Transit
Oriented

Area
Development

610,219

351,326
376,565

26

t12.924
I,451,060

845,595

1,363,721

267,170
3s.845

2.512.32r

0.061.261)

437,970
(2s0.000)

r87,970

(873,291)

473.920 394,257

Fund Balances - Ending

90

ß99371\ 3942s7



TIF #I
Kirchoffl
Meadow

TTF #2

Kirchoff/
Owl

TIF #3

Woodfield

Plum
Grove
Road

Fire
Station Totals

153,355 415,427

260I

56,679

8

1,235,680

351,326

376,565

70

112,924

153,365 415,453 56,687 2.076.565

4r,417

40,467

450,000

1,393

41,417

845,585

41,860

1,363,721

717,170

95 110 130 955

41,417 585,577 1,393 3.140.708

I11,948 (t70,124) 55,294 (r.064.t43\

0,048.213)
437,970

(1.298.213')

(1,048,213) (860,243)

lll,948 (170,r24) 55,294 (r,048,2r3) (1,924,386)

679,614 (512,304) (33, I 30) (49,964) 2,000,606

79r.562 (682.428) 22,164

9t

ø9.964\

r,048,213

76.220



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Local Road - Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Budget

Orieinal Final Actual

Revenues

Taxes

Intergovernmental
Licenses and Permits
Interest

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Highways and Streets

Contracted Services
Supplies

Operating Supplies
Repairs and Maintenance Supplies

Capital Outlay
Street Improvements

Debt Service

Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In
Transfers Out

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning

$ 594,301
2,811,126

365,000
2s0

15,000

594,301
2,811,126

365,000

250
15,000

610,219

351,326

376,565
26

ll2,g24
3.785.677 3.785 ,677 I,451.060

776,749

99,600
20,000

2,656,858

250,170
35,393

776,749

99,600
20,000

2,656,858

250,170
35,393

774,761

61,507

9,317

1,363,721

267,170
35,845

3.838.770 3.838 ,770 2.512.321

(s3.093) (s3 ,093) (1,061,261)

437,970
(2s0.000)

437,970 437,970
(2s0,000)(2s0,000)

187,970 187,970 187,970

134.877 t34.877 (873,29t)

473,920

Fund Balance - Ending

92

(399,37t)



CITY OF ROLLING MEADO\ryS, ILINOIS

Transit Oriented Area Development - Capital Projects tr'und

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Budget
Orisinal Final Actual

Revenues

Interest

Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Expenditures

Public Works

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

$ 500
26,000

500

26,000
26,500

26,000

26,500

26,000

s00 s00

394,257

394.257
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CITY OF ROLLTNG MEADO\ryS, ILINOIS

TIF #1 Kirchoff/Meadow - Capital Proiects Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Budget
Original Final Actual

Revenues

Taxes

Property Taxes

Interest

Total Revenues

Expenditures

General Government

Contracted Services

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

$ 65,000
2s0

65,000
250

153,355

10

65,250 65,250

54.074

153,365

4t,41754,074

1l 176

94



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

TIF #2 Kirchoff/Owl - Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in f,'und Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Budget
Orieinal Final Actual

Revenues

Taxes

Property Taxes
Interest

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Economic Development
Contracted Services

Debt Service

Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

$ 400,000 400,000 415,427

26
400.000 400,000 4t5,453

44,074

467,000
95,735

44,074 40,467

467,000
95,735

450,000

95,1 l0
606.809 606,809 58s.577

(206.809) (206.809) (t70,124)

lsl 2,304)

(682.428)

95



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, LLINOIS

TIF #3 Woodfïeld - Capital Projects tr'und

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Budget
Orieinal Final Actual

Revenues

Taxes

lnterest
Total Revenues

Expenditures

Economic Development

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

25.000 25.000

$ 25,000 25,000 56,679

8

25,000 00025 56,687

1,393

55,294

(33,1 30)

22.164

96



CITY OF'ROLLING MEADOWS, LLINOIS

Fire Station - Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Budget
Original Final Actual

Revenues

lntergovernmental $

Expenditures

Capital Outlay

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing (Uses)

Transfers Out (r,049,213) (1,048,2r3) (1,048,213)

Net Change in Fund Balance (1,048.213) (1.048.213) (1,048,213)

Fund Balance - Beginning 1,048,213

Fund Balance - Ending

97



ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are hnanced and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises where the intent is that costs of providing goods or
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through
user charges; or where it has been decided that periodic determination of revenues .urnù,
expenses incurred and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy,
management control, accountability or other purpose.

Utilities Fund

The Utilities Fund is used to account for all resources collected and used to provide water and
sanitary services to the City as well as to account for the resources collected to finance storm
water runoff and creek bank improvements. All activities necessary to provide such services are
accounted for in this fund including, but not limited to, administration of billings and collections,
operations, and maintenance of the system.

Refuse Collection Fund

The Refuse Collection Fund is used to account for all the resources collected and used to provide
waste collection and disposal services to the City. All activities necessary to provide such
services are accounted for in this fund including, but not limited to, administration of billings and
collections, operations, and maintenance of the waste collection vehicles.



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Utilities - Enterprise f,'und

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Budget

Original Final Actual

Operating Revenues

Charges for Services
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses

Administration
Public Works
Operations

Depre c iation and Amort ization
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Interest Income

Interest Expense

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

$ 7,615,689
3,441,292

7,615,689
3,441,292

7,526,668
164,32r

11,056,991 1 1,056,991 7,690,989

999,691

575,000

9,696,832

899,691

575,000

9,696,392

871,634
575,000

4,594,r14
592,476

11.161.523 11.161 ,083 6,633,224

(t04,542) (104,102) 1,057,765

250
( 107,595)

250
(107,595)

585
(107,584)

(107,345) (107 ,345) (106,999)

(211,887\ (211,447) 950,766

9,830,035

10,780,801
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crTY oF'ROLLING MEADOWS, LLINOIS

Utifities - Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Operating Expenses - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Budget
Orieinal Final Actual

Administration
Salaries and Wages
Benefits
Contracted Services

Supplies

Total Administration

Public Works
Contracted Services

Operations

Water
Salaries and Wages

Benefits
Contracted Services

Supplies

Machinery & Equipment

Total Water

Sewer

Salaries and Wages

Benefits
Contracted Services

Supplies
Machinery & Equipment

Total Sewer

$ 170,976

87,426

630,799

s00

170,976

87,426

630,799
s00

167,362

87,282

616,871
119

889.691 889,691 871,634

575,000 575,000 575,000

7 53,97 5

345,781

317,774

2,910,115

2,053,400

753,975
345,781

315,010

2,912,615
2,053,400

627,494

314,049
239,009

2,478,531

83,026

6,381,045 6.380 ,781 3,742,098

341,597
177,580

138,622

66,750
1,940,000

341,597
177,590

139,534

66,750

376,069

190,440

35,710

40,443

1,956I

2.664.549 2.664,461 644,617
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, LLINOIS

Utilities - Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Operating Expenses - Budget and Actual - Continued
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Budget
Original Final Actual

Operations - Continued
Stormwater

Salaries and V/ages

Benefits
Contracted Services

Supplies

Machinery & Equipment

Total Stormwater

Total Operations

Deprec iati on and Amort ization

Total Operating Expenses

$ 93,045

24,213
169,205

42,275

322,500

93,045

24,213
169,117

42,275

322,500

89,082
25,790
42,664

14,7ll
35,152

651,239 65 1,1 50 207,399

9,696,832 9,696 ,392 4,594,114

592.476

I l- t6l 523 l1 161.083 6.633.224
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Refuse Collection - Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets - Budget and Äctual
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Budget
Original Final Actual

Operating Revenues

Charges for Services

Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses

Administration
Operations

Depreciation and Amortization
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income

Nonoperating (Expenses)

Interest Expense

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

s 2,397,932
97,114

2,397,932
97,114

2,397,920

r52,834
2.495.046 2.495,046 2,550,654

769,221

1,700,690

769,r33
1,700,690

768,939

1,457,070

57,578
2,469,911 2,469,923 2,283,587

25,135

(7,818)

25,223

(7,818)

267,067

(7,815)

17,317 n,405 259,252

351,306

610.558
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILTNOIS

Refuse Collection - Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Operating Expenses - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Budget
Original Final Actual

Administration
Salaries and Wages

Benefits
Contracted Services
Supplies

Total Administration

Operations

Salaries and Wages

Benefits
Contracted Services

Supplies

Total Operations

Deprec iation and Amort ization

Total Operating Expenses

s 27,602

6,433
734,936

250

27,602
6,433

734,949
250

32,255

7,629
728,877

178

769.221 769.t33 768,939

395,034
175,416

1,I23,315
6.925

395,034
t75,416

1,123,315

6,925

439,255

184,497

829,955

3,363

l,700.690 1,700,690 1,457,070

57,578

2.469.911 2 .823 2.283.s87

t02



INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing ofgoods or services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencies other governmental unit, or to other
governmental units, on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Municipal Garage Fund

The Municipal Garage Fund is used to account for the resources collected from other City
departments used to provide maintenance to City vehicles and major equipment/machinery.

Vehicle Replacement Fund

The Vehicle Replacement Fund is used to account for the resources collected from other City
departments used in replacing City vehicles and major equipment.

Buildings and Land Fund

The Buildings and Land Fund is used to account for the resources collected from other City
departments used for the purchase of land or buildings, or the remodeling, renovation, and
expansion of current buildings.

Liability Insurance Fund

The Liability lnsurance Fund is used to account for the resources collected from other City
departments used to manage funding of the propertylcasualty/workers compensation claims.

Health Insurance Fund

The Health Insurance Fund is used to account for resources collected from other City
departments to fund the City's portion of health insurance premiums as well as those of retired
employees.



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOTS

Combining Statement of Net Assets
Internal Service Funds

I)ecember 3l,20ll

See Following Page



CITY OX'ROLLING MEADOWS, LLINOIS

Combining Statement of Net Assets
Internal Service tr'unds

December 3l,20ll

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and Investments
Receivables - Net of Allowances - Accounts
Prepaids

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets

Nondepreciable
Depreciable
Accumulated Depreciation

Other Assets
Unamortized Bond Issuance Costs

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable
Deposits Payable
Compensated Absences Payable
Capital Leases Payable
General Obligation Bonds Payable

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated Absences Payable
Capital Leases Payable
General Obligation Bonds Payable

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets - Net of Related Debt
Unrestricted

Municipal
Garage

$ 64,750

64,750

9,247
(6,472)
2,775

2,775

67,525

25,514

4,736
1,949

32,099

82,989
154

83 t43
115,242

772
(48,489)

Total Net Assets

103

Ø7.717)



Vehicle
Replacement

Buildings
and Land

Liability
lnsurance

Health
Insurance Totals

625,975 66,293
3,282

230,598
1,560

92,584

362,049

1,426,290

1,349,665
4,942

1,5 18,874

625.975 69,575 324.742 1.788.339 2.873.381

742,109
17,820,910

fl r.ss8.961)

34l,16l
2,927,830

(r.t36.799)

1,093,270

20,757,987
02.702.232\

7,004,059 2,r32,192 9,139,025

2,4052,405
7,006,463 2,132,192 9,141,430

7,632,438 2,201,767 324,742 1,788,339 12,014,81r

91,439 67,856 5,432 233,978
303,1 10

424,219
303,1 l0

4,736
52,634
6s.000

50,785

6s.000
207.224 67,856 5.432 537.088 849.699

23r,925
70.000

82,989
232,079

70.000

30t.92s 38s.068

509.149 67,856 5.432 537.088 1.234.767

6,586,348
s36.941

2,132,192
1,7t9 3 19.310 1.251.251

9,719,312
2.060.732

3 9.3r07.123.289 2.133.9t1

t04

1.251_251 10.780.044



CITY OF'ROLLING MEADOWS, LLINOIS

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Internal Service Funds

Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Operating Revenues

Interfund Services
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses

Administration
Public Safety
Public Works
Depreciation and Amort ization

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Disposal of Capital Assets

Other Income

Interest Income

Interest Expense

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

Municipal
Garage

$ 1,176,132

6,319

1,182,450

1,L16,592

l,g4g
l,l lg,44l

64,009

(481)

(481)

63,528

(ltt,245)

(47 ,717\

105



Vehicle
Replacement

Buildings
and Land

Liability
Insurance

Health
Insurance Totals

458,127

143.620
364,242

6.600

964,454
78,987

2,999,992
I,350,882

5,962,837
1.586.407

601,747 370,842 1.,043,441 4,350,764 7,549.244

150,997

708,623

214,563
195, r 89

730,26r 4,457,412 6,304,265

150,997

214,563

905,661

859,620 409,752 730,261 4,457,412 7,575,496

(257,873) (38,910) 313,180 (106,648) (26,242)

34,192

39,254

Q4.t67)
79 634

34,192

39,254

713
(24,648)

49,279 79 634 49,511

(208,594)

7.33 1.883

(3 8,9 I 0)

2.172.821

313,259 (106,014) 23,269

6,051 1,357,265 10,7 56,77 5

7,123,289 2,133,9r1 319,310 1,2s1,251 10,780,044

106



crTY oF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds

Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
lnterfund Services Provided
Payments to Suppliers
Payments to Employees

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers In
Transfers Out

Cash Flows from Capital and Related

Financing Activities
Disposal of Capital Assets

Purchase of Capital Assets

Principal Paid on Debt
Interest Paid on Debt

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest Received

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash

Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Operating lncome (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income

to Net Cash Provided by (Used in)
Operating Activities

Depreciation and Amort ization
Other Income
(Increase) Decrease in Current Assets

Increase (Decrease) in Current Liabilities

Municipal
Garage

$ 1,248,479
(947,514)
(233,885)

67,080

( 1,849)

481

(2,330)

64,750

64.750

64,009

1,849

66,029
(64,807)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
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Vehicle
Replacement

Buildings
and Land

Liability
Insurance

Health
Insurance Totals

1,400,783
(84,729)

414,216
(294,t03)

982,071
(751,552)

4,938,396
(3,415,295)

8,883,945

(5,493,193)
(r.295.571)( I ,061,69 6)

t,3t6,0s4 t20.r13 230,5t9 36r,4r5 2,09 s.l8l

34,192
(471,t61)
(228,943)
(24,167)

(53,820)

34,192
(524,981)
(230,792)
(24,648)

(690.079) (s3 820) (746.229\

79 634 7t3

625,975 66,293 230,598 362,049 1,349,665

625.975 66.293 230,598 362,049 r.349"665

(257,873) (38,910)

195,189

313,180 (106,648)

487,632

(26,242)

905,66r
39,254

1,295,447

0 18.939)

708,623

39,254

759,782

66,268

43,374
(79.s40)

(61,370)
(21,291) (te,s69)

230,5191.316.054 t20.tt3
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CITY OF'ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Municipal Garage - Internal Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 3lr20ll

Budget
Orisinal Final Actual

Operating Revenues

Interfund Services

Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses

Administration
Motor Pool

Salaries and Wages

Benefits
Contracted Services

Supplies

Depreci ation and Amort ization
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating (Expenses)

Interest Expense

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

1,174,592

6,500

1,176,132

6,3 l8
$ 1,174,582

6.500

1,181,082 1,181 ,082 1,182,450

316,425

126,695

316,152
430,950

316,425
126,695

3t6,152
430,950

233,895

113,000

30 1,1 80

468,527

849I
1,190.222 l.l 90,222 1,r18,441

(9,140) (9,1 40) 64,009

(481)

(9.140) (9,140) 63,528

(rn,245)

(47.717)
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Vehicle Replacement - Internal Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Budget
Original Final Actual

Operating Revenues

Interfund Services

Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses

Administration
Public Safety

Depreciation and Amortization
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Disposal of Capital Assets

Other Income

Interest Income

Interest Expense

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

$ 458,127

88,565

458,127

88,565

458,127

143,620

546,692 546,692 601,747

r,200
714,555

1,200

756,275 150,997

708 623

715,7 55 757,475 859,620

(169,063) (2t0,783) (257,873)

2s0
(24,316)

250
(24,3t6)

34,192
39,254

(24,167)
(24,066) (24,066) 49,279

1193.129) (234.849\ (208,594)

7,33 1,883

7.123.289
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crrY oF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Buildings and Land - Internal Service tr'und

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Budget

Orieinal Final Actual

Operating Revenues

Interfund Services

Miscellaneous
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses

Public Works
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

$ 361,400
104,200

361,400
104,200

364,242
6,600

465.600 465,600 370,842

453,213 453,213 214,563

195 189

453,213 453,213 409,752

12,387 12,387 (38,910)

2,172,821

2.133.911

tll



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, LLINOIS

Liability Insurance - Internal Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Budget
Original Final Actual

Operating Revenues

Interfund Services

Miscellaneous
Insurance Rebate

Other

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses

Administration
Liability Insurance

Unemployment
Reimbursable Repairs

Change to Insurance Reserves

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income

Nonoperating Revenues

Interest Income

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

$ 964,454

10,000

964,454

10,000

964,454

21,069

57 918

974,454 974,454 1,043,441

790,264

50,000
12,500

790,264

50,000
12,500

764,475

13,3 80

11,777

(59,371)

852,764 852,764 730,26t

121,690 l2l,690 313,180

79

t2t t2t 690 313,259

6,051

3r9,310

tt2



CITY OF ROLLING MEÄDOWS, LLINOIS

Health Insurance - Internal Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Budget
Original Final Actual

Operating Revenues

Interfund Services
Miscellaneous

Employee Contributions
Retiree Contributions
Other

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses

Administration
Group Health

PPO White
PPO Blue
HMO
Retirees
PSEBA

Dental lnsurance
PPO

HMO
Retirees

Life Insurance

Medical Waivers
Retiree Payouts

Other
Total Operating Expenses

Operating lncome (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues

lnterest Income

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning

s 3,267,837 3,267,937

365,000
475,000

365,000
475,000

2,999,992

329,689
539,496
481.697

4,107,837 4,107 ,837 4350,764

1,155,910

105,818

l,5ll,l56
522,859
22,326

69,551

55,399

5,714
17,659

'765

700,000

3,000

1,155,910

105,g l g

1,511,156

522,859
22,326

1,135,899

96,409
1,471,713

521,902
22,023

69,551

55,388

5,714
17,659

765

700,000

3,000

69,114
51,633

4,757

17,03 8

648

1,061,696

4.600
4,170,146 4,r 70,146 4,457,412

(62,309) (62,309) (106,648)

2s0

(62.0s9) (62.059) (106,014)

1,357,265

634250

Net Assets - Ending
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TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

Police PensÍon Fund

The Police Pension Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources to be used for
retirement annuity payments to employees on the police force at appropriate amounts and times
in the future. Resources are contributed by employees at rates hxed by law and by the City at
amounts determined by an annual actuarial study.

Firefighters' Pension Fund

The Firefighters'Pension Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources to be used
for retirement annuity payments to employees on the fire department at appropriate amounts and
times in the future. Resources are contributed by employees at rates fixed by law and by the City
at amounts determined by an annual actuarial study.

AGENCY FUNDS

Compliance Deposits Fund

The Compliance Deposits Fund is used to account for money paid to the City pursuant to zoning
and building codes.



crTY oF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Pension Trust Funds

Combining Statement of Net Plan Assets
December 3l,20ll

Police
Pension

Firefighters'
Pension Totals

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Investments

U.S. Government and Agency Obligations
Corporate Bonds

Mutual Funds

Common Stock

Insurance Company Contracts

Receivables

Accrued lnterest

Due from Other Funds

Prepaids

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Liabilities
Accounts Payable

NET ASSETS

Held in Trust for Pension Benefits

181,839

24,939 83,419 109,357

18,409 1 8,1 04 36,513

77s 1,646 2,421

25,727,664 20,700,116 46,427,780

20,221 2,373 22,594

25.707.443 .743 46.405.186

$ 3,308,880

6,225,707

4,334,527

9,260,552
2,553,876

2,872,939

6,018,246

4,265,782
7,258,241

6,181,719

12,243,953

8,600,309
16,518,793

2,553,876
181,839

Lt4



CITY OF ROLLTNG MEADOWS, LLTNOIS

Pension Trust Funds

Combining Statement of Changes in Net Plan Assets
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Police
Pension

Firefighters'
Pension Totals

Additions
Contributions - Employer
Contributions - Plan Members
Miscellaneous

Total Contributions

Investment Earnings

Interest Earned

Net Change in Fair Value

Less Investment Expenses

Net Investment Income

Total Additions

Deductions

Administration
Benefits and Refunds

Total Deductions

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

$ 2,245,217

515,232

2,213,935
371,713

2.149

4,459,152
886,945

2,149
2.760.449 2.587 ,797 5.348.246

654,266

Ø89.123)
842,774

602,139)

1,49',7,040

(r.091.262)(

165,143

168.852

240,635
(58,867)

405,779

(127 ,719\)
96.291 181,769 278.059

2,856.740 2.769 ,565 5.626.30s

51,718

2,019,213
48,555

2,410,449
100,273

4,429,661

2,070,93r 2.459,003 4,529,934

785,809

24.921.634

310,562 1,096,371

20.387 ,191 45,308.815

25.70',7.443 .743 46.40s.186
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CITY OF',ROLLING MEADOWS, LLINOIS

Compliance Deposits - Agency Fund

Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Year Ended December 3l,20ll

Beginning
Balances Additions Deductions

Ending
Balances

ASSETS

Cash and lnvestments

Due from Other Governments

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable

Deposits Payable

Total Liabilities

$ 271,183 82,750

82,s00

122,775 23l,l5g

82,500

27t.r83 165.250 122.775 313.658

82,500 82,500

271.t83 82,750 t22.775 231,158

271"t83 t6s.2s0 122.775 313.6s8

tt6



SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILLINOIS

Long-Term Debt Requirements
General Obligation Bonds of 20024

December 3lr20ll

Date of lssue

Date of Maturity
Authorized Issue

Denomination of Bonds

Interest Rates

Interest Dates

Principal Maturity Date

Payable at

Fund Debt Retired By
Purpose of Debt

April15,2002
December L,2018
$4,885,000

$5,000
4.40% - 4.90%
June I and December I
December 1

Amalgamated Bank of Chicago
Debt Service
Access Road from Golf Road to Algonquin Road

CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Requirements Interest Due on

Principal lnterest Totals Jun. I Amount Dec. 1 Amount

Tax
Levy
Year

20tt
20t2
2013

2014
20t5
20r6
2017

$ 370,000

385,000

405,000

420,000

440,000

465,000

495,000

r4r,516
124,692
106,876

87,840
67,890
46,550

23,766

511,516

509,682

511,876

507,840

507,890

511,550

508,766

20t2
20t3
20t4
2015

2016
2017

2018

70,758
62,341

53,439

43,920

33,945

23,275

I l,gg3

70,758

62,341

53,438
43,920

33,945

23,275

I 1,993

2012
20t3
20r4
2015

20t6
2017

20t8

2.970.000 s99.120 3.569,120 299.s60 _229&_

lt7



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILLINOIS

Long-Term Debt Requirements
General Obligation Bonds of 20028

December 3L,20ll

Date of Issue

Date of Maturity
Authorized Issue

Denomination of Bonds
Interest Rates

Interest Dates

Principal Matuity Date

Payable at

Fund Debt Retired By
Purpose of Debt

Jlur:re 15,2002
December 1,2020
$2,600,000

$5,000
3.6s% - 4.7s%
June I and December I
December I
Amalgamated Bank of Chicago
urilities
Storm Water System Improvements

CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Requirements Interest Due on
Principal Interest Totals Jun. I Amount Dec. I Amount

Tax
Levy
Year

20lt
2012
20t3
2014
2015

2016
2017

2018
2019

$ 140,000

150,000

155,000
160,000

170,000

190,000

195,000

195,000

205,000

69,718

63,909

57,534
50,790
43,670

36,020
27,696
19,000

9,738

209,718
2l3,g0g
2r2,534
210,790
213,670

216,020
212,696

214,000
2r4,739

34,859

31,954
28,767
25,395
21,935

18,010

l3,g4g
9,500

4,869

34,859

31,954
28,767

25,395

21,935

18,010

l3,g4g
9,500

4,969

20r2
2013

2014
2015

20t6
2017

2018

2019
2020

20t2
2013

2014
2015

20t6
2017

2018

20t9
2020

1,540,000 378,074 1,919,074 189.037 r 89.037
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Long-Term Debt Requirements
General Obligation Bonds of 2003

December 3l,20ll

Date of Issue

Date of Maturity
Authorized Issue

Denomination of Bonds
Interest Rates

Interest Dates

Principal Maturity Date

Payable at

Fund Debt Retired By
Purpose of Debt

March 15,2003
January 1,2018
$4,030,000

$5,000
2.90% -3.70%
July I and January I
January 1

Amalgamated Bank of Chicago
TIF #2 Kirchoff/Owl
Redevelopment Proj ect Costs

CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Requirements lnterest Due on

Principal Interest Totals Jul. I Amount Jan. I Amount

Tax
Levy
Year

2OII
2012
20t3
2014
20r5
20r6

2012
2013

20t4
2015

20t6
2017

20t3
20r4
2015
2016
20t7
2018

$ 365,000

375,000

390,000
400,000

415,000

430,000

82,900

70,672

58,1 10

44,850
30,850

15,910

447,900
445,672

448,110

444,850

445,850

445,910

41,450

35,336
29,055

22,425

15,425

7,955

151,646

41,450

35,336

29,055
22,425

15,425

7,955

15t.6462.375.000 303.292 2.678.292
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CITY OF'ROLLING MEADOWS, LLINOIS

Long-Term Debt Requirements
General Obligation Bonds of 2004

December 3l,20ll

Date of Issue

Date of Maturity
Authorized Issue

Denomination of Bonds

Interest Rates

Interest Dates

Principal Maturity Date

Payable at

Fund Debt Retired By
Purpose of Debt

September 15,2004
January 1,2024

$9,070,000

$5,000
3.2s% - 4.40%
July 1 and January I
January I
Amalgamated Bank of Chicago

Debt Service

Redevelopment Costs - Meadows Town Mall and Meijer Store

Tax
Levy
Year

CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Requirements Interest Due on

Principal Interest Totals Jul. I Amount Jan. I Amount

20rt
2012
2013

20r4
2015

2016
2017

2018

20r9
2020
2021

2022

258,452

247,076

234,652

220,612

205,072

187,592
168,092

r46,492
r22,360
95,900

66,660

34,540

583,452

602,076

624,652

640,612

665,072

687,592

708,092
731,492

752,360
775,900
796,660
819,540

20t2
2013

2014
2015

2016
20t7
2018

20t9
2020
2021

2022

2023

2013

2014
20r5
2016
2017

201 8

2019

2020

2021
2022

2023

2024

129,226

123,539

117,326

110,306

r02,536
93,796

84,046

73,246
61,180
47,950
33,330
17,270

$ 325,000

355,000

390,000

420,000

460,000

500,000

540,000

585,000

630,000
690,000

730,000

785,000

129,226

123,539

117,326

110,306

t02,536
93,796

84,046

73,246
61,180
47,950
33,330
17,270

993.7s0 993,7s06.400.000 1,987,s00 8,387.500
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crrY oF ROLLTNG MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Long-Term Debt Requirements
General Obligation Bonds of 2005

December 3l,20ll

Date of Issue

Date of Maturity
Authorized Issue.

Denomination of Bonds
lnterest Rates

lnterest Dates

Principal Maturity Date

Payable at

Fund Debt Retired By
Purpose of Debt

November 1,2005
December 1,2017
$7,425,000
$5,000
3.7s% - 4.00%
June I and December I
December I
Amalgamated Bank of Chicago
Debt Service
Street, Water Supply, and Sanitary Sewer Improvements

CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Requirements Interest Due on

Principal Interest Totals Jun. I Amount Dec. I Amount

Tax
Levy
Year

20It
2012
20t3
2014
20ts
2016

$ 670,000

690,000

715,000

745,000
770,000
900,000

175,600

149,900

121,200

92,600
62,800
32,000

845,600

838,800

836,200

937,600

832,800

832,000

87,800

74,400
60,600
46,300

31,400
16,000

87,800

74,400
60,600
46J00
31,400
16,000

20t2
2013

20t4
2015

2016
20t7

2012
20t3
20r4
2015

20t6
2017

4.390.000 633.000 s.023,000 3 16.s00 3 16,500

t2r



CITY OF ROLLTNG MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Long-Term Debt Requirements
General Obligation Bonds of 2007

December 3l,20ll

Date of Issue

Date of Maturity
Authorized Issue

Denomination of Bonds
lnterest Rates

Interest Dates

Principal Maturity Date
Payable at

Fund Debt Retired By
Purpose of Debt

}lf.ay 1,2007
December 1,2013
$410,000

$5,000
3.9s% - 4.ls%
June I and December I
December 1

Harris Bank N.A. Chicago
Vehicle Replacement
Acquisition of Vehicles and Equipment

CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Requirements Interest Due on

Principal Interest Totals Jun. I Amount Dec. I Amount

Tax
Levy
Year

2OIL
2012

$ 65,000

70,000

5,570
2,904

70,570
72,904

2,795
1,452

4.237

2,795

1,452

_!øt_

20t2
2013

2012
2013

r3s,000 8,474 143,474
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crrY oF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Long-Term Debt Requirements
General Obligation Bonds oT 2007A.

December 3l,20ll

Date of Issue

Date of Maturity
Authorized Issue

Denomination of Bonds

lnterest Rate

Interest Dates

Principal Maturity Date

Payable at

Fund Debt Retired By
Purpose of Debt

December 31,2007
December 1,2017

$2,835,000
$5,000
3512%
June I and December I
December 1

Bank of America Chicago

Utilities, Refuse Collection, Local Roads

Fire Station, Water Supply/Distribution System Improvements,

Acquisition of Recycling Carts

Tax
Levy
Year

CURRENT AND FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Requirements Interest Due on

Principal Interest Totals Jun. I Amount Dec. I Amount

20lt
20t2
20t3
20r4
20r5
2016

$ 280,000

290,000

300,000

310,000

320,000

330,000

64,270

54,436
44,250
33,714
22,828
1r.590

344,270

344,436

344,250

343,714
342,828
34r,590

2012
20t3
20t4
20t5
2016
20t7

32,135
27,218
22,125
16,857

ll,4l4
5,795

32,135

27,218
22,125

16,957

ll,4l4
5,795

20r2
20t3
2014
20r5
20r6
2017

1,830.000 231.088 rrs.544 JJl.s44

861,668

968,332

Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities

1.830.000
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STATISTICAL SECTION
(Unaudited)

This part of the comprehensive annual frnancial report presents detailed information as a context
for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about the City's overall financial health.

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most significant local
revenue sources.

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's
current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the City's financial activities take place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the City's financial report relates to the services the City provides and the
activities it performs.



crTY oF ROLLTNG MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Net Assets by Component - Last Ten tr'iscal Years*
December 31, 2011 (Unaudited)

See Following Page



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Net Assets by Component - Last Ten Fiscal Years*
December 31, 20ll (Unaudited)

2002 2003 2004 2005

Governmental Activities
Invested in Capital Assets -

Net of Related Debt
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Governmental
Activities Net Assets

Business-Type Activities
Invested in Capital Assets -

Net of Related Debt

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Business-Type

Activities Net Assets

Primary Government

Invested in Capital Assets -

Net of Related Debt

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Primary Government

Net Assets

$ 114,467,959

9,574,375

10,293,208

1 18,105,904

9,237,670

4,910,696

110,976,358

7,452,856
4,075,599

104,92r,357

13,012,7r1

4,126,247

134,335,542 132,154,260 122,504,803 122,060,315

3,800,644 5,310,646 5,760,042 5,990,429

5,369,935 2,983,549 1,431,808 1,392,591

9,170,579 8,294,195 7,191,850 7 ,263,020

I 18,268,603

9,574,375

15,663,143

123,416,550

9,237,670

7,794,235

116,736,400

7,452,856

5,507,397

110,801,786

13,012,711

5,508,838

143,506,121 140,448,455 129,696,653 129,323,335

* Accrual Basis of Accounting

Data Source: Audited Financial Statements

Note: The City adopted GASB No. 34 for the year ended December 31,2002
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2006 200'7 2008 2009 2010 20tt

109,358,442

5,940,947

5,356,570

105,646,508

3,753,784
8,983,731

109,272,5r9
1,647,970

(s,930,130)

108,882,307

2,051,951

(5,645,470)

108,392,130

1,699,491
(4,534,946)

11r,771,420
2,767,336

(7,s15,610)

120.6ss.9s9 118.384.023 104.990.3s8 r05,288,688 105.556.77s 107.023.146

6,576,137 5,085,394 7,126,981 8,491,159 8,095,949 9,449,043

1,069,r07 r,259,025 713,479 315,541 2,095,393 2,942,316

7.645.244 6.344.419 7.840.360 8,806,700 10,1g l,34l I1.391.359

115,934,579

5,940,947

6,425,677

110,731,902

3,753,784
10,242,756

116,399,399

1,647,970
(5,216,651)

117,373,466

2,051,951
(5,329,929)

116,488,078

l,699,4gr
(2,449,453)

120,220,463

2,767,336

(4,573,294)

128,301,203 124,728,442 112,830,719 114,095,399 115,739,116 119,414,505
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, LLINOIS

Changes in Net Assets - Last Tetr Fiscal Years*
December 31, 2011 (Unaudited)

Expenses

Govemmental Activities
General Govemment
Public Safety
Highways and Streets

Public Works
Health and Welfare
Economic Development
Interest on Long-Te¡m Debt

Total Govemmental Activities Expenses

Business-Type Activities
Water
Sewer

Refi¡se

Storm Water MÐragement

Street Light Utility
Utilities

Total Business-Type Activities Expenses

Total Prima¡y Goverument Expenses

Program Revenues

Govemmental Activities
Cbarges for Services

General Government

Public Safety

Highways a¡d Streets

Public Works
Operating Grants/Contributions
Capital G¡antVContributions

Total Govemmental Activities Program Revenues

Business-Type Activities
Charges for Services

Water
Sewe¡

Ref:se
Storn Water Management

Street Light Utility
Utilities

Operating Grants/Contributions
Capital Grants/Contributions

Total Business-Type Activities Program Revenues

Total Primary GovertrmeÃt Program Revenues

s

2002

6,842,446

12,2t4,412
r,060,477

r,899,263

226,2r5
408,374

577 eLA

11 ))9 ñ11

3,9 18,608

1,239,791

r,797,742
88, r 57

2003

5,830,572

13,576,522

1,0 r9,80s
r,559,325

243,4t3
34s,t3 I

11

4,t07,305
t,000,747
r,756,0s7

326,57r
76,r40

7 )Ã6 *)î

1^ AlA 
^1Á

4,246,842
909,788

2,622,898
76r.664
.541-192

3,3 88, l s0
1,020,t44
1,63 1,862

302,642

2004

7,521,694
14,35 1,010

1,t42,852
1,601,I80

25t,207
8,22t,94s

4,332,690
823,218

r,8s3,234
317,309
84,20r

2005

6,145,099

ts,2s3,378
1,869,904

1,871,045

236,829
s0,827

QÀ/1 <'r<

)6)71 6î1

4,307,934
764,523

r,763,795
435,54t

8ó,3 16

7 1{C

?1 Áfo 7t6

5,55r,277
1,4s9,t45

2006

3,490,22s

16,061,263

5,0r2,5t7
r,935,883

67,394
48,841

1 ñ1t )1)

27 1617 i55

4,393,038
982,322

2,r23,270
390,878

ì03,826

oq1 1 34

?{ Á1n Áeo

3,175,688

t,674,630

179,560

756.145

s.796.023

3,'765,740

r,200,544
2,230,404

463,s34
2,405

2007

4,72t,609
19,927,423

4,476,6t3
2,246,r08

103,638

t22,229
07) 9.ÁÃ

4,768,t20
t,251,397

2,38r,456
508,623

91,310

3,641,078

r,830,923

56,87 |
1.004.163

6.s33.035

3,917,773

r,277,88s
2,28t,387

493,8t5

7.970.860

2008

5,050,686

20,450,625

2,639,76r
4,155,140

2s,680
25r,734
nsn tl

4,772,997

t,r'78,925
2,488,338

603,328

2,862,046
1,680,285

367,344
40,000

13 1,846

862,720

4,580,044
r,s76,209
? 5?S 5?r

\1ft ))')

5,r42,807
18,504,1s0

r,063,134
3,449,304

30,07 I
62)22

2009

13 g l8

4,859,697

1,305,382

2,47t,363
476,415

1 AñA aal
) 7)1 \11

377,951

87,436

868,063

5,428,887

r,663,77 r

2,481,918

895,93 5

2010*+

3,866,996

t7,950,149
673,460

5,708,28 I
23,721

32,982
9)\ ì)6,

2,23s,239

2,278,235

379,500

r29,7tl
743.796

20tl

4,23s,018
t9,535,204

t,136,370
3,948,420

9,537

42,130
79 4aq

) 7q) 1'11

1,935,468

376,565

rt5,119
i.068,261

<o¿ ¿11 Ál 5 t5n
6S)06 33 705- 138

9

) eo 486 33.623.837 29.165.706 29.080.615 29.659,138

ñaa )49.7 47 ñ 65? 109 7

2,543,219 2,291,402

6.432.610 ó.740,808
q 0ô0 906 s 043-588 9.rr2.857 8.975.889 9.032,210

^1 
<)t 1Q) L1 Á61 4)5 7R)73 561 38.056-504 38.691.348n t?? 111

3,02'7,809

895, I 63

120,069
8 l 5_879

485

3,3 1 1,046

965,3 l8
r,704,758

260,249

6.241.371

920 8

¿l I l< 7an

4,742,608
t,424,r6r

3,411,460
t,0rr,446
r,896,7 59

326,49t

t03,324 72,863

7 16.557 787 -5 l5
6.986.650 870 R007 s.944.24r s.970.920 sJ66,481 5,788,386

3,824,944
1,r15,544
2,020,598

4r4,679
300

2,441,652 2,550,654

7 ,97r,358 7,690,989

8 13,878

10.015.881 10,470,51I 10,413,010 10,241,643

185,922 20,658

6.s28.720 6.612.814

1'\ Á\A L6L

,i76.O65 7.662-6277

I lôn1ô ì s ñÁo o1,

t26

1< 1ÁÁ 9<< 1 1 AAQ A<A r ¿ <n? eo{ 1< qÁn r22 t6 441 411 t Á I1q aa1 I 
'< 

nln nrq



2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

$ (18,370,r13) (t4,628,0r4) (26,718,488) (18,400,807) (2t,8s1,332) (2s,987,4sr)
(802.927\ t738^100) 1737.83 8) T7 q56 (370707\ fi-030.0461

2008 2009

(27,679,s96) (23,194,786')

972.293 t.3s7.654

20 l0**

(23,314,134)

t,437,t2l

20tl

(23,870,7 s2)
r.209.433

Net @xpense) Revenue

Govemmental Activities
Business-Type Activities

Total Primary Governmeût Net (Expense) Revenue

General Revenues a¡rd Other Cha¡rges in Net Assets

Govemmental Activities
Taxes

Property
Sales aud Home Rule
Income
Replacement

Hotel
Food and Beverage

Real Eståte Tra¡sfer
Other Taxes

Electric Utility
Telecommunications Taxes

lnterest
Miscellaneous
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets

Trausfers

Total Govemmental Activities

rro r7? n¿nì tl<16,É, 1la\ n1 4\6,1)Á\ lrR 1R? Rslì O) 1A).O19\ 07.O17.497\ 06307-303\ 01.837.132\ Q1.877,013\ Q2,661J19\

6,326,670
4,02t,769
r,624,83f

t47,876
273,8rO

1,129,800

s25,481

264,879

6,667,625
3,850,78 1

r,5tt,770
r59,t2s
259,596
899,494
66t,454
245;743

6,63 t,757
s,384,657

t,574,803
172,583

263,684
t,2s0,607

912,866
2s8,288

7,361,063

5,724,848
r,8s1,239

238,523

248,527

t,276,799
802,639

288,052

224,106
13,708

7,s34,448
s,642,929

2,015,888

250,109

304,677

t,3t8,674
594,248

s8s,297

2,065,561

s73,027

356,266

2,518

9,308, I 52

s,878,24s
2,r96,4t7

303,772

265,716
1,339,008

386,09 l
60s,793

8,s32,8 l0
5,612,900

2,326,382
207,587

45 I,898
t,293,970

269,663

l, l8 1,778

2,038,337

61,928

t,174,766

9,112,215

5,1 15,760

r,999,825
177,37 I
288,634

r,22r,391
t9r,259
918,055

1,30 t,0 l6
2,075,334

4,s72

696,66t

10,548,012

4,726,022

r,923,69s
194,281

289,076

t,216,96r
174,8r9
783,5 l8

1,3 10,453

t,846,728
J, /JO

508,5 r8

tt,826,t32
4,930,57s
1,9 1s,788

18 1,ó80

333,374

t,2r2,t22
r 53,688

802,280

1,295,9 l8
t,936,227

8,47r
740,868

508,892

227,795
195,008

436,235

r29,419
tr7,425

2,047,648
26t,614
612,t2t

(4,r37)

15

t6

39,422

I I 1,836

7t7 7 l9 23

714

32,658 13,400

23 r23

585
Business-Type Activities

lnterest
Miscellaneous
Gain (Loss) on Sale ofCapital Assets

Tralsfers

102,865

332,093
8,435 (19,971) (42,s36)

3,300

5 1,000

(2s,828)
88,1 6 1

(6,078)

Total Business-Type Activities

Total Primary Govemme[t

Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities

Total Primary Goverûmelrt

tôÁ eol

t5 4?6 761

(3,090,243)
lss6 0i4l

(1 6?6 )77\

ftaT 55Rì (16,4 5ñ1\

l s rì3R oR9 16'704 524

707,633
lr -035-658) l 1.102.34s1

r1?R 0?5ì lt0 7sl R02ì

<1 I

7 I

18s

14

t70

570 8s7

ls0

jf?17 Sillì 5)7 644 (39 (Â) 49,ñ\

268,087

t -374-641

1 60 7)8

t4

r R nno s11 2t )5

(9,649,4s7) (444,488) (1,175,783) (2,086,367\ (s,018,5ó7)

)45

4n6 )i s67 554 23.184.677 23.115-493 23.519.741 25.337,708

fl-3 .s761 r.495.94167

3t2,02t
966.340

r,466,37 |
1.210.018

2.616.3891171 1 I R\ ß)6 611\ li 45'ì g4i\ (i 5?2 626\ 1.278-361

+ Accrual Basis of Accounting
** For the year ended December 31, 2010, the City condensed Water, Sewer, and Stormwater Managemeot into one Fuld, the Utilities Fund.

Data Sou¡ce: Audited Financial Statements

Note: The City adopted GASB No. 34 for the year erded December 3 1, 2002.
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

tr'und Balances of Governmental Funds - Last Ten Fiscal Years*

December 31, 20ll (Unaudited)

2002 2003 2004

General Fund

Reserved

Unreserved

Nonspendable

Unassigned

Total General Fund

All Other Governmental Funds

Reserved

Unreserved, Reported in,

Special Revenue Funds

Debt Service Funds

Capital Projects Funds

Nonspendable

Restricted

Assigned

Unassigned

$ 1,410,309

2,93r,497
1,7 56,020

1,405,341

1,631,733

1,801,605

4,341,800 3,161,361 3,433,338

993,523 88r,247 698,338

1,058,323

9,622,r59
860,986

(70,912)

6,199,786

r,r45,l4l
(60,449)

3,916,748

Total All Other Governmental Funds 10,674,005 7,871,107 5,599,778

Total Fund Balances of All Governmental Funds 15,015,805 11,032,468 9,033,116

* Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting

Data Source: Audited Financial Statements

Note: The Cify moved the accounting for its insurance activities from the General Fund to two

newly created intemal service funds. The City also transferred certain capital projects funds

to internal service funds.

The City adopted GASB No. 54 for the year ended December 3l,20ll
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2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 20lr

2,373,441

1,493,152

2,759,673

933,072

23,280
(558,108)

885,1 76

(3,259,880)

31,143
(755,684)

38,662
(276,386)

17,154

835.647t,

3,856,593 3,692,745 (534,828) (2,374,704) (724,541) (237,724) 1,852,801

599,942 684,867 406,996 3,093 39,266

1,036,954

10,919,372

l,62l,l0l
(11,785)

3,802,109

1,890,821

(94,750)

1,394,085

1,632,220

(202,957)

759,234

1,558,533

944,48r
2,143,972

r,gg0,23g

733,690
2,000,606

43,704

2,767,336

394,257

(1,577 ,366)

12,546,268 6,096,292 3,597,152 2,191,580 4,686,252 4,624,535 1,627,931

16,402,961 9,789,037 3,052,324 (183,124) 3,961,711 4,396,81 I 3,480,732
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CITY OF'ROLLING MEADO\üS, ILINOIS

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds - Last Ten Fiscal Years*
December 31, 20ll (Unaudited)

2002 2003 2004

Revenues

Taxes

Intergovernmental

Licenses and Permits

Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest

Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Expenditures

General Government

Public Safety

Highways and Streets

Public Works
Health and Welfare
Economic Development
Capital Outlay
Debt Service

Bond Defeasance

Professional Fees

Principal Retirement
Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Disposal of Capital Assets

Debt Issuance

Premium/Discount on Debt Issuance

Transfers In
Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Debt Service as a Percentage

of Noncapital Expenditures

* Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting
Data Source: Audited Financial Statements

20,332,232 23,634,683 24,375,040

$ 12,653,281
2,946,593

995,859
l,1g 1,g 1g

366,022
4gg,3g3

1,800,276

12,343,971
2,955,248
I,192,524
1,507,908

331,116
183,585

5,120,271

16,160,343

3,032,939
1,136,599
1,993,875

476,295
tt7,937

1,457,052

3,292,943

12,395,620

1,168,464

1,356,053

228,616
408,374

3,933,587

855,000

553,491

2,9r5,476
13,375,679

1,127,800

1,429,494

244,736

345,131

8,734,712

3,014,290
21,295

895,000

605,759

3,834,734

14,858,842

1,168,220

1,440,090

251,597

8,221,945

3,321,074

137,781

955,000

628,554

24,192,148 32,708,362 34,817,827

(3,859,916) (9,073,679) (t0,442,787)

4,995,000 4,030,000 8,070,000

3,543,088
(3,2r5,023)

4,068,246
(3,609,456)

11,562,784
(1 1,189,349)

5,213,065 4,488,790 8,443,435

1.3s3,149 (4,s84.889) (1,99e,3s2)
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2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 20r0 20tt

17,289,700

3,964,740
1,173,272

2,049,499
494,245

203,689

759,733

17,832,188

3,857,675
r,093,799
2,700,640

654,288
537,225

530,800

19,308,907
4,021,047

1,010,634
2,996,532

619,072
190,513

407,520

19,016,882

3,933,009
1,017,538

2,872,146
I ,01 9,99 I

26,760

r,174,766

20,571,562

3,395,015
1,164,750

2,2r0,r23
1,448,596

3,656

508,5 18

22,139,213

3,632,551
1,337,517

2,070,329

1,196,561

7,758

740,868

19,937,896

3,788,179
1,r53,258
2,431,206

1,055,241

3,244

696,661

25,924,878 27,206,615 27,553,225 29 1,092 29,071,685 29,292,220 31,124,796

3,546,548

14,928,155
1,288,266

1,602,790

35,956

136,170

2,336,720

4,093,515

16,002,500
1,630,778

2,105,611
42,000
48,841

9,746,520

4,176,069
17,700,593

1,376,631
2,917,051

23,013
I19,358

2,356,659

4,225,872

19,222,960
1,997,103

2,128,901

25,680
251,734

1,670,995

3,541,481

17,272,340

586,396
2,545,694

30,071

62,322

995,943

1,639,923

890,602

3,512,882
18,731,524

613,460
2,669,229

23,721

32,982
l,l14,g52

3,00'7,460

837,422

3,357,499

19,269,706

1,136,370

2,417,394

9,537

42,130

2,062,621

2,972,170

76s,t30
1,370,000

808,782

1,445,000

1,074,145

1,535,000

944,17'7

1,474,744

892,309

26,053,387 35,178,910 3 1,048,556 3 1,890,298 27,s64,772 30,602,631 32,032,547

(128,509) (7,972,295) (3,495,331) (2,829.206) 1,s06,913 (1,310,411) (907,7st)

74,968 7,040 851

83,897

1,259

1,3 15,000

10,456

1,200,000

80)

672

7,425,000

145,9r2
3,351,565

ß.424.222)

2,595,995
(2,228,222)

2,093,122
(4,275,361) 82,2 ,656,3

1,412,903

0.412.903\
2,977 ,970 3,288,518 2,712,782

(3,468.960) (3.1 ll) 0
7,498,255 442,741 (2,175,199) 2) 1,422,s6s 2.266.8s8 1,672

7.369.746 (7.s29.5s4) (5,670,s30) ß,235.448) 2.929.478 9s6.44',7 t906.079)

7.7r%9.2% 9.0% 8.6%
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILTNOIS

Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property - Last Ten Levy Years
December 31, 20ll (Unaudited)

Tax

Levy
Year

Residential
Property

Commercial
Property

Industrial
Less:

Tax-Exempt
Property

$ 311,568,710 $ 341,333,965 s t60,214,607 $

3 I 1,038,930 328,652,215 147,797,999

362,666,993 376,208,996 164,827,057

389,984,765 393,743,154 175,310,583

404,157,732 393,299,304 177,721,407

480,227,000 408,031,980 196,854,692

522,464,745 419,355,712 210,864,899

572,817,559 391,540,159 181,795,503

N/A N/A N/A

Data Source: Office of the Cook County Clerk

Note: Property is assessed at 33%o of actual value

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

20t0
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Total
Taxable

Assessed

Value

Total
Direct Tax

Rate

Estimated

Actual
Taxable

Value

Ratio of Total
Assessed Value

to Total Estimated

Actual Value

$ 813,1 17,r82

787,489,r43

903,702,926

959,038,502

965,178,443

1,095,113,672

r,152,685,356

r,146,L53,220

1,003,838,180

0.775

0.818

0.763

0.719

0.723

0.723

0.730

0.849

1.065

s 2,439,351,546

2,362,467,429

2,711,108,778

2,877,115,506

2,895,535,329

3,255,341,016

3,458,056,068

3,438,459,660

3,011,514,540

3333%

33.33%

33.33%

33.33%

33.33%

33.33%

33.33%

33.33%

33.33%
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADO\ryS, ILINOIS

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates - Last Ten Levy Years
Elk Grove Township
December 31, 20ll (Unaudited)

200r 2002 2003

City Direct Rates

General

Debt Service

Pension Trust
Police Pension

Firefighters' Pension

Total City Direct Rates

Component Unit - Library Direct Rate

Total City Direct Rate

Overlapping Rates - Elk Grove Township

Cook County
Forest Preserve District
Suburban Tuberculosis Sanitarium

Metropolitan Sanitary District
Northwest Mosquito Abatement

Consolidated Elections

Elk Grove

Town

Road and Bridge

General Assistance

School Districts
School District Number 15

High School District Number 214

Community College District Number 512

Rolling Meadows Park District

Total Overlapping Rates - Elk Grove Township

Total Direct and Overlapping Rates

Data Source: Office of the County Clerk

7.386 7.023 7.268

8.s33 8.125 8.441

$ 0.585

0.121

0.s34
0.1 15

0.569

0.1 19

0.06r
0.06s

0.06s

0,06s

0.049

0.052
0.807

0.340

0.775

0.327

0.818

0.355

|.147 t.t02 Lt73

0.746

0.067

0,007

0.401

0.010

0.032

0.053

0.009

0.01l

3.289
l.989
0.308

0.464

0.690

0.061

0.006

0.37t
0.009

0.630

0,059

0.004

0.361

0.0r0
0.029

0.0s0

0.009

0.01I

0,051

0.010

0.01r

3.313

1.982

0.310

0.498

3.1 85

1.888

0.29s

0.448

Note: Rates are per $100 of Assessed Value
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 20t0

0.497

0,153

0.468

0.144

0.473

0.r39
0.4'73

0.1 39

0.055

0.0s6

0.428

0.124

0.089

0.089

0.44s

0.r24
0.507

0.142

0.0s6

0.057

0.0s3

0.054

0.055

0.056

0,139

0.141

0.209

0.206

0.763 0.719

0.317

0.723

0.331

0.723

0.302

0.730 0.849 l,06s

0.325 0.289 0.309 0.352

1.088 1.036 1.054 1.025 1.019 1. 1s8 t.417

0.593

0.060

0.001

0.347

0.009

0.263

0.008

0.0t2

0.040

0.009

0.008

0.046

0.009

0.007

0.533

0.060

0.005

0,315

0.009

0.014

0.044
0.009

0.009

0.s00

0.057

0.005

0.284

0.009

0.044

0,009

0.009

2.763

1.823

0.288

0.449

0,446

0.0s3

2.435
1.621

0.260

0,418

0.4ts
0.0s 1

0.252

0.008

0.041

0.009

0.009

2.385
1.587

0.2s6

0.41I

0.394

0.490

0,261

0.008

Q,02t

0.044

0.010

0.010

2.307

1.636

0.258

0.420

0.423

0.051

0.274

0.009

0.049

0.010

0.010

2.5t2
1.839

0.295

0.486

2.925

1.818

0.279

0.47t

2.840
1'759

0.28r
0.429

6.565 6.307 6.240 5,573 s.424 5.859 5.958

7.653 7.343 7.294 6.598 6.443 7.017 7.3'15

135



CITY OF'ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates - Last Ten Levy Years

Palatine Township (High School District 211)

December 31, 20ll (Unaudited)

200t 2002 2003

City Direct Rates

General

Debt Service

Pension Trust
Police Pension

Firefighters' Pension

Total City Direct Rates

Component Unit - Library Direct Rate

Total City Direct Rate

Overlapping Rates - Palatine Township

Cook County

Forest Preserve District
Suburban Tuberculosis Sanitarium

Water Reclamation District
Northwest Mosquito Abatement

Consolidated Elections

Palatine

Town

Road and Bridge

General Assistance

School Dishicts
School District Number 15

High School District Number 211

Community College District Number 512

Rolling Meadows Park District

Total Overlapping Rates - Elk Grove Township

Total Direct and Overlapping Rates

Data Source: Office of the County Clerk

7.598 7.255 7.508

8.745 8.3s7 8.681

$ 0.s85

0.12t
0.534

0.115

0.s69

0.1 19

0.049

0.0s2
0.061

0.065

0.06s

0,06s

0.807

0.340

0.775

0.327

0.818

0.355

Lt47 I.LOz I.173

0.746

0.067

0.007

0.401

0.010

0.032

0.042
0.077

0.008

3.289
2.147

0.308

0.464

0.041

0.074
0.008

3.185

2.067

0.29s

0.448

0.042

0.009

0.078

3.313

2.t65
0.310

0.498

0.690

0.061

0.006

0.371

0.009

0.630

0.059

0.004

0.3 6l
0.010

0.029

Note: Rates are per $100 of Assessed Value.
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

0.497

0.1 53

0.468

0.144

0.473

0.139

0.473

0.139

0.507

0.142

0,139

0.141

0.209

0.206

0.428

0.r24

0.089

0.089

0.44s
0.124

0.056

0.057

0.053

0,0s4

0,055

0.0s6

0.0s5

0.0s6

0.763 0.7t9 0.723

0.331

0.723

0.302

0.730

0.289

0.849

0.309

1.065

0.32s 0.317 0.3s2

L088 1.036 1.054 1.025 l.019 1.158 1.4r7

0.s93

0.060

0.001

0.347

0.009

0.s33

0.060

0.005

0.3 15

0.009

0.014

0.500

0.0s7

0.005

0.284

0.009

2.763

2.261

0,288

0.449

0.446

0.053

0.263

0.008

0.012

0.415

0.0s 1

0.394

0.490

0.261

0.008

0.021

0.034

0.061

0.008

2.307

1.916

0.258

0.420

0.423

0.051

0.038

0.070

0.008

0.037

0.069

0.008

0.039

0.072

0.009

0.035

0.063

0.008

0.041

0.070

0.009

2.925
2.t58
0.279

0.47t

2.840
2.191

0,28 r

0.429

2.43s
1.972

0.260
0.418

0.252

0.008

2.38s
t928
0.256

0.411

0.03s

0.064

0,008

0,274

0.009

2.512
2.200

0.295

0.486

6.9s9 6.79r 6.736 5.974 5.8t2 6.178 6.370

8.047 7.827 7.790 6.999 6.831 7.336 U87
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates - Last Ten Levy Years
Palatine Township (High School District 214)

December 31, 20ll (Unaudited)

2001 2002 2003

City Direct Rates

General

Debt Service

Pension Trust
Police Pension

Firefighters' Pension

Total City Direct Rates

Component Unit - Library Direct Rate

Total City Direct Rate

Overlapping Rates - Palatine Township

Cook County
Forest Preserve District
Suburban Tuberculosis Sanitarium
Water Reclamation District
Northwest Mosquito Abatement

Consolidated Elections

Palatine

Town

Road and Bridge

General Assistance

School Districts
School District Number 15

High School District Number 214

Community College District Number 512

Rolling Meadows Park District

Total Overlapping Rates - Elk Grove Township

Total Direct and Overlapping Rates

Data Source: Office of the County Clerk

$ 0.58s

0.121

0.049

0.052

0.s34
0.115

0.s69

0.1 19

0.06r
0.06s

0,06s

0.065

0.807

0.340

0.77s

0.327

0.818

0.355

1.147 1.102 1.173

0.746

0.067

0.007

0.401

0.010

0.032

3.289
1.989

0.308

0.464

0.690

0.061

0.006

0.371

0.009

3.1 85

1.888

0.295

0.448

0.630

0.0s9

0.004

0.361

0.010

0.029

0.042

0.009

0,078

3.313

1.982

0,310

0.498

0.042

0.077

0.008

0.041

0.074

0.008

7.440 7.076 7.325

Note: Rates are per $100 of Assessed Value.
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

0.497

0.153

0.056

0.057

0.468

0.144

0.053

0.054

0.473

0.1 39

0.473

0.139

0.055

0.056

0.428
0.124

0.089

0.089

0.445

0.124

0.1 39

0.141

0.507

0.142

0.209

0.206
0.0s5

0.056

0.763 0.7t9

0.3t7

0.723

0.331

0.723

0.302

0.730

0.298

0.849

0.309

1.065

0.3520.32s

1.088 1.036 L054 1.025 1.028 1.158 t.417

0.593

0.060

0.001

0.347

0.009

0.533

0.060

0.005

0.3 l5
0.009

0.014

2.840

t.759
0.281

0.429

0.s00

0.057

0.005

0.284

0.009

0.039

0.072

0.009

2363
t.823
0.288

0.449

0.446

0.0s3

0.41s

0.051

0.394

0.490

0.261

0.008

0.021

0.423

0.0s 1

0.263

0.008

0.012

0.03s

0.064

0.008

2.435

1.621

0.260

0.252

0.008

0.035

0,063

0.008

2.385
1.587

0.256

0.411

0.034

0.061

0.008

0.274

0.009

0.041

0.070

0.009

2.5t2
1.839

0.295

0.486

0.038

0.070

0.008

0.037

0.069

0.008

2.92s
1.818

0.279

0.471

2.307

t.636

0.2s6

0.420

6.6t9 6.3s9 6.298 5.20s 5.471 s.896 6.009

7.707 7.395 7.352 6.230 6.499 7.054 7.426
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Principal Property Tax Payers - Current Year and Nine Years Ago
December 31, 20ll (Unaudited)

20ll Tax Levy Year 2002Tax Levy Year

Taxpayer

Taxable

Assessed

Value

Percentage

of Total City
Taxable

Assessed

Rank Value

Taxable

Assessed

Value

Percentage

of Total City
Taxable

Assessed

ValueRank

1701 Golf Road Holdings $

Atrium Corporation Center LLC
Northrop Corporation
Rolling Meadows Delaware

Tower Realty Management Corp.

YPI 1600 Corporate Center

12 Oaks Realty
Marc Realty
Walmart Stores

Meijer Stores LTD
Prime Group Realty (formerly

American National Bank)

3Com Corporation
Lincoln Atrium Management Co.

WMRM Scan LLCS
Teachers Insurance

Bun Wolff Property

YPI 1600 Corporate Center

12 Oaks Realty

40,010,768

24,337,480

23,8r4,921
18,097,612

15,750,062

15,126,454

12,895,119

12,857,705

11,175,031

I1,098,900

5

3

4

2

1

2

4

5

6

7

8

9

0

1

1

9

6

8

l0

3.99%
2.42%

2.37%

1.80%

r.57%

l5t%
1.28%

1.28%

t.tt%
l.lt%

s 6,424,399
6,453,927

6,453,826

6,123,521

17,297,536

5,715,617

5,364,452

5,gg2,169

5,469,719

4,936,475

18/4% 70,721,541

0.79%

0.79%

0.19%

0.83%

2.13%

0.70%

0.66%

0.72%

0.67%

0.6r%

185,164,052 8.70%

Data Source: Office of the Cook County Clerk - Tax Extension Department
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Property Tax Levies and Collections - Last Ten Levy Years

December 31, 20Il (Unaudited)

Fiscal
Year

Taxes

Levied for
the Fiscal

Year Amount
Percentage

ofLevy

Collections
in

Subsequent

Years Amount
Percentage

ofLevy

Collected within the

Fiscal Year of the Levy Total Collections to DateTax
Levy
Year

2002 2001 $ 6,218,751 $ 5,619,849 9037% $ 150,789 $ 5,770,638 92.79%

2003 2002 6,308,471 6,283,466 99.60% (152,404) 6,131,062 97j9%

2004 2003 6,438,424 6,413,838 99.62% (221,234) 6,192,604 96.18%

2005 2004 6,893,476 6,667,518 96.72% 57,974 6,725,492 97.56%

2006 2005 6,891,780 6,719,499 97.50% 68,802 6,788,301 98.50%

2007 2006 6,973,121 6,473,354 92.83% 445,674 6,919,028 99.22%

2008 2007 7,848,368 7,639,825 97.34% (46,927) 7,592,898 96.74%

2009 2008 8,428,123 8,301,100 98.49% (35,600) 8,265,500 98.07%

2010 2009 9,730,232 9,383,289 96.43% 108,851 9,492,140 97.55%

20tt 2010 10,690,980 10,481,601 98.04% 10,491,601 98.04%

Data Source: Office of the Cook County Clerk

Note: Property in the City is reassessed each year. Property is assessed aI33Yo of actual value,
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CITY OF'ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Taxable Sales by Category - Last Ten Fiscal Years
December 31, 20ll (Unaudited)

Fiscal Year 2002 2003 2004 200s

General Merchandise

Food

Drinking and Eating Places

Apparel
Furniture and H.H. and Radio

Lumber, Building, Hardware

Automobile and Filling Stations

Drugs and Misc. Retail

Agriculture and All Others

Manufacturers

Total

Local Sales Tax Rate

Total Sales Tax Rate

s 62,664,280

14,634,400

42,753,980

4,886,400

3,460,400
2,433,620

15,904,820

23,902,980

45,995,820

9,654,680

66,675,940

15,330,590

43,968,520

4,644,490
4,261,200

2,1'12,540

15,328,260

13,496,240

36,870,780

8,744,460

65,459,920

13,072,900

45,969,590

3,356,000

4,136,200

3,211,060

37,261,380
13,629,840

36,813,940
9,413,220

64,188,280

13,779,560

41,885,120

3,621,500

3,699,140

2,807,960

46,309,020

16,269,740

3I,777,380
10,828,300

Data Source: Illinois Department of Revenue

226,291,390 211,493,000 232,323,040 241,165,000

t50% 150% 2.00% 2.00%

8.25% 8.25% 8.7s% 8.75%
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2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 20tt

61,123,560

15,127,480

49,420,200

3,443,500

7,149,700

2,915,620

44,329,920

16,478,260

32,129,520

8,593,220

60,275,753

15,001,571

49,936,206
3,405,336
7,219,336

2,715,061

65,703,526
16,190,972

32,404,576

8,463,314

59,529,361

11,690,306

48,805,003

2,52L,712

7,372,794

2,697,156

46,737,476

13,493,447

30,093,793

9,521,908

60,495,368

1I,157,166
44,742,470

2,522,896
6,164,965

1,205,151

45,088,883

12,878,726

20,523,263

6,973,945

39,328,192
9,916,455

42,917,114
2,443,133

5,862,267

l,lg6,24l
52,407,264

12,343,741

23,267,419

6,851,196

28,167,711

9,785,079

43,',|95,249

I 1,099,519

6,649,299

794,665

64,965,950

12,821,333

24,719,294

2,831,417

240,709,980 260,314,651 232,462,946 211,652,733 196,523,021 205,619,515

2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%

8.75% 8.75% r0.00% 10.00% 9.s0% 9.25%
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CITY OF'ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rates - Last Ten Fiscal Years
December 31, 20ll (Unaudited)

Fiscal
Year

State

Sales

Tax

Mass

Transit
Portion

Cook

County
Portion

Total

Sales Tax
Rate

Local Home Rule
Sales Tax Sales Tax

to City to City

2002 s.00% 1.00%

2003 5.00% 1.00%

2004 5.00% 1.00%

200s s.00% 1.00%

2006 s.00% 1.00%

2007 s.00% 1.00%

2008 s.25% 1.00%

2009 5.25% t.00%

20t0 5.25% 1.00%

20lr s.2s% 1.00%

Data Source: Illinois Department of Revenue

0.50% 0.75%

0.s0% 0.7s%

1.00% 0.75%

1.00% 0.75%

1.00% 0.75%

1.00% 0.75%

1.00%

1.00%

1.00%

1.00%

1.00% 8.75%

1.00% 1.75% 10.00%

1.00% 1.75% 10,00%

1.00% r.25% 9.50%

1.00% 1.00% 9.25%

1.00% 8.2s%

1.00% 8.25%

1.00% 8.75%

1.00% 8.75%

t.00% 8.7s%
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Local Tax Revenues - Last Ten Fiscal Years
December 31, 20ll (Unaudited)

Fiscal

Year

State

Sales

Tax
Telecom
Tax (B)

Electric

Utility
Tax (C)

Hotel
Tax (E)

Home Rule

Sales

Tax (A)
Food &

Beverage (D )

Real Estate

Transfer

Tax

2002 $ 2,921,745 1,152,434 3g9,169 N/A l,l2g,g00 273,910 525,491

2003 2,795,074 r,041,430 9gg,767 N/A 899,494 259,596 66t,454

2004 3,073,337 2,140,654 1,632,101 N/A 1,250,607 263,694 912,g66

2005 3,245,233 2,448,482 2,299,734 N/A 1,276,799 249,527 902,639

2006 3,299,095 2,344,933 2,065,561 N/A 1,319,674 304,677 594,249

2007 3,405,991 2,471,264 2,047,649 N/A 1,339,009 265,716 3g6,09l

2008 3,347,289 2,265,611 2,038,337 N/A 1,293,970 45l,ggg 269,663

2009 3,062,136 2,053,624 2,075,334 1,301,016 r,22l,3gl 299,634 lg1,25g

2010 2,768,676 1,957,345 1,946,729 1,310,453 1,216,961 299,076 l74,glg

20ll 2,871,640 2,058,935 1,936,227 l,2g5,glg 1,212,122 333,374 153,699

Data Source: City of Rolling Meadows CAFR

Notes: (A) Home Rule Sales Tax rate increased from.5% to 1.0%o in2004.
(B) The 1.00/o "Infrastructure Maintenance Fee" was changed,to a4.0Vo Telecom Tax in
Sept, 2004. Telecom Tax rates increased from 4.5%o to 6%o in 2005.

(C) Electric Utility Tax was implemented in 2009.

(D) Food & Beverage Tax increased from lo/o to 1,5%o in 2002 and to 2%o in 2004.
(E) Hotel Tax rate increased from 4o/o to 5Yo in 2002 to 8%o in 2008.
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, LLINOIS

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type - Last Ten Fiscal Years
December 31, 20ll (Unaudited)

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type

Activities

Fiscal

Year

General

Obligation
Bonds

Capital
Lease

General

Obligation
Bonds

Total

Primary

Government

Percentage

of
Personal

Income (1)
Per

Capita (1)

2002 $ 11,790,000 $ $ 2,600,000 $ 14,390,000 4.38% $ s8s

2003 12,125,000 2,500,000 14,625,000 436%

2004 19,245,000 2,390,000 21,635,000 6.t4%

2005 25,300,000 2,280,000 27,580,000 7.43%

2006 23,855,000 2,165,000 26,020,000 6.61%

2007 24,030,000 537,286 3,550,000 28,117,286 6.68%

2008 22,404,048 556,387 3,310,952 26,271,387 6.08%

2009 20,721,298 471,887 3,053,702 24,246,887 5.70%

20t0 18,968,838 390,505 2,786,162 22,145,505 6.12%

20ll 17,131,668 284,713 2,508,332 19,924,713 4.74%

Data Source: Audited Financial Statements

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements

(1) See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics for personal income and population data

594

879

l,l2l

1,059

1,143

1,069

985

922

827
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding - Last Ten Fiscal Years
December 3t, 20ll (Unaudited)

Fiscal

Year

General

Obligation
Bonds

Percentage of
Total Taxable

Assessed

Value of
Property (l)

Per

Capita(2)

2002 $ 14,390,000 1.87% $ s8s

2003 14,625,000 1.80%

2004 21,635,000 2.75%

2005 27,580,000 3.0s%

2006 26,020,000 2.71%

2007 27,580,000 2.86%

2008 25,715,000 2.37%

2009 23,775,000 2.06%

2010 21,755,000 1.90%

20rt 19,640,000 1.96%

Data Source: Audited Financial Statements

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the fînancial statements.

(1) See the Schedule of Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property for property value data,

(2) See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics for personal income and population data.

594

879

1,121

1,059

l,l2l

1,045

966

903

815
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Schedule of Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
December 31, 20ll (Unaudited)

Governmental Unit Gross Debt

Percentage of
Debt

Applicable
to Citv (l)

City's

Share of
Debt

City Direct Debt

Overlapping Debt

Arlington Heights Township

High School District 214

Cook County

Forest Preserve District of Cook County

Harper Community College District 512

Metro Water Reclamation District of
Greater Chicago

Palatine Township High School District 211

Rolling Meadows Park Di¡itrict
Arlington Heights Park District
Palatine Park District
Schaumburg Park District
School District 69

School District CC l5

$ 19,640,000 100.00% $ 19,640,000

28,260,000

3,738,830,000

101,935,000

185,775,000

2,495,258,695

17,255,000

3,320,000
24,996,550

21,665,000

174,120,000

43,530,000

52,503,000

5.95%
0.s9%
0.s9%

6.4s%

0.60%
4.34%

89.27%

0.18%
597%
0.20%

1.76%

20.79%

1,694,296

22,059,097

60t,417
11,982,488

14,971,552

748,867

2,963,764

44,994

1,293,401

348,240
'166,r28

10,915,374

Total Overlapping Debt 6,887,448,245

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt 6,907,088,245

Data Source: Cook County Treasurer's Office

( I ) Determined by ratio of assessed valuation of property subj ect to taxation in the City to valuation of
property subject to taxation in overlapping unit.

68,379,618

88,019,618
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crTY oF ROLLTNG MEADOWS, LLINOIS

Schedule of Legal Debt Margin
December 31, 20ll (Unaudited)

The City is a home rule municipality

Article VII, Section 6(k) of the l970Illinois constitution governs computation of legal debt margin.

The General Assembly may limit by law the amount and require referendum approval of debt to be
incurred by some home rule municipalities, payable from ad valorem property tax receipts, only in
excess of the following percentages of the assessed value of its taxable property...(2) if its
population is more than 25,000 and less than 500,000 an aggregate of one percent: indebtedness
which is outstanding on the effective date (July l, l97l) of this constitution or which is thereafter
approved by referendum...shall not be included in the foregoing percentage amounts.

To date the General Assembly has set no limits for home rule municipalities
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWSO ILLINOIS

Demographic and Economic Statistics - Last Ten Fiscal Years
December 31, 20ll (Unaudited)

Fiscal
Year

(1)

Population

(2)

Personal

Income
(in Thousands)

(3)

Per

Capita

Personal

Income

(1)

Median
Age

(l)
Education
Level in
Years

of
Schooling

(3)

School

Enrollment

(4)

Unemployment

Rate

2002 24,604 $ 329,703 S 26,178 34.4

2003 24,604 335,574 26,179 34.4

2004 24,604 352,359 26,1,78 34.4

2005 24,604 37r,160 26,179 34.4

2006 24,604 393,382 26,t78 34.4 14.0 5,075

2007 24,604 421,143 26,179 34.4 14.0 5,142 3.80%

2008 24,604 431,795 26,t79 34.4 5.10%

10.10%

890%

14.0 5,220 530%

14.0 5,379 4.80%

14.0 5,231 4.70%

3.50%

14.0 5,441

t4.0 4,g l g

s30%

2009 24,604 425,178 26,178 34.4 14.0 4,167 10.00%

2010 24,099 361,800 26,178 34.4 14.0 4,392

20lt 24,099 420,051 30,619 34.2 14.0 5,196

Data Sources:

(1) U.S. Census

(2) Data provided by School District Administrative Offices
(3) Illinois Department of Employment Security, Economic Information and Analysis
(4) U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Principal Employers - Current Year and Nine Years Ago

December 3t, 20ll (Unaudited)

2OII 2002

Employer Employees Rank

Percentage

of Total
City

Employment Employees

Percentage

of Total
CitY

Rank Employment

Northrop Defense Systems

Riverside Publishing Co.

Komatsu
Hanis Bank

Cook County Courthouse

A.H. Management Group

Wal-Mart Stores Inc.

Research in Motion
Panasonic

Meijer
3 Comm Corp

Transamerica Commercial

Kelso Burnett Co.

Middleby Corp.

New Resources

ElectroDynamics Inc.

Carlson Wagonlit Travel

Coleman Floor Co.

Methode Electrics, lnc.

2,400
410

310

305

300

268

267

250
250

245

10.42%

1.78%

1.35%

r.32%

t.30%
1.16%

r.16%

r.09%
r.09%
1.06%

1

2

J

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

2,500 I

1,000

s00

400

300

285

270

250
250

2s0

tt.r0%

4A0%
2.20%

r.80%
130%
1.30%

r.20%
r.r0%
t.r0%
r.t0%

1

J

4

5

6

7

I
9

0I

5,005

Data Source: Rolling Meadows Chamber of Commerce

21.72% 6,005 26.60%
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, LLINOIS

Full-Time and Part-Time Employees by Function/Program - Last Ten tr'iscal Years
December 31, 20ll (Unaudited)

2002 2003 2004

Full-Time
General Government

Management

Finance

Community Development

Public Safety

Police

Officers

Civilians
Fire

Firef,rghters and Offi cers

Civilians
Public Works

Administration
Engineering/Inspections

Streets and Grounds

Utilities and Garage

Part-Time

General Government

Management

Finance

Community Development

Public Safety

Police

Fire

Public Works

Streets and Grounds

urilities

Data Source: City Human Resources and Budget Departments

7

ll
9

6

1

9

1 1

6

I
9

55

28

45

56

24

45
a
J

45

56

25

3

5

1

t7
l9

5

I

18

20

5

I

l7
20

;
2

lt

2

2

1t

;
2

1l
I

2

J

2

J

2

)
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2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 20tl

6

4

8

7

4

8

7

6

8

8

8

9

56

27

49

5

J

T4

20

8

8

9

8

9

9

5

10

9

48

8

444442

2

54

27

46

2

5

5

t4
20

54

27

45

2

4

4

L4

20

54

29

45

51

9

4
a

L6

15

52

13

a
J

4

1

5

5

1

I

4

2

L6

t6

5

1

15

20

2

J

1

4

I
J

1

9

I

J

I
J

1

7

I

I
2

l2

)
2

2

J

25

I

20

a

1

a

J

2

3

2
a
L

2
)

13

2

2

10

ls3



CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Operating Indicators by Function/Program - Last Ten Fiscal Years
December 31, 20ll (Unaudited)

2002 2003 2004

Public Safety

Police

Physical Arrests
Parking Violations
Traffic Violations

Fire

Emergency Responses

Fire Calls

Fires Extinguished

Public Works

Street Resurfacing (Miles)

Snow and Ice Control (Tons of Salt)

Water
Number of Water Main Repairs

Water Average Daily Consumption (Thousands of Gallons)

Refuse Collection
Refuse Collected (Tons per Day)

Recyclables Collected (Tons per Day)

1,439

4,863

6,936

1,890

1,039

N/A

3.28

1,270

74

2,657

N/A
N/A

1,051

4,327

6,269

1,934

1,103

N/A

0.70

1,380

83

2,595

N/A
N/A

886

4,293

6,616

1,9r2
1,036

N/A

0.41

r,395

43

2,481

N/A
N/A

Data Source: Various City Departments

N/A - Information not Available
Prior to 2010, fire calls included false alarms, unfunded reports, investigations, and actual fires extinguished.
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200s 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 20tt

1,945

1,055

NiA

2.28

1,150

78

2,557

798
4,0r4
5,837

1,084

4,540

5,928

r,978
r,227
N/A

8.28

1,636

2,563

29

9

1,043

3,418
5,731

r,976

1,019

N/A

0.77

2,500

4t
2,487

921
4,795

5,364

2,282

1,148

N/A

0.9s

3,000

53

2,616

22

l0

sl0
3,066
5,906

2,204

1,093

NiA

4s6
3,469

5,947

3,599
1,097

42

1.60

1,669

58

2,300

t9
9

92t
6,165

4,665

3,497

1,196

4l

1,36

678

42

1,476

51

2,692

27

10

54

1,871

25

9

25

9

l9
10
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CITY OF'ROLLING MEADO\ryS, ILINOIS

Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program - Last Ten tr'iscal Years
December 31, 20ll (Unaudited)

2002 2003 2004

Public Safety

Police

Stations

Patrol Units
Fire

Fire Stations

Fire Engines

Public Works

Sheets (Miles)

Streetlights

Traffic Signals

Water

Water Mains (Miles)

Fire Hydrants

Storage Capacity (Millions of Gallons)

Wastewater

Sanitary Sewer (Miles)

Lift Stations

Sto¡m Sewers (Miles)

Data Source: Various City Departments

1

t2

2

4

l2

2

4

t2

2

4

70.50

257

45

85.73

1,265

5.s0

76.12

J

60

70.50

257

45

86.78

1,295

5.50

76.60

J

60

70.50

257

45

87.38

1,295

5.50

76.88

J

60
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2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 20tt

70.50

257

45

88.03

7,314

5.50

1

t2

70.50

257

45

88.63

1,327

5.50

77.33

J

60

18

60.89

257

45

89.50

1,392

s.50

60.89

257

45

88.21

1.,395

5.50

77.94

5

60

I

60.89

257

49

88.40

1,395

5.50

77.94

J

60

60.89

260

49

89.92

1,353

5.50

82.00

J

61

I

60.89

260

49

90.12

1,356

5.50

82,00

J

6t

1 1

l2

2

4

2

5

2

4

l5

2

5

15

2

5

l5

2

5

15

2

5

77.16

J

60

77.67
a

60
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Water Sold by Type of Customer - Last Ten Fiscal Years
December 31, 20ll (Unaudited)

Type of Customer 2002 2003 2004

Industrial
Res idential/Multi-Fami ly
Commercial
School/Government

Total

Water Rate per 1,000 Gallons

Sewer Rate per 1,000 Gallons

65,337

637,538
233,376

33,642

54,445

623,441

236,59t
32,606

56,856

581,221

225,158
42,279

969,893 947 ,093 905,513

$

$

3.31 $ 3.44 $ 3,58

0.99 $ 1.03 $ 1.07

Data Source: City of Rolling Meadows Water Department Pumpage Report
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200s 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 20tt

54,273

615,602

227,754

35,628

52,830
586,794

223,024
34,704

43,802

575,905

204,060
32,071

40,803

547,625

199,405

26,450

34,r02
529,064

771,698

26,712

44,149

520,636

166,979

26,343

37,534

495,298

155,393

25,827

$ 3.78 $ 4.06 $ 4.34 $ 4.96 $ S.e: $ s.83 $ 6.35

$ 1.13 $ r.¡+ $ r.¿¡ $ 1,64 $ r.92 $ 2.10 $ 2.10

933,257 897,352 855,838 804,283 76t,576 758,106 714,052
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Continuing Bond Disclosures

December 31, 20ll (Unaudited)

City of Rolling Meadows, Cook County, Illinois
2011 Continuing Bond Disclosures Relating to the Following Bonds:

$4,885,000 General Obligation Bonds of 2002A

$2,600,000 General Obligation Bonds of 20028

$4,030,000 General Obligation Bonds of 2003

$8,070,000 General Obligation Bonds of 2004

57,425,000 General Obligation Bonds of 2005

$410,000 General Obligation Bonds of 2007

$2,835,000 General Obligation Bonds of 2007 A

For further information please contact:

City of Rolling Meadows

3600 Kirchoff Road

Rolling Meadows, Illinois 60008

Telephone Number: (847) 394-8500

Fax Number: (847) 394-8710
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, LLINOIS

Continuing Bond Disclosures - Continued
December 31, 20ll (Unaudited)

Certain Information Regarding the City

General

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting to the City for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended December
3I,2010. The City has received the award to each of the last 25 years. According to the GFOA, this award
represents a significant accomplishment for a government and its management and is the highest form of
recognition in the field of governmental reporting.

Budgetary Data

There is no updated information to report.

Cash Management

There is no updated information to report.

Property Taxes

Information regarding property tax levies, collections, and valuations for the City can be found in the statistical
section on pages 132 - 133 and l4l of these audited financial statements.

Tax Rates

Information regarding updated property tax rates for the City can be found in the statistical section on pages 134

- 139 of these audited financial statements.
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CITY OF ROLLING MEADOWS, ILINOIS

Continuing Bond Disclosures - Continued
December 31, 20ll (Unaudited)

Debt Statement

Issue Date Bond Issue

Principal
Outstanding

Supported

by

041t512002

061ts12002

031ts12003

09n5t2004
t0n8l200s
0s10U2007

1213U2007

General Obligation Bond Series of 2002A
General Obligation Bond Series of 20028
General Obligation Bond Series of 2003

General Obligation Bond Series of 2004

General Obligation Bond Series of 2005

General Obligation Bond Series of 2007

General Obligation Bond Series of 2007A

$ 2,970,000

1,540,000

2,375,000

6,400,000

4,390,000

135,000

1,930,000

$ 3,011,514,540
1,003,939,190

Gross Direct
Debt

Property Taxes

Proprietary
Incremental Taxes

Sales Taxes

Property Taxes

Proprietary

Proprietary

Gross Direct

Debt and

Overlapping Debt

Total Gross Direct Bonded Debt 19,640,000

Less: Self-Supporting Bonded Debt 12,280,000

Total Net Direct Bonded Debt 7,360,000

The City's overlapping and underlying bonded debt is updated as of December 31, 20LI, and can be found on
pages 146 - 148 of the audited financial statements.

The City's debt ratios are updated using the 2010 equalized assessed valuation and the 2010 estimated full value
of taxable property.

Estimated Full Value of Taxable Property - 2010

Equalized Assessed Valuation - 2010

Per Capita

Percent of Estimated Full Value
Percent of Equalized Assessed Value

$$ 814.97

0.6s2%
1.956%

3,652.42

2.923%

8.768%
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CITY OF'ROLLING MEADOWS, LLINOIS

Continuing Bond Disclosures - Continued
December 31, 20ll (Unaudited)

Debt Maturity Schedule

The following schedule sets forth the maturity schedule for all general obligation bonded debt of the City:

Calendar

Year
Annual

Requirement
Cumulative Retirement

Amount Percent

20t2
2013

20r4
2015

20t6
2017

20t8
20t9
2020

202r
2022

2023

$ 2,215,000

2,315,000
2,355,000
2,455,000

2,575,000

2,705,000

1,210,000

780,000

835,000

680,000

730,000

785,000

$ 2,215,000
4,530,000

6,995,000

9,340,000

I 1,915,000

14,620,000

15,830,000

16,610,000

17,445,000

18,125,000

18,855,000

19,640,000

11.28%

23.07%

3s.06%
47.56%

60.67%

74.44%

80.60%

84.s7%

88.82%

92.29%

96.00%
100.00%

Future Debt

There is no updated information to report.

Pension and Retirement Fund Commitments

Updated annual financial information is contained in the audited financial statements of the City on pages 54

through 65.
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